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CHARACTERISTIC OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
Is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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AUDITORS

RSM Hong Kong

29th Floor,

Lee Gardens Two,

28Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 2708, 27/F,

The Center,

99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong
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CIP AT A GLANCE

China Innovationpay Group Limited (“CIP"; the “Company”;
the “Group”) is a renowned investment holding company
committed to innovation and technology advancement in
payment services. Our Group consists of the Company,
Shenzhen Innovationpay Co., Limited and its subsidiaries,
Country Praise Enterprises Limited (“CPE") and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “CPE Group”). We mainly operate payment
service based business across the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Up to 2016, our operation consists of three
operating segments, which are (i) general trading, (ii)_third party
payment services (Former name as “Prepaid card and related
operations”) and (iii) Onecomm. Within the third party payment
services, there are four core business sectors which are shown
as follows:

Business Further Details

Prepaid Card Service Please refer to page 8

Internet Payment Service Please refer to page 9

Integrated Payment Service Please refer to page 9

Cross-border Renminbi Payment
Service

Please refer to page 9

Our Business Foundation

On 28 June 2012, Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Gaohuitong”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company obtained the Certificate for Approval
for Payment Business from the People’'s Bank of China (the
“PBOC"). In December 2016, Beijing Gaohuitong has submitted
formal application to PBOC for the renewal of Certificate for
Approval for Payment Business.

The PBOC Approval allows us to operate issuance and
acceptance of prepaid cards in five geographical areas and
operate internet payment service in the PRC. In November
2014, the payment and settlement division of the operations
of PBOC further permitted us to operate the virtual card
in China countrywide on a pilot basis. In September 2015,
PBOC Guangzhou Branch has approved Beijing Gaohuitong to
commence the Renminbi settlement services for the cross-
border goods and services trading business for enterprises and
individuals.
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On 22 June 2016, the Group submitted formal
application to MasterCard Worldwide for Hong
Kong membership. The application is now in
progress.
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December
On 19 December 2016, Beijing Gaohuitong
signed agreement with China Unionpay Beijing
Branch to carry out in-depth cooperation based
on the internet payment account and Unionpay
Virtral Card.
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On 31 March 2016, the Group communicated
and filed preliminary papers with the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority and submitted formal
application for the Stored Value Facilities on 31
July 2016.
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In September 2016, the core payment system
passed the tests which were carried out by
China Financial Certification Authority (7 Bl
SR FEF L), In October 2016, the system
is again certified by the China Financial
Authentication (bR S EIRRBHEE).
RZZE—RFNLA RO EGRBAHE
BMARBROETHARA - RZFT—RF+H %
REBRESIERTSERRERIBERE -

TRAHZNEERRARP 7

ZE—NFFER



CORPORATE INFORMATIO
RAEEH

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

With the payment licenses and permissions obtained by the
Group and the businesses explored through years, the Group
has established three business systems based on its core
payment system, namely the internet payment system, the
prepaid card operating system and the integrated payment
system. The Group has also developed four business segments
based on three business systems, namely the prepaid card
service, internet payment service, merchant integrated payment
service, and cross-border Renminbi payment service.

In 2016, the Group's financial and investment focus is on
payment business, while other non-key business sectors, i.e.
the general trading services, have been maintained their normal
operation without any key investment, and spun off its travel
related service.

Prepaid Card Service
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Virtual prepaid card service is the main contributor to the
business sector about volume of business. This sector’s service
products are co-operated by CPE and Moderntimes Payment
Limited (the “Moderntimes Payment”). Through the joint
confirmed cooperation with our distributors, the prepaid card
operating platform establishes an online and offline payment
service by a virtual prepaid card product to support the needs
under various payment handling conditions, help our distributors
to develop and operate their own customers.
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Internet Payment Service

The business sector of internet payment service is a major
profit contributor in 2016. This sector's service provides a
speedy B2C and B2B mobile payment gateway service to our
clients. All China popular payment paths, such as WeChat,
AliPay and China Unionpay, have been built into our payment
gateway where the end user has no feeling of using our internet
payment service.

After its first launch in 2016, this service has contributed to the
Group for over RMB22 billion of transaction volume. Credited
by the proven success, more products operated in this internet
payment platform are under design and to be delivered in the
near future.

Cross-border Renminbi Payment Service

The business sector of cross-border Renminbi Payment
provides our clients, from international trading, e-trading,
tourism, to study abroad consultancy companies, with payment
services for their businesses of cross-border trading in goods/
services. Compared to the traditional bank, we are able to
provide safe accounts with simpler procedure and shorter
settlement cycle.

By the end of 2016, the transaction volume from this business
sector has reached RMB267.6 million.

However, this business sector is very sensitive to the policy
change. Accordingly, the Group has deployed a comprehensive
risk control system to the Guangzhou branch of Beijing
Gaohuitong (“Guangzhou Branch”). More details can be found
in the risk control measures in the strategic report.

Integrated Payment Service

The business sector of integrated Payment service can provide
merchants with all-round membership management, full-
channel, self-marketing services.

At the end of December, monthly transaction volume in this
sector achieved approximate RMB420 million. However, we
have applied a conservative strategies in developing this
business sector due to the relative cost. In a foreseeable
future, seeking sizable merchants in this business sector is an
important work task for us.
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Financial Review

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s continuing
operations turnover was approximately HK$80,182,000 (2015:
HK$97,068,000),
The Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders from

a 174% decrease as compared to last year.

continuing operations of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$210,128,000 (2015: loss HK$132,536,000). The gross profit
margin from continuing operations of the Group recorded
29.9% (2015: 26.4%). Of the said loss, HK$12,301,000 (2015:
HK$4,641,000) was attributable to impairment of goodwill.

Impairment of Goodwill

The performance and contribution of the Travellers related services
segment (Cash Generating Unit 3, “CGU 3") fell behind budget. As
a result, the re-assessment of relevant goodwill is affected and the
Board is of the view that an impairment of goodwill for CGU3 is
necessary.

Sales and Marketing

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, sales and
marketing expenses from continuing operations recorded
HK$16,917000 (2015: HK$27378,000), representing a 38.2%
decrease over the same period last year.

Significant Investment and Acquisition
A possible acquisition of the 51% interest and the shareholders’
loan of a company

On 18 July 2016, the Company, the Target Company and the
current shareholders of the Target Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MQOU") indicating their
intention to enter into a definitive legally binding agreement in
respect of a possible acquisition of the 100% interest and the
shareholders’ loan of a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, together with its subsidiaries, (the “Target Group”)
which is principally engaged in the e-commerce business
providing a variety of online and offline solutions proposals and
services in relation to mobile retailing.
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The Target Group, is principally engaged in providing online
and offline solutions to mobile retailing in the PRC. Based
on the information obtained from the Sellers, the Target
Group has over 450,000 active registered merchants with its
e-commerce platform as at the end of March 2016 and the
gross merchandise volume transacted on the Target Group's
e-commerce platform recorded more than RMB4 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the MOU, the Group should pay to the Target Group
RMB30,000,000 on or before 25 July 2016 as Earnest Money,
which shall be returned to the Company by the Target Group
if (1) no Definitive Agreement is entered into between the
Company, the Sellers and the Target Company by 18 January
2017 being the end of a sixmonth period from the signing of
the MOU (the “Exclusivity Period”); or (2) where the Definitive
Agreement is entered into between the Company, the Sellers
and the Target Company, the Proposed Acquisition fails to
complete according to the terms of the Definitive Agreement.

For details of the above possible transactions please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 18 July 2016.

The parties are in the process of finalising the terms of the
Definitive Agreement. The parties mutually agreed to enter into
a supplemental agreement to the MOU (”Supplemental MOU")
on 21 February 2017 pursuant to which the Exclusivity Period
has been extended from being the sixmonth period from the
signing of the MOU (i.e. up to 18 January 2017) to the eight-
month period from the signing of the MOU (i.e. up to 18 March
2017).

Details of the above development, please refer to the
Company'’s announcement dated 21 February 2017
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Major Events

Termination of convertible preference shares (the “CPS”) and
issue of shares under general mandate

On 25 June 2015, the Company and National Agricultural
Holdings Limited (“National Agricultural”) entered into the CPS
Subscription Agreement and Share Subscription Agreement.

On 29 January 2016, upon mutual agreement between both
parties, the parties to the CPS Subscription Agreement have
entered into a termination agreement to terminate the CPS
Subscription Agreement.

Due to the fact that completion of the Share Subscription
Agreement and the CPS Subscription Agreement are inter
conditional and shall take place simultaneously, the parties to
the Share Subscription Agreement also have entered into a
termination agreement to terminate the Share Subscription
Agreement, pursuant to which the Share Subscription
Agreement shall terminate and shall be of no further force
and effect upon signing of the Share Subscription Termination
Agreement and each party waives all rights that such party have
under the Share Subscription Agreement and releases the other
party from all obligations owed by them thereunder.

Issue and allotment of Incentive Shares

On 18 June 2015, the Company, the Vendor and Mr. JOONG
Chi-Wei entered into the Incentive Agreement pursuant to
which the Company shall reward the Vendor with an aggregate
amount not exceeding RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$250,000,000) based on the number of
Cumulative Virtual Prepaid Card Sold and/or the amount of
Cumulative Virtual Prepaid Card Reload for the six months
ending 31 December 2015 and each of the two years ending
31 December 2017 by way of issue and allotment of Incentive
Shares. (For details of the above transactions please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 18 June 2015.)

On 15 April 2016, 46,296,296 shares were granted at issue
price HK$1.8 per share, representing a 0.77% of the then
existing issued share capital before relevant share issue.
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Provision of Guarantee to a Subsidiary

On 8 November 2016, Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information
Technology Co., Ltd. ("TTSB”, a subsidiary of the Group)
provided a guarantee in favor of Haier Finance Company
Limited (“Haier Finance”) for the financing facility granted
to Haier Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Consumer
Finance"”). Pursuant to the Credit Facility Agreement, Haier
Finance will grant a financing facility of RMB2.5 billion to Haier
Consumer Finance, and Beijing TTSB will provide a guarantee
up to RMB250 million (equivalent to approximately HK$286
million) on a pro rata basis for the 10% shareholdings in Haier
Consumer Finance held by it. Beijing TTSB (hereafter referred
as "Pledgor”) made its 10% shareholdings in Haier Consumer
Finance (hereafter referred as “Guarantee”) as Collateral
Subject to provide Collateral Guarantee for the debts incurred by
the Guarantee and Haier Finance Company Limited (hereafter
referred as “Pledgee”).

For details of the above transaction please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 November 2016.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$185,422,000 (2015:
HK$236,608,000) of the said bank balances, HK$98,295,000
were restricted for the purpose of settlement obligation.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has bank borrowings of
HKS nil (2015: HK$ nil).

Capital Commitments and Pledge of Assets

On 12 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to obtain 20% equity interest of an
investee company by way of capital injection of RMB5,000,000.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group paid RMB2,000,000. The
remaining balance of RMB3,000,000 is a capital commitment.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group and the Company did not
have any significant capital commitments.
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Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2016, the total current assets over the total
current liabilities was 1.41 times (2015: 2.91 times). The ratio
of all debts to total assets was 0 (2015: 0). As most sales are
made in Renminbi, no hedging arrangement is made to offset
the exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal exposure to foreign
currency risks. The Group monitors its foreign currency risks and
will consider hedging significant currency exposures should the
need arises.

Intellectual Property

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 24 trademarks (2015:
24) registered in China and Hong Kong, of which all trademarks
have been approved.

At the same time, the Group had 68 software copyrights (2015:
66) and 6 patents (2015: 6) in China.

Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has approximately 275
employees (2015: 354). Employees are remunerated according
to their performance and work experience. In addition to
basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff benefits include
performance bonus and employee share options. The Directors
believe that good quality of its employees is a company asset
which affects growth and improves profitability. The Group
recognizes the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance
their skills and knowledge. Further information of our group's
employees and related issues will be disclosed in page 72.

Litigation
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material
outstanding litigation.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
REEHRE

Our strategic report provides analysis of the development and
performance of our businesses in 2016 and of our positions at
the end of 2016.

In the past, we explored many prepaid card businesses
and searched for the best positioned business model in the
payment industry. However, the fast growing industry and
the changing government monitoring environment drove us
to consolidate our licensed payment business.

In 2016, we manage to connect our buyer and seller, user and
merchant through our mature and integrated platforms. We
make our payment services a bridge between our distributors
and their customers by a mean of providing payment
method. We connect our different industrial distributor cross
products and services.

Our ambition is to be recognized as the leading innovator
in the financial service industry, staying the payment and
beyond. We will achieve this by continually expanding our
distributors to various e-commerce players, interne and
financial institutions, and OTO business partners. We aim
to assist our distributors and business partners in their own
business development, emphasize on the needs of theirs, as
well as the society we serve. Thus we are making long-term
sustainable return to all of our stakeholders.

Key Metrics of 2016

0 336%

Complaints Related Growth in Card
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EXECUTIVE RETROSPECT & PROSPECT

We enter 2017 with a clear strategic plan for its implementation
already well under way. We believe that the year of 2017 is a
turning point for our Group as we were bringing in resources
on various models of the payment and e-commerce segments
and extensive experience in coping with the ever changing
environment.

The first step towards setting up a business is to consider
a viable idea that caters to the market needs as well as the
market trends. In the past, we explored business and looked
for the business models that would be best positioned in the
industry. We distinguished ourselves as a market “explorer”
at that stage, and we put our efforts in being a service
provider in the e-commerce and payment industry. As a
consequence, the payment business become the foundation
of our Group’s businesses, and it provided basis to our future
development. Despite the highs and lows in the past few
years, we established a considerable user base. The number of
accounts and volume of business was increasing continuously
as a result of the accumulating payment business. Our Group
was gradually launching the account operating business for
the purpose of delivering payment, financial and member
management services to all account holders in general. We
had also commenced setting the layout in this regard, such as
investing in consumer finance company, and intending to set up
massive data company.

Aside from the user base, our foundation was also in form
of our exclusive resources. On 19 December 2016, Beijing
Gaohuitong signed agreements with China Unionpay Beijing
Branch to carry out deeply cooperation based on the internet
payment account and Unionpay Virtual Card.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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In 2016, the competition of China payment industry was
particularly intense. With many different M&A and restructuring
activities, for industries that possess advantages, they will
become stronger and stronger and competition of industry
market segments was more and more fierce. Our traditional
prepaid cards business confronted a severe situation and it
was due to this situation that drove us to innovate, expand and
upgrade its original businesses.

During the challenging 2016, notwithstanding, we have
certain breakthrough, which are key to our future success,
we established Guangzhou Branch to handle cross-border
RMB services; we implemented integrated payment services
and we connected with big players in consumer finance
and e-commerce segments. Now, we are situated at the
stage of consolidation and we are positioning ourselves as a
“connector”. We connect not merely users and merchants, but
all kind of business partners through our mature and integrated
platform.

Since the payment service relationships operated by the Group
had already laid a good foundation and through the cooperation
with key customers in the industry, it will quickly form an
industrial demonstration norm to occupy the market and form a
sizable business.

These advancements in 2016 are the results of our strategic
plan, and we have our footprint set beyond traditional payment
services. The internet and technological advancement had
revolutionized the interaction customers, merchants and service
providers. A range of industries have had to keep up with the
time-to-time online habits of their customers. Obviously, our
businesses are subject to the changes of those online habits
and we will keep to the pace.
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With a business foothold in payment business and eyes on
developing the sophisticated online business to our users, we
will develop our account clientele through payment business
and operate the financial business through our clientele. We are
committed to delivering more fruitful and convenient payment
and related online services to our clients. With the on-going
development and consolidation of payment business, we are
gradually putting more efforts on the research and development,
as well as the promotion of our clientele operation and related
products.

In the coming year, we will continue emphasizing on
reinforcement in e-commerce and payment industry. That is
in the case, we are moving a step forward, from a market
“connector” to an industrial “innovator”, as we are going to
deliver more comprehensive payment services, self-marketing
and self-customer management services to merchants based
on the existing payment business with unremitted innovations.

We are going to expand the market by means of delivering
integrated professional and personalized comprehensive
payment solutions for different industrial customers. With our
Group having the corresponding resolutions to tackle any issue
that cover hardware to software, online to offline, standard
businesses to personal businesses, we will promote our
services to benchmark enterprises in different industries, such
as mobile telephones, chain stores, e-commerce, insurance,
logistics, car networking, tourism and agriculture, and further
expand our business to customers of the whole industry by
leveraging on the demonstration effect of these benchmark
enterprises. As a consequence, we can classify our expansions
into two main categories: Vertical expansion and International
Expansion. Vertical expansion will be carrying out in forms of
research and development on existing systems and business
models, such as e-commerce, commercial management system
and consumer finance. We consider to acquire a leading mobile
commerce service provider, which commensurate with our long
term strategies and vision. We integrated our payment platform
with commercial management system, and assist our business
partners and merchants to manage their cash flow, their
inventories and their customers. We hope that our effort will
benefit them with operational efficiency, business magnification
and penetration to other segments.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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On the other side, international expansion will be carried out
through collaboration with overseas authorities, merchants and
financial institutions. We figure out that there is a space where
tourism and online services overlap. The number of Chinese
citizens travelling to Japan has grown dramatically over the
last decade amid the relaxation of travel control. It brings in
enormous opportunities relating to the spending of Chinese
tourists in Japan. In this regard, we are in negotiation with
relevant organization about certain campaign to boost the use of
our payment services in Japan. Looking ahead, we will continue
to pursue suitable opportunities to expand our international
footprint.

We look forward to a fruitful year of 2017 and contributing to
a new environment together with our business partners and
stakeholders, to the payment industry.

OUR GOAL

Our ambition is to be recognized as the leading innovator in
the integrated payment service industry. We will achieve this
by emphasizing on the needs of our customers and business
partners, and consequently we are able to make long-term
sustainability to our stakeholders and the society.
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Why Innovation?

Once we admitted that mobile Apps have become an essential
part of our daily life, we realized the importance of innovation
in today’s world. Innovation is, to us, the central capability
for all individuals and organizations interested in maximizing
their opportunities for success in the twenty-first century.
Many would doubt that while the pursuit of innovation
cannot absolutely guarantee meaningful growth, it is the best
strategy most companies have for achieving it in a way that
can become sustainable over time. They think that companies
sticking to what they are doing is more down-to-earth and cost
efficient. However, we have a distinctive view that innovation
is indispensable to the long term development of the company,
as well as the society. We believe that it is our responsibility to
move a step forward than catering the needs followed by the
existing trend of the industry. Our technician team is holding
operational responsibilities that focus on designing, deploying
monitoring and managing real-world experiments and predictive
analytics assets inline to our core businesses processes.

EXPLORER
HRE

CONNECTOR
HRE

As mentioned in the executive retrospect and prospect section,
the role of us to the society had moved from an “explorer” to a
“connector”. In the following years, we are striving to become
an “innovator” of the industry.
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Macro-factor Changes We Have Considered This

Year

Macro-factors 2016 Changes

1. Political

The strategic focus of promoting online
business has been maintained by the
Central Party Committee and the State
Council in deepening the structural
reform and pushed forward “Mass
Entrepreneurship and Innovation”.

The PBOC has finished the trial runs
of its prototype cryptocurrency. For
users transacting over their mobiles or
portable devices, the PBOC developed
cryptocurrency is to certain extent similar
to the existing payment methods. For
sellers, transaction costs will be lowered
since intermediates are cut out from the
process.

The PBOC also announced that the
scrutiny of private digital tenders as well
as Bitcoin is going to be increased.

2. Economic

In 2016, China was facing a complicated
international environment and increasing
downward pressure on the economy.
According to the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, an increase of 6.7%
in GDP was recorded in 2016 when
compared with 2015. The value added
of the tertiary industry was increased
by 7.8%, which is equivalent to around
RMB38,000 billion.
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Macro-factors 2016 Changes

3. Sociocultural

According to the “2016 China Payment
and Cleaning Business Report” (/&
X NIEETEETHE(2016)) , the
paying agencies were handling more
than RMB24 trillion internet payment
transactions.

The prepaid card industry was contracting
due to the rise in electronic payment
methods. People nowadays are more
adapt to a more convenient way to
handle their daily payments and shopping
experience.
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4. Industrial

Due to the ever changing trend of prepaid
card industry, prepaid card issuers actively
seeking transformation and further
optimization of the business structure.
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The Trends We Spotted
The Trend in Foreseen Future

1. Improved Mobile commerce is consistently
Mobile growing.
Experiences

Data-based, personalized information
and marketing are now the norm. Even
though some of the shoppers appreciate
customized product suggestions, some
are annoyed. Presenting the right content
at the right time is to certain extent,
creating a userfriendly and value-added
information to the users.

2. Personalized
Context

3. Real-time
Analytics

With traditional analytics, spotting trends
or problems is time-consuming.

Social collaboration is on the rise in the
e-commerce world.

4. Social
Collaboration

5. The Rise of
Big Data

Big Data is being used by a number
of multinational organizations and
authorities. As more people connect to
internet, the volume of information, which
is generated by our digital lives rises,
become useful.

Along with the fast-growing online shopping industry in China,
online payment has been an up-and-coming online market
segment over the past few years.
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OUR STRATEGIC ACTIONS

Strategic Actions

Smart Statement

Designing and building of new Add-
in functions for users of Smart
Statement

Progress during
2016

Testing phase

Key Performance
Indicator

Number of active
users

Research and Development In progress Research and
Reform part of the operational team to a Development Cost
research-based department
Full implementation of Online In progress Market Transaction
Payment Volume
Preliminary target and schedules have
been set for the year 2017
New Business Model Acquisition in Number of
Platform for merchants and provide a progress merchants and
comprehensive cashier services transaction
volume
Expand the Product and Service Line | In progress Number of
Launching of comprehensive payment business partners
service and product
Consolidate Online Payment Service Business Number of
Increase the number of business development in merchants and
partners progress transaction
volume
Promotion of Clientele Operation In progress Number of active
Launch of standardized and systematic users
third-party custodian service and
account management service
Department Restructuring In progress N/A

Restructuring of Marketing and
Promotion Department, establishing
of a strategic product management
center and maintenance center

Sales and Marketing
Adopt channel and direct selling as two
main marketing strategies

Core channel
vendors

Growth in revenue

Risk Control Practice

Administrative

Attendance of

Enhance risk awareness of our Measures Participants
employees towards suspicious announced;
transactions through rules and Course and
regulations Training organized
International Expansion Collaborations in Growth in
Develop oversea market through Negotiation revenue, number
collaboration with different institutes of business
partners
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RISK CONTROL MEASURES

Risk related to Terrorist Financing

In accordance with the “Anti-money Laundering Law of the
People's Republic of China”, the “Decision of the Standing
Committee of the National People's Congress on Issues
concerning Strengthening Anti-terrorism Work"” and other
relevant laws, our Group have formulated the “Administrative
Measures for the Freezing of Assets Relating to Terrorist
Activities” and was come into force on 21 December 2015.

Our Group shall take measures to freeze relevant assents
pursuant to law and in strict accordance with the list of terrorist
organizations and terrorists and the decisions on asset freeze
issued by the Ministry of Public Security (“MPS"). We develop
our internal operating rules and control measures for the
freezing of assets relating to terrorist activities, supervise and
manage the implementation of these measures by the affiliated
institutions, designate special institutions or personnel to pay
attention to and keep abreast of any changes in the list of
terrorist organizations and terrorists, improve the management
of the identity information and transaction information of our
clients, and strengthen transaction monitoring.

Risk related to Money Laundering

For the purpose of regulating the supervision for anti-money-
laundering and following the Anti-money Laundering Law of the
PRC, our Group have formulated the “Administrative Measures
for Self-assessment on the Risk of Money-laundering” on 8
January 2016. According to the administrative measures, the
operation team of Anti-money Laundering shall review and
conduct a self-assessment report once a year related to the
group businesses. The report is carried out through analysis on
undertaking facilities, operational loopholes, and internal and
external risk control of money laundering.

On 1 November 2015, our Group have formulated the
“Administrative Measures for Assistance on Anti-money
Laundering Investigation”. Our Group shall coordinate, organize
and cooperate in all due diligence, investigation and actions
carried out by regulatory agencies.
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Our group adopts relevant measures for prevention and
supervision according to law, establishes and improves clients’
identity identification system, enhances the preservation
system of clients’ identity materials and transactional records,
carries out the reporting system of large sum transactions
and suspicious transactions, and performs our anti-money
laundering obligations.

Any of our client’'s material or transactional information, as
acquired in the performance of the duties and functions of anti-
money laundering according to law, will be kept confidential.
None of the aforesaid information may be provided to any entity
or individual in the absence of relevant provisions of law.

HOW WE DO OUR BUSINESS

In this competitive, fast-moving and increasingly regulated
industry, it is important that we thoroughly know what our
clients need. We understand that businesses are not all the
same so we tailor their solution to their needs and adopt a
flexible approach to our relationship. We implement solutions
that answer the needs because we build deep understanding
of our clients’ unique requirement before proceeding with the
projects. Furthermore, we carry through to the end that we are
striving to be an innovator in the industry, so we are pleased to
give creative ideas to our clients and hope that their businesses
are value-added.

Case Study

Our Client

One of our target client, being a china-based platform operator
which delivers on-demand services for daily issues like
housekeeping and beauty treatment. In 2017 we will enter into
a service co-operation agreement, pursuant to which our Group
will provide our service platform and strategic solutions to them
to meet the legal requirements and operational needs.
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We serve the client with a wide range of services including

management of payment system.

BAREFRERZNORY  BREEEN

[Botoe ] [SERL

We realized that the client transactional capital of them
must be settled through a third-party payment institute to
secure both our client and its customers. \We are delighted to
provide Settlement Reserve Account custodian service and
transactional settlement services to the platform users and
we promise that the balance of those parties will be settled
on the day the transaction incurs.

BMERE EREPRPESABBE=
AXNHEBRSEE RETFER - AR
MAFERAPRHAEERBSKRPTEE
IRH K R S ERIRTS - WHAGRZFR X7
ZHERRRELEE HETHEE -

We provide a united checking system to reduce the high
complexity of multi-channel checking. Furthermore, we
provide a multi-dimensional reconciliation report to assist
the financial and accounting department of our client in
conducting financial analysis.

BAREBSRERFUNRRZ RER
BEZRERMME- N BPIRESZ T E
15 8 5 A B & P 2 W B & &t D
ETRAB DT

We try to minimize the concerns of the users toward the
security and conditionality of the prepaid card provided by our
client. As we are an independent third-party payment institute
which holds the Payment Business Permit which is subject to
the supervision and administration of the PBOC. We deliver
confidence and convenience to the users of our client.

BZPMEARBPHERPREHEZENRZ
ZeRREEZEEREZRE - AR
ARHAXTBAARBITEENEEZX
R RT R 2 WAL =07 AT - B3
MeEPZAPRKELER-

Offline invoicing allows the system to be linked to each other.
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To enhance the healthy development of the payment service
provided by non-financial institutions, the PBOC regularly
reviews and amends the policies and measures against
payment risks.

We are pleased to provide our spectrum of diversified service
and business solutions to our client regarding the ever-changing
business environment, laws and regulations. WWe hope to be a
trusted business partner to support it in achieving its goals and
objectives.

We are seeking to maintain a long-term relationship with all our
business partners.

28 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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The Directors present this report together with the audited
financial statements of China Innovationpay Group Limited and
our subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

Our Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in three operating
segments, which are (i) general trading, (ii)_third party
payment services (Former name as “Prepaid card and related
operations”) and (iii) Onecomm. Within the third party payment
services, there are four core business sectors which are:

Business

(1) Prepaid Card Service

(2) Internet Payment Service

(3) Merchant Integrated Payment Service
(4)  Cross-border Renminbi Payment Service

An analysis of our Group's turnover, segment result and
segment assets for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in Note 8 and 10 respectively to the accompanying financial
statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 55% (2015: 69%) of
our Group's total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of our
Group accounted for approximately 100% (2015: 92%) of our
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 35% (2015: 43%) of our Group's total turnover
while the largest supplier accounted for approximately 48%
(2015: 69%) of our Group's total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had a beneficial interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of our Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of our Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out on pages 88 to 92 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 35 to the accompanying financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company
maintained a sufficient of public float as required under the
GEM Listing rules.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 December 2016, there is no outstanding convertible
bonds.

WARRANTS

On 6 February 2015 (after trading hours), the Company and
Greater China Select Fund (the “Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement. Following obtaining the Shareholders’
approval of the Warrant Subscription and issue of the Warrant
Shares at the SGM dated 29 June 2015, all conditions set out in
the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and completion
of the Warrant Subscription took place on 6 July 2015. Warrants
of an aggregate amount of HK$381.6 million have been issued
to the Subscriber at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per Warrant.
The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe a maximum
of 530,000,000 Warrant Shares at the initial Subscription Price
of HK$0.72 per Warrant Share for a period of five (5) years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

As at this report date, there were still outstanding
530,000,000 Warrant Shares with an aggregate face value of
HK$381,600,000 to be subscribed.
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RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 36 to the accompanying financial statements.
Movements in accumulated loss and other reserves of our
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 93 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016 the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However, the
Company’'s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$1,180,297000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation to the
issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 21 and 22 respectively to the accompanying
financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of our Group's share option schemes are set out in Note
38 to the accompanying financial statements.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 43 to
the accompanying financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yan Xiaotian

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Mr. Guan Guisen, Mr. Wang Zhongmin and Mr. Gu
Jiawang will retire from office by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2014.

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 July 2015.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 24 December 2014.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive directors, has
entered the service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 19 December 2015.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more than 10
years but he has never held any executive or management
position in our Group nor has he throughout such period been
under the employment of any member of our Group. Dr. Fong
has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view
to the Company’'s matters. The Directors noted the positive
contributions Dr. Fong made to the development of the
Company. Dr. Fong Chi Wah has given the confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules to
the Company. The nomination committee of the Company has
assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Dr. Fong. The
Board considers that the long services of Dr. Fong would not
affect his exercises of independent judgments, notwithstanding
his years of service as an independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, the Board is of the view that Dr. Fong is able to
continue to fulfill his roles as required.
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Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director, has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by our
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

EERRANER
RATRE BE - EERARRA A S CE AR5
ZE (EERBHLBEGROIEXVED) 2’
7~ MERANR Y R EEE T - HA (VIRERE %%&
HA S R I EEXVERET R8O BB & & AR
KR Tz m ok R (BERIEE %&Hﬁ
1%%%%?@ RS FIESAR BIs B 2 ik
) 5 SRR FE S R EAE GBI 2352164
AR AZGATME R R RAR 5K
RIEBIZER TR AI55.4625.67156
%%1& TBFRH 2 REBMEARNA R R
RIS IARIAT

Long position in Shares
RBRB2HE

Interest in

underlying Total interest %

Name of Directors Interest in shares shares in shares Shareholding

EENS R 2 %= REBRSG 2 Ex R 2 B REBAL

Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 2151%

BERLE (K1) 1,140,000,000 (S) - 1,140,000,000 (S) 18.69%

Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47620,000 55,800,000 103,420,000 1.70%
EEHLE (Note 2)
(PzE2)

Mr. Yan Xiaotian 21,640,000 25,000,000 46,640,000 0.76%
BEMLE (Note 2)
(PzE2)

Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
FEERL (Note 2)
(B &E2)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
TRRLAE (Note 2)
(BH3E2)

Mr. Gu Jiawang 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
AERLE (Note 2)
(Pra2)
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Note 1:  These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises

Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen.

Note 2: The Company granted the share options under Share Option

Scheme on 6 July 2012 and 11 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none
of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report, there was
no other person (other than a director or chief executive officer
of the Company) who had any interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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RIFRAIZER ET AR RISE5.4625.67188BE
FHTEHFRSHZATEMEG RN T RERZ
FTZ REZR R B ©

Rig (EFRAEHRH) BTHEN
BERFTERR

BT XATRE &SN RARE BRI
(GE¥ REE RG] SE3361%HE T B M AT
i MEEMAL (FARNEEREET
BA BB RAR R 0BG KA
A S AR -

Long position in Shares
RBRB2HE

Interest in

underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors Interest in shares shares in shares Shareholding
EEpE RIR1 2 2 REER G 2 # R 2 B REBDL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 21.51%
BERLE (F51) 1,140,000,000 (S) - 1,140,000,000 (S) 18.69%
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Note 1:  These shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises

Limited (“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially
owned by Mr. Guan Guisen.

Note 2: The Company granted the share options under Share Option

Scheme on 6 July 2012 and 11 June 2015.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

New Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted at the annual general meeting held 3 May 2012 and is
valid for 5 years. After which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of this scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects.

Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants hereunder for their contribution to
our Group and/or to enable our Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to our Group and any entity in which our Group holds any equity
interest.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the participants of Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for ordinary shares of $0.01 each, subject to, when aggregated
under this scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The subscription price will
be determined by the Company’'s Board of Directors, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the
ordinary shares, (i) the average of the closing price of the
ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the closing
price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the date of
grant, which must be a business day. An offer of an option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted when a
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the participant, together with a remittance of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within a period of 28 days from the date of offer.

Krz1 - ZE R {9 A Mighty Advantage

Enterprises Limited ([ Mighty
Advantage | ) ¥ B ° Mighty
Advantage/& 10 % B & Z A 57 i
R IWHBEERCEERHEENA
e

ARTAR-B——FtAXAR=
T— 7% A+— A REMREE
BB S B IRE

EERKRE

FrEEpcERT & (BT S ) R=F—=
FAAZBRTHRREFAE LBEBK
W BEMHRRE HiR BT EE— R
R HE - MEANET EITE PR E AR T m eV RS
EEAEMEER-

B2 -

PRt BT

BB E ERAREEELERINE A
ERHEEBHEER LB AEE BRI
BEEAS XRSIHAREEMERHGEM
BHENTAEEEEENANER

RIFEBES & AR B A AEARER 812
HER Al HRB AR TR B RE A - A
REBTREEC.OITHEBE  HRN&ZF
BN ERIBANET 8 R AN R RIER E AL
Pt 81 R BBV MM R TSHBEEN
RENKEBRITRMAHE30% - ARAES
SHSETRABE BFTgERATEEDN
BeE: ((ERkEE: (INERREAH
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The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person who has contributed to, or can contribute to our Group's
business value and/or technology from product development,
sales and marketing, manufacturing to enhancing efficiency of
operation to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company.

No participant shall be granted an option which would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 1 per cent. of the total
number of shares in issue.

On 11 June 2015, the Company granted certain share
options (the “Share Option”) to eligible persons of our Group
(the”Grantees”) which entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 202,714,000 new ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company, subject to the acceptance by the
Grantees, under the New Share Option Scheme adopted by
the shareholders of the Company on 3 May 2012. The Exercise
Price of the Share Option is HK$1.25 per share.

Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:

oooo

ST 2RNBEBEMEAEENERKE
BN/ RERBERN HERTIHHERER
SLEA BRI E L BRUA NS 2 &R/

ALTEPBERNE  URBARFH B -

H2EERBTEECER LG TERY
PrERKRE (BRETE CEHEMERTT
R B AHE) ME BT A FEITHRMDE
g ARNREREREZA (BREEZA)
REHER12(E A B A BB e BHTRN &
1% AN ERZA AR EERE-

ARARRZE—RFNAT—HERBARA
BERR-_ZE——FHAZBERMZFERE
FHE AAEBEERAL ([FAZRAD KL
GT R ([HARE])  WIREARARE
AN/ Tﬂx$4ﬂm/\2027140001&ﬂx@1§
0.01B Tz LB HAFARAERS

SFE -BRETEERER1258T-
RBE_T—RE+_A=+T—HILFER

BATRERE SR H B REFFEH M
T

At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZB-RE FRiEs/ RIB-RE
BREAH 58 M -A-8 FREM 3 FRTE t=A=t-H
New Share Option Scheme
HBRE 2
Directors and Chief Executives
ESREHRTHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
“T-—F+ARH “E-ZF+ANBE 0.25%7C
“Z2—t45tAAA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZZ-MELAREE 0.25%7T
“Z2—t45tAAA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 8,320,000 - - - 8,320,000
ZZ-REtARAEE 0.25%7T
“Z2—t45tAAA
Subtotal 20,800,000 - - - 20,800,000
Nt
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At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZB-RE Fhis/ R=ZB-X%
BB 758 T5fE -A-8H ERERL 3 FRE T=A=t+-H
New Share Option Scheme
B RE
Directors and Chief Executives (Cont 0/
ESRERTHALR (£)
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
ZZ-R%~A+-H “E-RFZA-RE 125870
“RCZESATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“Z—+F-f-HZE 12587
“Z-TERRTH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
“E-\FZA-RBZE 125870
“RCZESATH
Subtotal 70,000,000 - - - 70,000,000
N
Other employees
HittfEs
6 July 2012 6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
ZE-ZHELARA ZT-RftAARBE 0.25%7T
I o il =
Subtotal 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
N
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
ZZ-8%~A+-H “E-RF-A-RE 125870
ZTZFF~ATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
“Z—+F-f-HZE 12587
ZTZT5~ATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 51,722,400 - (1,923,200) - 49,799,200
“E-\FZA-RBZE 125870
ZTZT5~ATH
Subtotal 129,306,000 - (4,808,000) - 124,498,000
N
Total share options
BRigag 258,154,000 - (4,808,000) (37248,0000 216,098,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options will expire. Options are forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group.

fieh 8 SR O 4R 1 B B LR R AR T2 - BY
R AR S 5 T o e 0B B BERA AN S - RIIR
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Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme as at

RS B AR E B AR B h BB A i

the report date were as follows: ERCESuS NN
At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the period the period date
RZIE-XE B/
BREAH (g2 5fE -A-8 FRERL 3 Baaf REEEE
New Share Option Scheme
B RE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESREATHAER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-ZHtARA ZE-CELAREZE 0.25% 7T
“Z—+FtARA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZZ-MELAREE 02587
“Z2—t45tAAA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 8,320,000 - - - 8,320,000
e = E 0.25%7T
—E—tF5tARA
Subtotal 20,800,000 - - - 20,800,000
st
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
ZT-R%~At+-H “E-"¥-A—-HZ 125870
e e R
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“T—t5-f-BZ 12587
—Z2ZERATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
“Z-NF-R—-RZ% 125870
ZTZFE~ATH
Subtotal 70,000,000 - - - 70,000,000
s
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At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the period the period date
RZB-XE HRTE/
BB 758 T5fE -A-8H ERERL 3 BATE  RESEH
New Share Option Scheme
B RE
Other employees
HittfEs
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - - - - -
—E-ZFtARHE ZT-=ftAABE 0.25%7T
I o il =
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 - - - - -
“E-NELAAAE 0.25%7T
—E—tF5tARA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
“E-REEARAEE 0.25% 7T
—ET—tFtAAA
Subtotal 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
Dt
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
“F-RF~A+-AH “E-RFE-A-RBE% 125 7T
ZZ-ZERATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400) - 37349,400
“ET—+%-F-HZ 1258 7C
ZTZTERATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 51,722,400 - (1,923,200) - 49,799,200
“E-\¥-F—-HZ 125870
ZTZT5~ATH
Subtotal 129,306,000 - (4,808,000) - 124,498,000
It
Total share options
BilkiEe 258,154,000 - (4,808,000) (37248,0000 216,098,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options will expire. Options are forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group.

fieh B8 R AR ) B BT LR R ADARTTAE - BY
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the standards of good practice concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board of Directors as set
out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout year
ended 31 December 2016.

FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of our
Group is set out on pages 223 and 224 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

RSM Hong Kong was re-appointed as auditor of the Company. A
resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be put
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the Board of Directors
of CIP (the “Board”) is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Hong Kong Governance Code is available at www.hkex.com.hk.
This report highlights the key corporate governance practices of
the Company.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company's
corporate governance and makes necessary changes at an
appropriate time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board's fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best
judgement and to act in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for overseeing
the management’s efforts to promote the Company’s Success
while operating in an effective and responsible manner. The
Board is able to delegate and confer on any executive Director
any of its powers, authorities and discretions for such time and
on such terms as it thinks fit.

The Board may at any time appoint any person who is willing to
act as a Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board. The total number of Directors shall not be less
than five nor should it exceed 25. Newly-appointed Directors
retire at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") following
appointment and shall be eligible for election. The Board may
appoint any Director to hold any employment or executive
office and may revoke or terminate any such appointment.
Shareholders may, by ordinary resolution, appoint a person as a
Director or remove any Director before the expiration of his or
her period of office.

The Board regularly formulates our Group's overall business
strategies and monitors management’s execution of such
strategies.
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By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the
business and governance issues for which it needs to be
responsible, and these matters reserved for the Board have

been

separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to

ensure that our Group maintains the proper level of corporate
governance and to ensure they are up to date. In this regard,
the Board:

44/

/

determines our Group’s mission, provides its strategic
direction and is responsible for the approval of strategic
plans;

approves the annual business plan and budget proposed
by management;

retains full and effective control over our Group and
monitors management with regard to the implementation

of the approved annual budget and business plan;

appoints the Chief Executive Officer, who reports to the
Board, and ensures that succession is planned;

approves our Group’s financial statements, interim and
annual reports

determines our Group’s communication policy;
determines director selection, orientation and evaluation;
ensures that our Group has appropriate risk

management, internal control, internal audit and
regulatory compliance;

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2016
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° procedures in place and that it communicates adequately
with shareholders and stakeholders;
° establishes Board sub-committees with clear terms of

reference and responsibilities as appropriate;

o defines levels of delegation in respect of specific matters,
with required authority to Board sub-committees and
management;

° monitors non-financial aspects pertaining to the business

of our Group;

° considers and, if appropriate, declares the payment of
dividends to shareholders;

° regularly evaluates our Group's performance and
effectiveness.

To better serve the long term interests of our stakeholders,
the Board dedicates certain matters certain matters which
require particular time, attention and expertise to be devoted
to its committee. The Board has determined that these matters
are better dealt with by the committees as they require
independent oversight and specialists input. As such, the
Board has established four committees to assist the Board:
Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Each of the committees has
terms of reference which clearly specifies its powers and
authorities. All committees report back to the Board and make
recommendations to the Board if necessary.

oooo

. R R R B B R BEH
=S

. EEEBATREFEE TRYAS
M EREELBRENEZES:

. REAREHENKEEE YHTE

EeBTLZEghEEEMANE
FR

. ErEAREERBEHENIETBHBS
=

. ZRE (MER)ARRE KRS
. TEHIRF 2 A SR B i) R 3R SR

REMNF/HEERESIRANNE EF
eRETARARERHE FENIRZEMN
BOFEEEKGELZEERE -BEFETRR
ZEFEFEBEUERLRERF HHE
BEeREFR/EE NIt EFSEKILT
EZEEHmHEFE - BFTRET ARE
BEg REZEQLFHEESR-RZEBE
RIBBESLE - AR T ) M B - B
EZBeNEFTeERMAESSRHEHER
EE(MEE) -

TEANEAEBERAT | 45
T AFEH

\



oo [m] O o
oood O o o

Oo

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARE

Audit Committee:

Audit Committee

EirREE

oooo

u] oo a

Dr. Fong ChiWah
(President)
B () EEREE

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

The audit committee is responsible for handling company issues
with external auditor, reviewing financial data and information,
overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures

ErEEE:
Mr. Gu Jiawang
A=A
EEEAREINEREMERERARE

FHQ% EPH}

fESIRFZfr o

5 BAMBHREIRER EEMBERER
KAH

Remuneration Committee: FMEEE:
Remuneration
Committee
FTHES S
Mr. Guan Guisen Mr. Cao Chunmeng Dr. Fong ChiWah ol v?/s%%iégﬁ?)gmm
= A E=) —+- S
RAE IR E B ERASTE HEEEL FHRREE(ERE)

The remuneration committee is responsible in reviewing and
approving proposals about remuneration policies and structure
of directors and senior management, ensuring that the
remuneration proposals are aligned with corporate objectives
and ensuring that decisions of directors’ remuneration are
independently made.
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Nomination Committee: REZET:
Nomination
Committee
REZES
Mr. Guan Guisen Mr. Cao Chunmeng Dr. Fong ChiWah Mr. Wang Zhongmin Mr(.PCra;SiJciizvr:Sng
B o =k .
BEREE EEHEE HEEL TRREE AR SEE(ER)
The nomination committee is responsible in reviewing and 1REZEEEERBEERRKRNT LERE

monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board in light of the group’s strategy, identifying
qualified individuals to be new Board members, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors, and
reviewing and monitoring the implementation of the board
diversity policies of the group.

Risk Committee:

Risk Committee

EREEE

MG RE A RKEBZ T ¥
BRERMATRATESZSNKE FEB
VIHEHTEENBUM BRI REREEE
EEREZTIEBENETT-

BREEE:

Mr. Yan Xiao Tian

(President] Mr. Gu Jiawang Mr. Fung Kwok Leung Mr. Liu Nai Han
B S (EE) AEE L BE R Se ke BITEA %k
The risk committee is responsible in drafting and reviewing the REZEGREARERBIEEES E’JH
risk management policies of the group’s operations, overseeing A”fiﬂlﬁ EEEEECNERERBET

the operation of the group’s overall risk management
framework, assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities with regard to the risk appetite of our Group,
compliance framework and the governance structure that
supports it.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 53, joined the Company on 28 February
2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director, Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Guan obtained his bachelor degree from China
Central University of Finance and Economics ( #7 5 Bf 4% X
) in 1984 and a master degree from Graduate School of the
People's Bank of China (R E] A RIRTTEHIT ) in 1987 Mr.
Guan has over twenty years of senior management experience
in finance, property development and investment in the PRC.

Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan Technology and
Industry Group CEFEEI TEE) from 1990 to 1994, a deputy
president of Taihe Holdings Co., Ltd. (K& IZR AR A F]) from
2001 to 2003 and a director of China Union Pay Data Services
Co., Ltd. (SREEEUE AR A E)) from 2002 to 2005. From August
2008, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It R B HEEREZHER
/2 7)) and a director of China Union Lovalty Co., Ltd. ( E/&5E R
EARAF]) from August 2008 to October 2014. From April
2010 to March 2011, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing
Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (R Eh&E (db5R) %
EEHAR AT . Mr. Guan owns the entire equity interest in
Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd., (1t &=
HAe BIREZRNABRAAF) an investment company, which in
turns ever owned 10.18% equity interest in China Union Loyalty
Co., Ltd. ( E/BRmE AR 22 7)) . In October of 2014, Beijing
Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It RE k&
B EFBER QA disposed 10.18% equity interest in China
Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. ( )8R &M AR AF) .

48 China Innovationpay Group Limited
/ Annual Report 2016

/

|

EEREREEEZBEHE

HITES

BEAELE B3 R _T——F_H
“HNABMBEARRE FRITEERAAF]
TR BN —NN\OFRSPRILAREZ
B8 R NAN\EFREHEARR
THEEBcBELEN -BEERTES
BOMEERMRERBEBB_TFEZREN
EELR-

B—NANZEFE—NANF BLERESE
MISEBH ERE ST 2%
ToFRAEGERERAFEEH KB
TR _FETTRFARBEEERAA]
EZ-HZTN\FNAR BrEARLR
ERCEREFZRNERAINESRR B
EENFNAZ_ZE-—NF+ AT LBEERER
BHRERAGIZESE - —T—TFNAE—
T——F=-ABEEAFERB (LR)K
BHAARARESR - BLAEREILRR
REBREZNERARZ IR AER
Mt RRRE B ELABRAFSHE L
IR EANBER D FN0.18% R AN KER 2 %
BERA-R-_ZT—NF+A LREHSE
BEFRAERARLE LERFEMBRA
A]210.18%BE AN 25 o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERME

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 45, joined the Company in March
2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company. Mr. Cao was
appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr. Cao held a bachelor’'s degree
in Computer Science from Shandong University in 1994. And
he obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Peking University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted as
General Manager in Jinan Xiande Technology Limited. (/&
FEEHEBRAR), Senior Deputy President in Fengyuanxin
(China) Limited. (271 () AR AF]), General Manager
in Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing) Information Technology Limited.
(HetE i (L) BB M AR AT and as Vice President
in Beikong Easycode (Beijing) Electric Commerce Ltd. (1b3%
SR UER)EFEBEARZAT). And from April of 2010,
Mr. Cao acts as Vice President of Beijing Shangyin Investment
Consultancy Co., Limited. (FESRaEIL RIREZBERAT) .
From July 2012, Mr. Cao acts as executive director of Kopu
(Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (SEsEIEFE (L) BHRAR AR .
Mr. Cao has over 19 years of financial information technology
Internet industry management experience.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, aged 56, joined the Company in April 2014
and acted as the chief strategy and investment officer of the
Company in April 2014; and acted as the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing ONECOMM Technology Company
Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company since December
2014. Mr. Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and
the chief investment officer of the Company with effect from
24 December 2014. Mr. Yan has obtained a master degree in
economics from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China
(B ARRITIAICEL) , which was then merged with Tsinghua
University and known as PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua
University since 2012, and is a senior economist. Mr. Yan had
worked consecutively as the president of the head office of
Bank of China Limited, vice president of Guangzhou Branch of
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, formerly known as CITIC
Industrial Bank Limited, general manager of CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou) and director and executive president of
South China International Leasing Co., Ltd.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 54, joined the Group in December
19, 2003. Dr. Fong is a Chartered Financial Analyst, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of CPAs and the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants, Australia, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Fong has over 25 years of experience
in various sectors of the financial industry, including direct
investment, project and structured finance and capital markets,
with a focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was a
director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and held
various management positions in ING Bank. He was appointed
as an executive director of National Investments Fund Limited
on November 1, 2005 and an independent non-executive
director of Real Nutraceutical Group Limited on March 28,
2008, and both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Fong obtained a bachelor's degree in management science
(economics) from Lancaster University, United Kingdom, in
1984, a master’'s degree in business administration from
Warwick University, United Kingdom, in 1986, a master's
degree in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999, a master's
degree in practicing accounting from Monash University,
Australia, in 2001, a doctorate in business administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and a juris
doctor’'s degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2013.
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Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 67 has a diploma in industrial
economic management from The Correspondence School of
Renmin University of China (FEI AR KZ KX EF) . Mr.
Wang has over 40 years of experience in the coal industry.
Mr. Wang worked as the deputy section head of the Finance
Department of the Ministry of Coal Industry (&% T 3 288f
7% 8]) from 1981 to 1988, the section head of the Finance
Department in China National Coal Corporation ( A Bl %7t fid /&
E4a N BB 75E0) from1988 to 1993, the section head and the
deputy head of the Finance and Labor Department of Ministry
of Coal Industry (JEx T3 &8 %45 & &) from 1993 to 1995,
the chairman and the general manager of China Coal Trust Co.,
Ltd. (R EEFEIREBREML A A)) from 1995 to 2002, the
chairman of China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. (FFEsEBRE T
2 &) from 2002 to 2010 and the chairman of Harvest Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (R EESEEFRAAF]) from 2003
to 2011. He was the first chairman of China Trustee Association
(R ERZ5E2#E) . He was also appointed as the independent
director of Shanghai Datun Energy Resources Co., Limited. ( -
B RHEEERA D AR A A) (stock code: 600508) and deputy
chairman of China National Coal Association (# B /& 7k T 2 17
&) . Mr. Wang joined the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 65, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media industry.
Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator, person in
charge of the editing section and the head of the business
development department of People’s Daily ( AERH#R) . He was
also appointed as the chief executive officer of China Huawen
Investment Holding Company Limited (/7 B # B2 & 1R A IR
/A &]) which is held by People’s Daily ( AR H#}) the chairman
of Zhongtai Trust and Investment Co., Ltd. (FF ZEFEIRE AR
F{E/~7F]), the chairman of Shanghai New Huang Pu (Group)
Co., Ltd. (E/B%=EH (£E) BREEAR]) and the chairman
of Shenzhen Stock Times Media Limited CRIIFE F Hit A
FR/AT]) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Philosophy Department
of Nanjing University. He also obtained a postgraduate diploma
after studying two years at the Party School of the Central
Committee of C.PC. Mr. Gu joined the Company in April 2011.
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Honorable Chairman

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October 2011. Mr.
Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu began his profession in the banking sector of China from
1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had served as deputy president,
deputy Secretary of the Party, and then became the president
and the Party Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president
and deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People'’s
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2003.
He was deputy director of the Economic Commission, an
alternate committee member of the 15th Central Committee
of Communist Party of China and a representative of the
16th National Congress of Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu
served as chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to
2010. Mr. Liu served as independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications since August 2013. Mr. Liu achieved
extraordinary contribution to the development of China
Unionpay and China’s payment industry.
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Chief Economic Consultant

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert in China,
was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant of the Company
on 8 June 2011. Mr. Xia Bin currently serves as an honorable
director of Research Institute of Finance under Development
Research Centre of the State Council, and Chief Consultant
of China International Futures Co., Ltd. He also acts as an
independent director of China Fortune Land Co., Limited and
Haitong Securities Co., Limited. Mr. Xia was ever a director of
Research Institute of Finance under Development Research
Centre of the State Council, a number of the Monetary Policy
Committee of the People’s Bank of China, served as a vice
director of the Institute of Finance of the People’s Bank of
China, a manager of trading department of the CSRC, a general
manager of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a person-in-charge
of Department of Policy Research of the People’s Bank of
China and a director of Regulatory of Non-Banking Financial
Organization of the People's Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin's
research primarily covers macro-economic condition; currency
policy; financial regulatory and the development of the capital
market in China. Mr. Xia wrote or edited a lot of books which
are very influential to the capital markets.

Senior Management

Mr. Wu Hong, aged 45, was appointed as Vice President of
the Company and General Manager of a subsidiary, Yushun
Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (¥ E#& & & &4
(/)AL A)on 24 June 2015. He was graduated from
Zhongnan University majoring in Finance in 1992, and he
obtained a master's degree in business administration from
the Administration School, Wuhan University in 1999. He held
successively positions as Deputy General Manager of Retail
Department of China Minsheng Bank (in charge), Shenzhen
Branch, an assistant general manager of Risk and Management
Department of China Unionpay and Deputy General Manager
of Marketing Department and Internet Department of China
Unionpay. He has 24 years working experience in bank and
payment industry in Mainland China, and knows the finance
well, particularly payment and clearing industry. Meanwhile, he
has extensive experience in management.
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Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 51, is the qualified accountant
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Fung holds an
Honors Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as advice and services of the group’s
general counsel and the company secretary, with a view
to ensuring the Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. All directors may also obtain
independent professional advice at the group’s expenses for
carrying out their functions. In addition, the Board has adopted
various practices to bring the Group to a high level of corporate
governance and in compliance with the CG Code.

Maintaining a high level of corporate governance and integrity
cannot depend solely on the Board's efforts, each of the
Group’s employees is also required to contribute to such cause.
A code of conduct policy which emphasizes on honesty and
respect is distributed by the Company to all employees and
forms part of their service contracts.
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TEERRE
Board Meetings EESEE

Four Board meetings were held in 2016. The attendance of ZEFER T - R"FRTORGH -FEF
each director at Board, committee meetings and annual general HEEFE ZEeSRZMRFRBEFAE
meeting (“AGM"), whether in person or by means of electronic ([BRERBAFAE]) (THmBRIXANETE
communication, is detailed in the table below: AAR)BERFHN T

Attendance/No. of Board, Committee Meetings HER EEE8R ZESEEKR
and Annual General Meeting RBEFRSRE

Audit Nomination = Remuneration Risk

Committee Committee Committee Committee AGM

Eitzge REZEE® ¥FMzEe ERZEEE RRBFAE
Mr. Guan Guisen 4/4 - 1N 1 - 1N
BERTE
Mr. Cao Chunmeng 4/4 - 7 17 - 1”1
BEWRLE
Mr. Yan Xiaotian 4/4 - - - 1/1 1
BEMALE
Dr. Fong Chi Wah 4/4 4/4 n n - n
HEEET
Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4 4/4 7 " - 11
ITRRAE
Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4 4/4 1/ 1/ 1/1 11
AERRE
Mr. Fung Kwok Leung - - - - 11 17
BER %%
Mr. Liu Nai Han - - - - 1/ -
EYBL=Y S
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At the Board meetings, the Board discussed on a wide range
of matters, including the Group’s overall strategies, financial
and operational performances, approved the annual, interim and
quarterly results of the Group, the appointment of directors,
business prospects, regulatory compliance and corporate
governance, and other significant matters. The company
secretary, in consultation with the Chairman and the senior
management team, prepares the agendas for each meeting
and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The company secretary also ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations in relation to the Board
meetings are followed. The company secretary sends notice
of the Board meeting to each of the directors at least fourteen
days in advance of each regular Board meeting. The company
secretary also sends the agendas, board papers and relevant
information relating to the Group to each of the directors at
least three days in advance of each regular Board meeting
and committee meeting, and keeps the directors updated on
the Group's financial performance and latest developments. If
any director raises any queries, steps will be taken to respond
to such queries as promptly and fully as possible. If there is
potential or actual conflict of interests involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such director would declare his
interest and will abstain from voting on such matters. The
directors may approach the Company’s senior management
team when necessary. The directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in appropriate
circumstances.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REHERERRE

About this Report

China Innovationpay Group Limited (Code: 8083) and our
subsidiaries are pleased to present our Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) and express our
commitment to sustainability. This is our first ESG Report which
discloses our management, policies, performance, targets and
feedbacks in relation to sustainable development. We would like
to take this opportunity to report our ESG performance to our
investors and stakeholders, and put forward our commitments
and contributions on social responsibility.

We value any comments you might have on this
report. Please send your comments or suggestions to
cip@innovationpay.com.hk.

Report Compilation Basis

This report is prepared in accordance with the core options
of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Guidelines and
requirements of the enclosed in Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules (“ESG Reporting Guide"). We have complied with
the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide during the period.

For details of our Group's financial performance and corporate
governance matters, please refer to the previous sections of our
annual report of which this ESG Report forms part.

Reporting Period

This ESG Report is part of our Annual Report, and covered the
same reporting period, from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016, as reported in the Annual Report, on information of our
operations in China and Hong Kong.
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REHERERRE

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that
are based on several assumptions and expectations at the
time of its publication. Those assumptions and expectations
are deemed to be reliable after internal reviewing process.
The statements consist of known and unknown risks and
uncertainties, which implies that that actual results may differ
from the expectations, forecasts and conclusions made herein.
No guarantee is expressed as to the accuracy of the statements
and we expressly disclaim any liability for and assume no
responsibility to correct or update those forward-looking
statements in the event that any of the statements does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

We understand that our long-term success is due to our
commitment to the sustainability of our businesses and the
diligent and innovative employees who deliver quality services
to our clients and business partners and make worthwhile
contributions to several stakeholders of our Group. We strive
to meet relevant local and international standards relating to
our Group's operations. We actively manage our business in
an environmentally and socially responsible manner consistent
with the policies adopted.
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We consolidated and identified seven different groups of FMI4RE R#AIP REMEZEBHHLET
stakeholders that are related to our main business. These RFMNENHE - ZERFMHEBRERE BX
stakeholders include shareholders, business partners, ®&# EF -EE & BT RERE
customers, employees, community, government, and media.

o

Business Partner Government

[EGES 45 1245}

Shareholder ( * @ ﬁu ,¥ﬁ i{#% m Media

B CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP a8

Customers Employees Community
eSS &8 Zanl )
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Under legal frameworks, compliance with stakeholder
involvement requirements becomes an important issue
for those an important issue for those responsible for the
corresponding plans and activities. More than fulfilling legal
constraints, we regard stakeholder opinion as a key to our long
term success and sustainable development. We undertake
all aspects of stakeholder opinion, helping us to define and
understand the key stakeholder issues, evaluate and enhance
stakeholder engagement, involvement, and participation.
Through various communication channels as set out in the table
below, the issues concerned are sorted and sent to related
departments for handling.

Stakeholders

Issues of Major Concerns

EPIERT - HAEFHESBERYZE
BEMAEFEEBNALTME A EEE
FH-RETTAZBQN BPARRFNE
MERDERMARER LA FEERNE
R-HMPAXIFHESTENER  BPHRK
PIFRTE RIZ R+ 10 B RO BB SR R - RF A5 B hn
BIFNENZE N ARSI EBTRA
HEBBARE BABREETOEL X
RBEBRFIEITRIE

Communication Channels

& FERIEE WA RE
Shareholders 1. Financial Performance 1. HKEx Website
RE=® BRI 2 58 5 A8 ik
2. Corporate Governance 2. Company News Update
BEER NEIFTEE R
3. Corporate Image 3. Press Releases
TEER T A
4. Roadshows
B OR
5. Mobile Apps (Online Platform)
BEEARN (MLEFE)
Government 1. Corporate Governance 1. Cooperate with the government and
B HEER regulatory authorities on compliance
2. Compliance with Laws and inspections
Regulations REBFREEHBHNERRE
BTERRER
Customers 1. Service Quality 1. Customer Service Hotlines
BF RSE & =R 2R
2. Online Security 2. Email and Phone Contacts
WEez BE REFEBE AN
3. Risk Management 3. Visits, Meetings and Seminars
[\ fe & TR B ga kit
4. Transparency and Reliability of 4. Mobile Apps (Online Platform)
Information Disclosure “BEEAREN (BLEFE)
ERERENERERAIEN
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Stakeholders Communication Channels

Issues of Major Concerns

BHE TEREHEE BARE
Business Partners 1. Management of Online Platforms 1. Email and Phone Contacts
BEBH METFameER BE SR E AR T
. Service Quality . Visits, Regular Meetings and
fREEE Seminars
. Online Security i ple kifse
ER e . Mobile Apps (Online Platform)
. Risk Management BErEAREN (BLFE)
Ja\ fax B 3R
. Transparency and Reliability of
Information Disclosure
SWEAERE MRS
. Fa|r Competitions
N
Employees . Job Security . Internal Website
== TEMREE AREEER

. Salaries and Benefits

¥ LrEF

. Reasonableness of Rules and

. E-mail

BH

. Employee Welfare Committee

Regulations BIWwRMEES
HEHENEEM . Committee for Complaints
. Working Hours wWFZEEE
T Ve . Surveys/Forums
. Long-term Development AEwiE
KRR
Community . Compliance with Laws and . Proactive Visits
HE Regulations F M
EBEEER . Sponsorship of Public Welfare
. Career Opportunities Activities
MEHE B mas
. Community Welfare Outreach . Company Website
Activities NGIEED
HERENAEES . Mobile Apps (Online Platform)
BEREAREN (BLETs)
. ESG Report
RE e kERWmE
Media . Employee Complaints . Press Releases
e 8 TR #TE A

. lllegal Activities

EIRAE

. Company Website

NGIE b

FEARXTREERAE |
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ESG Materiality Matrix

o o o O

E o o o

o

Hg" R HEREREEMER
e
%0
o} P
5 e ©

Sy

8=

it

L @%o

Q

£

Low Importance to Business

& B EZME

We conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment to identify
issues that reflect significant economic, environmental and social
impacts of our business, and the issues that matter most to our
stakeholders. Based on the results of the assessment, we have
identified the following 22 material areas for inclusion in this report:

High
=)

B ETEENE R E AR KRB
PEBREE RENEETACERTE
ZEBERHKNENSBRARERZER-
RBFHER RPEBRIAT2EE28
B AE AR RS

Data Privacy and

Water Conservation

Security
Product/Service Greenhouse Gas
Quality Emissions

Bribery and Corruption

Energy Conservation

Corporate Governance

\Waste Management

Intellectual Property

Support in Community
Development/
Community Care

Spirit of the Contracts

Contribution to
Local Economic
Development

Business Partner

Occupational Health
and Safety

Training and Education

Workforce Diversity

Diversity & Equal
Opportunities

Biodiversity

Integration of Business
to Communities

Climate Change

Stakeholder
Engagement

Wealth Gap
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

We recognize the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. We hope that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of our daily operation.

We strive to balance quality, price and environmental impact
when consuming resources and materials. We are closely
monitoring our energy consumption and water consumption
through the concept that it is part of our communication
priorities to educate our staffs on the rationale of
environmentally friendly choices, and for making them available.

As our group’s operation is based in the PRC, we are principally
subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations.
Although our businesses are not focused on manufacturing and
production, we try to make contributions for all environmental
aspects. We are organizing a committee which is a group of
people officially delegated to perform the maintenance of
our Group's sustainability. The committee, which consists of
representatives from each operational department, will actively
manages our business in an environmentally and socially
responsible manner. They will meet annually to review our
key processes and identify possible aspects underlying the
operation of such department. Our senior management team
will discuss with the committee regarding any significant
aspects identified, and design measures accordingly. These
measures will be documented for reference to ensure effective
implementation.

REEE

RMERRFNBEEE URHRER
BoBMALRATHEFROELEHRN
ARENSERER-

FEHRER LB ORIE RO RMER
L8 BRMREFENTE - BBZER
BB EIE RO RN FKE  MZIER
TRERMIE 8 TETRREERMS NERE
JNEZRE 2 —-

HRHEMAETEEE WEFERAETT
BIRBIZRIOER - BERPINEHALIFE
AREEREE BERMENASREER
ELERM-BMEXNZ—BEZEES %%8
SRHEEARBGEEASENREER
ATz -ZEBE (AKXKERZEE
#BF 2 AARARK) IR B ARR AL E R
Az A\ EGREERMNER - REKESF
[ITEHRNRS T BIRE LB BT
LSBT RS M EVIRED o = AR E TR B B L A
ZE SRR N EMERRE N RFEE
EITHET W - 2 F RS FEES Z AR
RE ME i
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In 2016, we continued our resources saving improvements RIZZT—RF K PFEHESLRERFE I
and has reduced electricity and water consumption by several B/KEBEFEEEEEET 2 2 - RPN &LLE
percent. Our ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact EERRMEBHRENTIZERER
of our businesses on the environment. Our efforts being made 1K BMIRARNEZFIIEN B NELEDAT

throughout the year can be concluded as follows:

1 Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules
and requirements of environmental protection;

ETHAERBRERBOER X
M RERENR:

2 Reduction in the consumption of various resources
including raw materials and fuel;

A BERR  MEHEANSEER
B H FE

3 Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and
reusing as much as possible of the waste;

A BERIE A - WAR A pE T RER
77 B Y F1 & 3R A A

4 Avoiding generating waste that polluted the
environment;

BERRELISARRHER

5 Using environmentally friendly materials as well as
design, technology and raw materials capable of
conserving energy and reducing waste;

RARRME AT ETAIREIR 8RR
FHEVRRET » BT SR AT Y

6 Vigorous promotion and implementation of the
recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative
effects due to our Group’'s development and the
environment;

RAHEEMETEEREE  RER D
Mgt R ARBNERYIRREE
REBEZE:

7 Provision of training for employees on the protection of
the environment; and

RETRHABFRERFEOEI:
K

8 Creation of an environment for sustainable
development.

BERRERRNIRE
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Energy Efficiency BERAE

We arrange air-conditioning and light zoning in offices to BFEHAZEHZERH ARG MBS HETTH
minimize unnecessary energy wastage. We turned off lighting &7 AR &R T ERIREIRH 7% IR
according to the prevailing light condition. Airconditioning would 5 & i 89 )¢ R {5 (- BABATR A =R 8 - = E R
be turned on only if outside temperature reached certain T, ZE/NAEEEREEXERTEITH Mi&
with a temperature setting of not lower than 25 T. After the ERER/MER25T - TETHIE  FIEH
work is done, all electric equipment must be turned off. BETRIEBEDGHAMH -

2016 Energy Consumption (approx. kWh): 198,500

“E-AFRERERE (WTRE) :

Intensity of Consumption (approx. kWh per person) 720
HEBE (BAXNTERE)

2017 Target Energy Consumption Reduced by

—E-tFER ERERRD

5%

Intensity is measured by dividing the total volume by 275, being &8 JWiZ#E SR LA275( BIAEE B —T—X
the average number of staff members of the Group from 1 F—A—BEAEZE-_Z—RF+-_A=1+—
January 2016 to 31 December 2016. AIEHMZ FHBESFE-

T NFFER
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Water Efficiency

Currently, water resources supply comes from the government
via its domestic water supply and our Group has not
encountered any difficulty in procuring such water supply during
the period. The aggregate volume of water consumed by our
Group during the period amounted to approximately 1,298
tonnes.

We are strengthening our management of water usage and
the inspection of water conservation. \We have adopted internal
guidelines and provides staff education to promote water
conservation, as well as routinely inspects and upkeeps water
supply facilities, to reduce water wastage. Rectifications would
be implemented whenever a water leakage was found.

2016 Water Consumption (approx. tonnes):

“E-RFKHEFE (W)

Bk M E

EA KEREETYABMNEBEEFERK
TR M AR SR B R HA N JE B B KR AL FE R 3T
RBEEREE - NEBREBAZ BFEKE
A 491,298 o

HAEMRAKEE  WREEHLOMK-3K
PIC MM ERIESI RS B TETHE UEE
BN AR 7K A B e Bt s K e v (/K 3R DA DRR
PIORBE - WMBERRKERN BEETE
18 o

Intensity of Consumption (approx. tonnes per person) 4.72

HEERE (B AQHE)

2017 Target Water Consumption Reduced by

—E-tFEE KHEERD

2%
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Paper Saving

As an online service provider, we promote e-office to minimize
printing needs. During the period, a total of approximately 0.3
tonnes of paper were used by our Group.

Management of Wastes

We promote the “3R” Program which aims at minimizing, to
the extent practicable, the amount of wastes produced during
the course of our Group's business operations. The term “3R”
represents:

B A R4

ERESRBHER RAXKET R
NEERDENRIFR - AR AEE 2 8H
A ES#I0.3M -

BEYEE

AEBEHETIBRIFE EERERBRT
BEROAEERGELBRETTELMNE
ZYMHE- 3R] I5:

a) Reduction | Reducing the volume of daily wastes
generated to the extent practicable, by
using alternative materials, processes and
procedures;

b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning
unused materials;

c) Recycling | Converting waste materials into usable
materials or extracting useful substances
from them, such as recycling packaging

a | BE BBERRAMH RERE
FREBBER RS MES
HREBEZYNHE:

b | BRER | BRREFMELNERINE
EARGERAE

o | EREBE | REEMHBARTAMH
REETRREANE  fln
ERBEREMHRAR

material and paper

We strive to reduce the generation of wastes, collect them

separately, recycle and reuse them, and manage and handle

them according to applicable rules and laws.

BN RE LB ES  HHES AR S
Bl K BHEFA - WRBER AR EREE
ETEENEE -
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Emission of Greenhouse Gases

Greenhouse gases are principally emitted from third-party
transport vehicles commissioned generally on an ad-hoc basis
by our Group for the transportation of products and personnel.
In addition to the direct and indirect gas emissions, the use
of electricity by our Group is also indirectly attributable to
production of greenhouse gases, most notably carbon dioxide,
in the electricity generation process. With reference to the
kilowatt-hour power generation to carbon dioxide emission ratio
published by the PRC provincial government, approximately 210
tonnes of carbon dioxide were directly and indirectly attributable
to our Group's daily operation.

2016 Emission of carbon dioxide (approx. tonnes):

“E-ARFTSRER (M)

KREHK

RETZHNEAEE —RIREGERFE
MERERMEABFZANE=FESH
TH-BREELEAEZEREBIEIIN NEER
RENTHEZEEERAZERE SABRENEHR
BREPEEN S - 2RBFEE R
FEGNTREREEEH —SLmBERE
E - AEERBREEEEREEEELD
21008 — (LB °

=T
B i

7

i B

Intensity of Emission of carbon dioxide
(approx. tonnes per person):

—FemBEBaE (B ALM)

2017 Target Emission of reduced by

—E-tFRHEER:

2%

During the period, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, our
Group did not receive any complaint from our clients or any
other parties in respect of any environmental protection issues,
and had not experienced any material environmental incidents
arising from our daily activities.

During the period, no material administrative sanctions or
penalties were imposed upon our Group for the violation of
environmental laws or regulations which had an adverse impact
on its operations.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Labor Standards

We have set up a comprehensive set of human resource
policies stipulating rules on recruitment, compensation, training,
welfare, promotion and dismissal. In order to safeguard benefits
for our employees, our Group abides by Labor Law of the
PRC and employment laws applicable to relevant jurisdictions
where our operations are located. We also comply stringently
with relevant local laws on equal employment opportunities.
Moreover, we regularly monitor information related to
employment to prevent non-compliance with labor laws and
regulations.

Team Profile

We actively recruits talents of different nationalities, genders,
ages and religions in a fair and equitable manner through social
media such as online platforms and newspaper advertisements.
Across our diversified online business portfolio, we have a
workforce of 275 in a number of locations in China. As of 31
December 2016, the composition of our staffs was as follows:

MHEEE

TR

RO RIERE  HW BB B RS
BRT—E2ENANERBERE - BIF
BREEEMN AEEETHELAETHERLE
FRIE 0 B AR M E AR R AR - RIFITE
RTEHERSBRETERREE I
oh - RIIE I REREB LN BETH

BEFAFERER
B R

BMAMAREFEEBRERESHIRRE
RNFREMERAETREEE 1ER - Fie
RFEBHAT - ERMZ TN ERETA
A ZMCETRBEBEE2BHET -RN-F
—RFETZA=+—HB " MO ETAEKN
T

Total Workforce by Gender
RUBIBSHNE TR

117
42.55%

® Male B4

158
57.45%

© Female 1%
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Categorized by employee's gender, female employees
accounted for approximately 43% and male employees
accounted for the remaining 57%. We believe in equality
of opportunity and treatment between male and female
employees because it is just and fair and promotes good
business and better performance. We recognize that equality
at work between male and female employees means a)
discrimination is not existed in the recruitment process to
get the best candidates for the appropriate vacancies; and
b) equality of opportunity in providing assignments based
on candidate’s merit and choice rather than sex-typed
preconceived notions by management.

Total Workforce by Age

2RETRFRIE
16

5.82%

29
10.55%

104
3782%

® 3140
31-40%%

® Below
2050 AT

@ 2030
20-30%%
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© 4150
41-50%%

ZEEWHRDE IR BHH43% -
MAEER T 4957 % © ﬁﬁw%mﬁEEZﬁm
HeRFBFTE BAVFAELRERTHE
BERLEERB -BMARAUSZEERAT
EFR B FEiga)BEARP T FEBER U
REENTRENZEBREA : Rb)DIRE
ERFRIBEEAN A e R BEREMIEIREERE
MERIEABENB S AREARBRTEED
Mg o

2.91%

118
42.91%

@® Above 50
BOBRA b
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As for employees distribution by age, aged below 20
accounted for approximately 3%, aged 20 to 30 accounted for
approximately 42%, aged 31 to 40 accounted for approximately
38%, aged 41 to 50 accounted for approximately 11% and aged
above 50 accounted for approximately 6%.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HREFHDHE 205 MMEL3% 2058
305%MG 4942% 31 E40BR1H 4938% + 41E50
G #4911 % K507 LA E1H496%

Total Workforce by Job Function

PREETRIERESSE
8
2.97%
77
28.00%
122
44.36%
68
24.73%
@® Managemen @ Technical @ Sales ) Operation
EIEE FAD HE BIEAB

Professionals in different fields are our precious assets. The
profile of our workforce shows that the number of our technical
employees was substantially higher than that of our other
employees. Categorized by job function, technicians accounted
for approximately 44% of the total number of employees;
operational staffs accounted for approximately 28%; and others
accounted for the remaining 28%.

As we strictly adhere to labor laws and regulations in all
aspects, we do not permit forced labor or child labor under any
circumstances.

Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support our
precious asset, our employees. In addition to the international
labor standards and laws, we have created internal guidelines
and systems specific to our industry to make sure our
employees would discharge their duties effectively.

EEEHENEEAEBRRMNEELEE -H
MHEI BB TIEMARINAEBEE R
BRERMOEMES R TERESE &
MABREBBEML44% BIEABIRD
28% : M E M {E B15 82 T28% ©

AR MR 75 9 B A 8 T 85 AR MO
B EEAER MRS FFRES T

ET-

BERZZ

& BB REF A TS P8 R SR M
VEEEAE (RMNEE) EHESR - REKR

55 TR ROREIN - HAPIHIE BT ST 8 3,

TTRM N IEETT & M HIE - IAREREAPIA

BT ARMEITRE -

RERIH A REARAF 71

T NFFHR



ENVIRONMENTAL,

REHERERRE

Staff Development and Training

We recognize the importance of empowerment through
development and training in our Group. Equipping our
employees with the appropriate knowledge not simply benefits
our long term development, but the society as a whole.

Understanding that our employees are a vital factor for success
in the competitive industry and promotion of innovation, we
continued to provide a wide range of training opportunities
in 2016. The comprehensive training and development
opportunities were as follows:

Interal

A

On-job Training
EREHE

Self-leaming

BETHE

Training Course
sEHIRE

Mutual
Communication

LB

External Parties
IBHERAE

TRAINING
3l

TARGET
EIE

Orientation Training (Headquarter) New employees
AN B35 5| 48 2B iEB

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BT BRI
RMERARREEIHARE ST 12
7B TEE M MM AFRR AN RE
R HREL IR AN

1B B ARRTEB T AR B35 ERY
YHREZ AREY RAR-E—AF
HEREETORIIRE A RIRERE
BEMT

On-site Visit
MHER

Training Course

IR

Others
Hty

SUMMARY OF TRAINING
BEINBE

Introduction of our Group's vision,
mission, culture, organizational structure,
rules and regulations

REE R Fan Xt HEEE R
Bl S AR B 43

Orientation Training (Department)

MBS B E P

New employees

¥iES

Training on operational standards, job
specifications, work procedures and
customer service etiquette for each
department of our Group
REEREBPIEVIRIEER] - TIESAA - TE
MIZFE F RE512 &

S
Svi

=l
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TRAINING TARGET SUMMARY OF TRAINING

=3 HR B E

Comprehensive Training on Third- All employees Comprehensive training on basic

party Payment *RES knowledge, laws and regulations and daily
F=AZ[EREE operation regarding Third-party Payment

BHEE= X MHOERMB EZEMER
KB EEENGEEEI

Management Training Management Team Training specific to the management team
EEEE E 12 E B Bx on building effective coaching techniques;

mastering problem analysis and decision
making; strengthening interpersonal
skills; and recognizing team success with
enthusiasm.

EMHEERERRER *ﬁxﬁlﬁh%ﬁ

Il 2RO RORFIF 1R AR
ERIT: REVE %E/I%BZIJJ B AR A 5 IR

15
English Course All employees Training on current English use
m:l n%%EE 7\1&331 {EE E' ++ ;ﬁ J|
Recruitment Training Management Team Course from the understanding of the
BERARTEI E 18 IZ B Bx tasks involved with running a profitable

desk through to successful selling,
developing client relationships, essential
legislation and attracting and interviewing
quality candidates

W REEBENABHNRMER 2 IBHEE
RINHE BREPBEFE BB EEREKS
PV AEEER-F 3= YN:F =

Training on Interpersonal Skills All employees Course for employees to overcome
AR BBEFETTIAR TREER workplace obstacles by strategically

applying interpersonal communication
skills to persuade and negotiate their way
to positive results.

B REE M D E AR FW%%L&E%HE
T YEAR AR R - 37T R0 AR M B i LA R4S
BRI BE TRIZ
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TRAINING TARGET

HE

B3

Security Management of Department of Risk
Third-party Payment Management
FE—AxNezEE = Be2 & 22 FB P

SUMMARY OF TRAINING

BIBE

Training on monitoring, controlling and

preventing suspicious transactions
regarding money-laundering, terrorist

activities, and etc.

S5 I R 1D MO RS - R ERIE
B F A B R SR

All employees

THRES

Fire Safety Training
H = 2

Training on fire prevention and fire escape

KK TBR Ko B e A 15 3

Strategic Departments
and Management
Team

RESERFI B IR B E X

Strategic Conference

RESHTRT &

Insightful educational sessions

on different topics regarding the
development of Chinese payment
industry and online service platform
BAPBEXNITRERRBLEREFEERN
AN[R] 5 e Y 5K S M G

Training on Anti-money Laundering | Department of Risk
Management

e\ B 22 B P

AN

Training of basic knowledge, laws and
regulations, daily operation and related
knowledge about Money- Iaundering
B ZEER BELEREWRLER
A AR A AR A 15 FI

Through comprehensive, diversified and systematic
development mechanism, we broaden the international
perspectives of the talents, deepen their professional
knowledge, strengthen corporate vision and bring out creative
ideas to the everchanging environment.

Work-life Balance

We believe that work-life balance is an abstract idea that
supports the efforts of employees to split their time and energy
between work and the other aspects of their lives. Work-life
balance of our employees is assisted by us to reduce their
stress and unhappiness. Employees who enjoy a good work-life
balance are better equipped to achieve their best performance
and enhance their efficiency. We believe that promoting the
work-life balance is mutually beneficial to our Group and our
employees.
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Anti-corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behaviors and ethical conduct among
our employees, we have adopted our own Code of Ethics
and Anti-corruption Regulations, so as to enable employees’
conducts and behavior to be monitored throughout daily
operations. We perform annual self-evaluation to look at the
implementation of our Code of Ethics and relevant regulations,
the objective of which is to ensure the thoroughness and
consistency in our actual operations and management practices,
with a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of our
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships. We
employ independent auditors to carry out external audits on
our Group, aiming at preventing corruptive behaviors within our
Group through internal supervision and external audits.

Our Group and our employees strictly abide by all relevant laws,
regulations and the Code of Ethics. During fiscal year 2016, our
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant standards, rules, codes and regulations. There were
no complaints of corruption against our Group or any of our
employees during 2016.

Our Community

We strive to build a corporate-community relationship that
promotes harmony, security and prosperity. WWe stay proactive
in fulfilling our responsibilities as a corporate citizen not only the
real community, but also the online community

Service Responsibility
We strive for service excellence across all our business
activities.

Our Group follows the “Administrative Measures for the Online
Payment Business of Non-Banking Payment Institutions”
and proactively discloses required information to the related
regulatory parties. The administrative measures are developed
and set by the PBOC to regulate the online payment business
of non-banking payment institutions, prevent payment risks, and
protect the parties’ lawful rights and interests.

Any customer complaints received will be put on record by
operation team, and will be investigated following internal
complaint management procedures.

RES

RIEREEOHE BT RIERBET
B2 RAA S r# 7 7 B R B 1&G]
AR EMMITRITANE[EA R EETY
REER - RPETFEERFAEARER
SRR BEENEERR HENEHE
BRERMNERZSERERENS =2
—BRETT TP E RRER SN EN
Mg MET KRB HEER - LA ABLZ
BUAD AT AR R BEDE TN TR LB BR
MEE MINEZ BLEAKRERNLRES
TR

g0

R ok

AEBE KRB BRER/AEERED - R
KPR R T RNFHRFEAR K
B NEEEAEBRNRETERNBRIR
& RA STRIRBBIRIER - R =T —RF
A EHEAEEREMEEGEE TR

EHHE

BPEBNBREESNE R2RERNEE
HYEER - HABRBRETES—REXA
RRBREHREB EHENEE-

RBEE
BMBNERMOAERBEE R 2 Bk
7 o

A B0 [ IR 1T S M AR S T 2 7
FRE] RAABEE S RERALR -
EEIERREARBITHEREEAEE
JESRTT MM 60 AR S T 2 R - T A
B R IR B A T8 & AR R R -

PR B E R B PR A i i 2 E B RO 8k I
RAKEAR IR FEIRIRFETHAE
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During the reporting period, we received a total of 4 complaints
which are related to transaction issues such as duplicate
payment, card-loss and fraudulent. All complaints were resolved

R

and settled within one working day.

During the reporting period, there were no substantiated
complaints identified in relation to our clients’ privacy.

R|EHE AEERESHUREBEESE
S ERMRBRFEXFHEBENRF -E
HEARG R — @ T1E B ABR K FfA# -

RIREHEA - BEDHBIER MR AL
K%% aE§ E§§ \ E%% E%f ?Ek Ef% .

Aspect A1: General Disclosure For more details,
EEAT : — = please refer to Page
Emissions 63, 64, 68
23587 Information on: EBESZH15 528
FHBERIBERBHEN RKRTHE5 - EERE | 56364 688
EREEVNELFN:
(@) the policies; and
WK &
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BTHETAGERTENEBER LR
B E o
Aspect A2: General Disclosure For more details,
[EEA2 : — MR = please refer to Page
Use of Resources 63, 64, 65, 66, 67
BIREA Policies on the efficient use of resources, including BHREZHS F2H
energy, water and other raw materials. %63 64 65 66 67
BREREBR (BEER KREMRME)OBEE | B
Aspect A3: General disclosure For more details,
EHEAS : — R EE please refer to Page
The Environment and 63, 64, 67 68
Natural Resources Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact EHEZIE F2H
RIBERRAEIR on the environment and natural resources. %6364 67 *68A
BRBEITAHRBERRAERERERZENBER -
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RIRHERERE

R

Aspect B1: General Disclosure For more details,
EBMmB1 : — R = please refer to
Employment Page 69, 70, 71
=4 Information on: BHEEZFE FH2H
BRENTRIENER 286970 718
(@) the policies; and
BR: &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHBITABEATENHEBERNER
Aspect B2: General Disclosure For more details,
JEMB2 : — MR = please refer to
Health and Safety Page 71, 74
feRET s Information on: BEHEZFHE F2H
BRANTEENER: E71 748
(@) the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETABEATENHEBERINER
Aspect B3: General disclosure For more details,
JEHEB3 : — A EE please refer to
Development and Page 72, 73, 74
Training Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills | B E %1% ' 52 H
BERKE for discharging duties at work. Description of training | 672 ~73 ~ 748

activities.
EBRAEERITT LIERE M A KRR BUR - it
BHIEE) -

EAIN A AR T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIEHERERE

R

BEEIA R ITEN

(@) the policies; and

BUR ]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BTHBITABEATENHEBERNER

BB -

Aspect B4: General disclosure For more details,
JEHEBS : — = please refer to
Labor Standards Page 69, 71
TR Information on: BHEEZFE H2H
BEMIEE TR H %5 T : $69 718
(@) the policies; and
R &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
BTHETAGERTENEBERRER
B E#f o
Aspect B6: General Disclosure For more details,
JEHBG : — R = please refer to
Service Page 75, 76
Responsibility Information on: EHEZFIE H2H
RIS E(E FHMRHERMNBRBOREREZE BS RE K | 75 768
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REHERERRS

Aspect B7: General Disclosure For more details,

EBmB7 : — = please refer to

Anti-corruption Page 75

R&F Information on: BHEEZFE H2H
BRI ILRRES B1R  BFF RO R EN 758

(@) the policies; and

BUR - ]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BTHBEITABEAZENERERENER

Aspect BS8: General Disclosure For more details,

B MBS : — R = please refer to
Community Page 75

Investment Policies on community engagement to understand the | B E Z %15 B L H
MHEKE needs of the communities where the issuer operates | 758

and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
FENHEZERTHETALENELRTENME
REFBEHSERBLERNEAVBER

RERIN XA EREARAF 79
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERES

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Innovationpay Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 88 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described
in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs set out below,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
BUZHERES

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
goodwill with carrying amount of HK$653,432,000 was
allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") of Third Party
Payment Services and the carrying amount of the CGU was
assessed for impairment by management. The recoverable
amount of the CGU was determined based on value in use
calculations. The Group prepared cash flow forecasts for a
five year period based on the assumption that the CGU would
experience significant growth rates in revenues during the
forecast period. Management considered that the forecast
revenues would be achieved because, among other factors,
the Group expected there would be a synergetic effect upon
its strategic development of its Third Party Payment Services
segment.

However, the historical performance of Third Party Payment
Services has not met the Group’s forecast revenues in the
past. Although we have been provided with a business plan, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
assess the appropriateness of the assumptions related to the
growth in revenues during the forecast period after considering
the historical track record of Third Party Payment Services
CGU and the absence of other supporting evidence. Any
adjustments found to be necessary to the assumptions related
to the growth in revenues during the forecast period would
have a consequential effect on the recoverable amount of the
CGU. Any impairment losses arising as a result of the revised
assumptions would have an effect on the Group's net assets as
at 31 December 2016, the net loss for the year then ended and
the disclosure related to impairment losses in the consolidated
financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. WWe are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

REZREE

WMasRE W B m R M GE20FT & BREE
653,432,000 L s B ENEEF =A%
MR zESELESEN ([REEEEM])
BReELBNRABECHAEEERBE
ER R - ReELBUZ KB SEDR
BEAEBEFEEE EBESERERNER
& E A B TR R B R S S s xw
iaﬁi%ﬁiﬂiﬁﬁzfﬁimﬁﬁ ElJ E. f? Z R
R BAER(EFRefE) BESEEHHEZE=
ARG DEEZEREIER S MM
B BRIE AR S g Rl E R o

R £=ZTXNRB2BERBRLRE
M BEEEZBEERARE - #ARMEE
Rt EEECHEFIE AMEZR
3 BEEBEFE=-ITXNEBZBERE

iﬂﬁkf%ﬁﬁéﬂZﬁ%&f‘%%ﬂ
AR RMEE 2B REBANEE B

RIEABEIE R 2 BR2EE L - ARG
Yees IMIBRIBARE 2 B 2 R AVEH 2 (]38

i ﬁﬁﬁﬁi 517 2 P W Bl & B8 s 2R AR
ERE - AREFTRREL 2 ERERE
Bes SEERN_T—RF+-A=t—

AZEEHRE BEZALFEZERFR
KEGEVBHRRABEREEH KBS

> B2 48R
rEC

CERBEEBEMASRMANE EET
I ([BEFFER ) #ETEZ - TERZ
ERETHEER K MRS ZBA T EZ
%m%$ﬁﬁmﬁﬁmfﬁ B — 05
wwﬁﬁlaﬁ%“Am%i ETROEE
SFRI(T=FRI)) - BEBLR E5E ¥E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
BUZHARES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all of the information included in
the 2016 annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section above, we are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying amount of
goodwill and impairment losses on goodwill, if any. Accordingly,
we are unable to conclude whether or not the Other
Information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred loss from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$210,128,000 and operating cash outflow
before working capital changes of HK$113,861,000 during the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank
balances included HK$98,295,000 restricted bank balance for
the purpose of settlement obligation. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

BUZHERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the

BARE X %IE
FREZFESBTSNERAE+ FRA
HiR AR Wﬁﬁ%$réxm$ﬁ”£“

BERERRAMBERR MUK E RFRE
BHERE MIAEREEFHEEBERE
R-BREEREENEFELLHENE
AT EERKRMAERIN BEFEH MLE
ETEE RN ESREARBENEREZE

Basis for Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty Related e
to Going Concern sections, we have determined the matter
described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated

in our report.

Key Audit Matter
BERERSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENBERNNEEARERSEE

Valuation of contingent consideration payables

BARARKERE

Refer to notes 7 32 and 39(c) to the consolidated
financial statements

H2EL AT HRERM 7 - 32%39(c)

The Group has acquired certain businesses in prior
periods. Part of the consideration payable for these
businesses was contingent on the achievement of
specified performance targets in future periods as
detailed in note 39(c). The contingent consideration
payables are measured at fair value with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value measurement is categorised as level 3 as
it uses significant unobservable inputs in particular
estimates of future operating performance of the
acquired businesses. Management has engaged an
independent external valuer to assess the fair values
of these consideration payables.
EEECRNBENMAREE TER - ZEEBK 2
MENREEARNAKMEERARRBZRR A
1EE (A sE39(c)aFil) - BN SAREBIR A FERT
B EAQATEEHREBERER ARAFAERT
AR AR (CHEWEREBAREERTZ
fEt) MAVEFEDBARAS -EEECEZRESE
MHMNEEEMT AR ERNREZATE.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of contingent
consideration payables included:

EEAMENIARELENEFERE:

- Evaluating the independent external valuers’

competence, capabilities and objectivity;
—  FHEBEIMNEGERREF B REEIL

- Assessing, with the assistance of our in-house

valuation experts, the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and the integrity of the
calculations adopted in the valuation report;

and
-  EANHEEERNHBES THEBESEANEE
MR ERSTEMNTTENTESE: &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHARES

Key Audit Matter
BREXEBIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERNEEBRERSE

The valuation of contingent consideration payables -
involves significant management judgements
including whether and to what extent the acquired
businesses will meet the specified performance
targets. —
ENSAREBMHELSREREREHE  SEMKE
XS BERIARRERREREE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FORTHE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the acquired businesses and their historic
performance and future plans.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

BB B AR S M RR AR
MEE

EENERRAERTEREAVBHRRE
B BN AEF e R T BB LR E AL
AR TR B AESFERNZBERE
E-BEREBEAFRE-NN\—F (RFDE)
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HtMg - HEFL TR AHmEE AR REM
ALTAZEEFHEZER-

REEEBSERNZE ETRERRES
BRBERETNEZ TIEEEERMATT
FERE RS RRIR AL  #5 3R B RLJR I HRRE =X
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHARES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

86

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chris Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HV—F }Eﬁﬂ-ﬂj—%
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE_Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
2016 2015
—E—REF —HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHETT
(Represented)
(K&&E7)
Continuing operations FHEREER
Revenue W sk 8 80,182 97068
Cost of sales & A AN (56,227) (71,468)
Gross profit EF 23,955 25,600
Other income HAth g A 9 24,946 15,021
Selling expenses HEEM (16,917) (27378)
Administrative expenses THHX (125,040) (100,621)
Equity-settled share-based payments AR AE 4 B IR ) 2 T 5B (48,415) (57548)
Loss from operations RemE (141,471) (144,926)
Finance costs BhE R AR 11 - (15)
(Loss)/gain on fair value change of RS AREBEAFEEE
contingent consideration payables (B18) W 32 (70,984) 13,155
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 (12,301) (4,641)
Loss before tax BRBLATE B (224,756) (136,427)
Income tax credit/(expense) FisRiEe, (%) 12 242 (2,556)
Loss for the year from continuing REFEREEKZ
operations FRER 13 (224,514) (138,983)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued BERIEREFEBE 2
operations FAEE 16 (4,383) (21,588)
Loss for the year TKEEEE (228,897) (160,571)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

ENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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HE-_T—RE+-A=T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-—RE —ZE—HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHET
(Represented)
(reE)
Attributable to: BT AL
Owners of the Company RARHEA A
— Continuing operations —FEREERS (210,128) (132,5636)
— Discontinued operations — BRI EFER (4,294) (21,282)
(214,422) (153,818)
Non-controlling interests eI AR A
— Continuing operations —FEREERS (14,386) (6,447)
— Discontinued operations — BRI EFER (89) (306)
(14,475) (6,753)
(228,897) (160,571)
HK cents HK cents
AL S
Loss per share BRER 17
From continuing and discontinued REFEME KL
operations R
Basic AR (3.53) (2.71)
Diluted g N/ARER NATES
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic R (3.46) (2.33)
Diluted e N/ATREBA NATER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

|-:|_|:|
%WSE

m R HMEER AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE_Z-—RE+T_A=1T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-—RE —ZE—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
(Represented)
(#eE3)
Loss for the year REEFE (228,897) (160,571)
Other comprehensive income: Ht2HEBKA :
Items that may be reclassified to ABEET 7 E1Ba 2R -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINEBZELEZRE
foreign operations (64,323) (42,459)
Exchange differences reclassified RSB ERREFRDER
to profit or loss on disposals EEmCERERE
of foreign operations 2,998 -
Other comprehensive income FREMZERA  HKRHE
for the year, net of tax (61,325) (42,459)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZHEBARE (290,222) (203,030)
Attributable to: LT AL
Owners of the Company ZINNEIEF DN
— Continuing operations —FEKEER (271,453) (174,995)
— Discontinued operations —ERIEREER (4,294) (21,282)
(275,747) (196,277)
Non-controlling interests eI AR A =
— Continuing operations —BEREHER (14,386) (6,447)
— Discontinued operations —ERIEREER (89) (306)
(14,475) (6,753)
(290,222) (203,030)
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AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
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o

ENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

WZZE-—RF+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T—I1F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE R&E 18 12,882 15,308
Intangible assets BILEE 19 7,154 9,758
Long term deposits RHEZS 26 3,978 24,531
Goodwill EES 20 653,432 707,508
Investments in associates REtE RNRIZIRE 22 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRERE 23 100,620 110,002
Deposits for investments KER® 41,45 35,723 -
813,789 867107
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 3,153 1,941
Trade receivables JE YRR 3R 25 20,507 43,182
Prepayments, deposits and other TEMRIE e RHEM
receivables eI SR 26 54,218 31,994
Amount due from an associate JE Y — FET Bt 2 2 Bl kIR 22 3,349 -
Amounts due from non-controlling JiE Lk Bt /BB X B) FE 4 IR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries IR 27 855 215
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 28 185,422 236,608
267504 313,940
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JERTBR K 29 2,418 3,744
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A I H fth FE 1~ 5B 30 120,033 38,787
Amounts due to non-controlling XN ENGIE 203
shareholders of subsidiaries A 31 - 776
Amount due to a director EN—RESFIA 31 3 1,003
Current tax liabilities HAIERE 2,453 2,639
Contingent consideration payables FERT SRR E 32 40,278 19,667
Financial guarantee BB HEIR 33 23,756 41,365
188,941 107981
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AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
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ENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZE—R"FF+—A=1+—H

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZE—HHF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 3T FExT FETT

Net current assets REBEEFE 78,563 205,959

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE 892,352 1,073,066
Non-current liabilities E135 k=K

Contingent consideration payables JER SRR E 32 33,582 -

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 34 441 749

34,023 749

NET ASSETS EERE 858,329 1,072,317
Capital and reserves BERK#E

Share capital &N 35 60,993 60,158

Reserves i 37 781,811 984,462

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

ARrEA AEEER

FEFER M 2R

ERARE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Guan Guisen

BEARALE
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15,5625 27697

858,329 1,072,317

RZE—+tF=A=-+/\BLKEZEH
B RHTIEEREREE:

Mr. Cao Chunmeng
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

BHE—

Attributable to owners of the Company

—RE+ZA=T-RLEE

ANABEAER
Share Share Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option Warrant  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
) BRE ARER ) FER
BA ROEEE EXGEE EERE ENRE R #E REFR AF BR RRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThET TR TR TR TR FiEn Fign TFign TFign Fign TFiEn
At 1 January 2015 S e = 56,055 991,322 (2,850) 9,877 69,775 8,402 139 (110,898) 1,021,822 6,502 1,028,324
Total comprehensive income FREAHNNEE
for the year - - - - (42,459) B - (153818)  (196,277) (6,753)  (203,030)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATRE - - - 21 - - - (21) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries E-10) NG
(Note 39(c)) (Fi5E39(c)) - - - - - - - - - 27732 27732
Acquisition of non-controlling UG- ERuie 33
interests (Note 39(d)) (FIzE39(d)) - - - - - - - (228) (228) 216 (12)
Issued from placing RERT 3,000 118,191 - - - - - - 121,191 - 121,191
Issued from warrants AREEE - - - - - - 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Exercise of warrants TRRRER 800 31,339 - - - - (139 - 32,000 - 32,000
Exercise of share options TFBRE 303 10,623 - - - (3,362) - - 7564 - 7564
Share-based payments LGRS - - - - - 57548 - - 57548 - 57548
Release upon lapse of share options PR AR 2K ES R - - - - - (982) - 982 - - -
Changes in equity for the year FRERE 4103 160,153 - 21 (42,459) 53,204 861 (153,085 22,798 21,195 43,993
At 31 December 2015 _? ﬂﬁ* A
= 60158 1151475 (2850 9898 27316 61606 1000  (63983) 1044620 27697 1072317
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—xE—-F—H 60,158 1,151,475 (2,850) 9,898 27316 61,606 1,000 (263,983) 1,044,620 27697 1,072,317
Total comprehensive income FR2ERALEE
for the year - - - - (61,325) - - (214,422 (275,747) (14,475)  (290,222)
Deregistration of a subsidiary Bl VNS - - 1733 - - - - (1,733) - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests % EE 3£ 12k Eéfm - - - - - - - - - 544 544
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBA - - - - - - - - - 1759 1,759
Issued for contingent EﬁZWﬂEWﬁ%ﬁ
consideration shares 463 15,741 - - - - - - 16,204 - 16,204
Exercise of share options TR 372 13,081 - - - (4,141) - - 9,312 - 9,312
Share-based payments i 7R - - - - 48415 - - 48,415 - 48,415
Release upon lapse of share options 1 1 S 2B R 1% - - - - - (2,442) - 2,442 - - -
Changes in equity for the year FRERZ 835 28822 1,733 - (61,325) 41832 - 13713 01818)  (12172)  (213,988)
At 31 December 2016
60,993 1,180,297 (1,117) 9,898 (34,009 103,438 1,000 (477696) 842,804 15,525 858,329
FREAHNXAEBERRAT 93
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTREBMK

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z-—RE+T_A=1T—HILFE

2016 2015
=E-XRE —T—1F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHExT FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHEHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI EE
Continuing operations HEEEER (224,756) (136,427)
Discontinuing operations R IEEEETE (4,383) (21,588)
(229,139) (158,015)
Adjustments for: AT ZIBFE
Interest income FEMA 9 (2,907) (7163)
Amortisation of financial WBERE Q8 H
guarantee contract 9 (15,592) (6,762)
Amortisation of intangible assets HMiHEVEE 19 1,971 4,195
(Reversal of impairment)/ FE (RERD),/
impairment of inventories BB 9 (137) 1,494
Finance costs A& A A 11 - 15
Loss/(gain) on fair value change of JERT S ARERFE
contingent consideration payables 2EEE () 7(b) 70,984 (13,155)
Depreciation e 18 5,649 3,181
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net ~ HEMB AR Z W
R 13,16 (3,633) -
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEME  BWE M&E
plant and equipment (Wz=) B8 13 (1) 15
Equity-settled share-based payments R E R DS FIE 48,415 57548
Property, plant and equipment WEH Y 2 BB MR
written off 18 7 -
Intangible assets written off WMHELEE 19 - 308
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 19 - 1,635
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 12,301 4,641
Allowance for trade receivables JFE W BR SR B 25 - 3,522
Reversal of allowance for JFE LT AR R R 8 )
trade receivables 16,25 (612) (226)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for ~ FE1 318 K H At
prepayment and other receivables FEMERIA (R E)
V& 26 (1,167) 25,067
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERETRERK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z—XRFt+ZA=+—HIFE
2016 2015
=E-XRE —T—1F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
[ihg=d FHExT FHETT
Operating loss before working capital ~ 2&& & E&E12
changes REBE (113,861) (83,700)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FE (gm,m (994) 3,335
Decrease in trade receivables JrE U BR SO A 21,432 13,115
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, ENFIE ek
deposits and other receivables H b e W kIR
(3, wd (31,069) 13,754
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables  FEFBRFIE N, (&
4) 533 (8,212)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and TEREARHMER
other payables FIEE N, CRL ) 86,837 (12,304)
Cash used in operations KEMARS (37122) (74,012)
Interest received B F & 2,610 1,685
Income tax paid EAFTEH (146) (1,025)
Net cash used in operating activities KE R TR F5E (34,658) (73,352)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAME BB M&E
equipment 18 (4,680) (10,873)
Advance to an associate BLENEIE-E N (3,500) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HWEREFE
plant and equipment FriS50R 7 6
Proceeds from disposals of available-for & A] {1 & Bf 75 & &
sale financial assets Fr1S 3R 464 -
Additions to intangible assets RNEEBFEE 19 (147) -
Additions of available-for-sale REAHEEVBEE
financial assets - (2,453)
Acquisition of subsidiaries UK &R B A R 39(c) - (6,206)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA 39(a)&(b) (2,993) -
Deposits for investments KERS 41, 45 (35,723) -
Decrease in long term deposits REZ S 20,553 3,750
Loans to third parties KTE=ZFER (27,998) (15,402)
Received from loans to third parties WHETE=FERK 39,081 24,027
Net cash used in investing activities "B EEFTAAEFE (14,936) (7151)

FEANXARERRAE | 95

—TNEE

—=

4&&\

\

\
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ENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_Z-—RE+T_A=1T—HILFE

2016 2015
=E-RE —T—IF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
lbg=3 FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETERHEERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EATH & - (15)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B FE42 A #E 25 39(d) - (12)
(Payment to)/advance from non- FEVERR AR R (3R 8K

controlling shareholders (1,416) 110
Repayment of borrowings EEBER - (625)
Net proceeds from unlisted warrant FE E T RRIEFFTF

I FFR - 1,000
Net proceeds from placing B & P15 SR IBF 58 - 121,191
Net proceeds from exercise of warrants 1T{F 2 & 2 FT 15

FIEFER - 32,000
Issue of shares upon the exercise of AT B IR R R B2 1T AR D

share options 9,403 7564
(Payment to)/advance from directors EE (M) /B3 (1,000) 998
Net cash generated from BMEEBMERSFE

financing activities 6,987 162,211
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReERBESEEY (BD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Y vb:E (42,607) 81,708
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& X&) & (8,579) (7.695)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HBzZBHERK

AT 1 JANUARY REZEEY 236,608 162,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—HA=+—H%2

AT 31 DECEMBER RERAEEEY 185,422 236,608
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND ReERASEEYDIW

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RTINS AERR 185,422 236,608
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 2708, 27/
F The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company's shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM") of the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

HE-_T—RE+-A=T—HILFE

—RER
RARRRBRETIMERILZBRA
a) e M= R AL Canon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda - HF 2L XU NES
2/ KEF95 1 IR .0,27182708
E - RARAIRNETEBERIMAE
PRAR ([BEAIAT]) BIZER £ e

ARBRREER AR EWNBLQF
ZEBRBHNIEEMHRERME
27 °

SERA M B RRIIRIBE B GRTAD
RE ([EBGMAR])BM AR
BERBRBYBHREER ([FBMF
A REL - BEM I REER
BREABUWHHREER ([FEHHH
A - FRGER ([HAFR
R ) KRB - ZFHEAMBERRIT
HEBZAAIER ([B81XR]) &5
EHRRAZERBEBREIREBAR
R (£622F ) 2 HFERME - N HE
RN EREETRN M T4 E -

BB AR EME TR AEE

EREIRE PN GRS
ZHE REERT BB B RE LR -
EZFHREPBHRERP RR AR
& A% & SR SR B A R O R A T 5| 2R
ZAFRIBESTHESAHRRZ
EI 2B F MM ES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
o=

B RS Rk Myt

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

During the reporting period, the Group incurred loss
from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$210,128,000 and
operating cash outflow before working capital changes of
HK$113,861,000. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's
bank balance included HK$98,295,000 restricted bank
balance for the purpose of settlement obligation. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, therefore, it may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as the directors considered that the Group is able to
generate sufficient cash flows from operations and fund
raising in the foreseeable future to meet its current and
future obligations. Having taken into account the above,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet in full its
working capital requirements and financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate
the carrying amounts of the assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Of
these, the following new or revised HKFRSs are
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify, rather
than significantly change, existing HKAS 1
requirements. The amendments clarify various
presentation issues relating to:

o Assessment of materiality versus minimum
disclosure requirements of a standard.

° Disaggregation of specific line items in
the statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the statement
of financial position. There is also new
guidance on the use of subtotals.

° Confirmation that the notes do not need to
be presented in a particular order.

° Presentation of other comprehensive
income items arising from equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures.

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’'s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

HE_Z—

RETZA=+—HLEFE

3. ERMIETREEITERMBER

wE

(a)

A

FERRR] RAEISET B R
WEER
FREGHAGERMZER
—E-RF-RB-HINER
B2 FEHEERERZFHET
KMBIEBRBMBEHREER - H
AR HETRT S ERT BB R
BrmE EA AR E AR

BB BRI E 1A
ZEH FEMEREZEE A
FRGEFBIRZEFTA
BRHRITERB ST ERE R
ZHE MEHEMEREAR
BoRETHNIZEEZRE
TR

. HERMEMFHERIR
EHHZEREREZ
;Jzo

. YR Rk EAM 2 E K
AR BB BEARREKALZ
KEBRB -HEER/ND
At eS|

. HERR P S B R 1R E B
FF251 e

. RERSERE ZBE

NEIRAERRZEM

FAEWEEAMES -

BUEZFUCE S AN R BN AR
[ 3B 1 B 2 648 M B AR
MZRHERETN T ABREK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—Z—AF+-B=+—HLFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI REETTEEBHBR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (conta)

(b)

2R (#)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but (b) EEMERERER TR
not yet effective RIETEBMBREER

The Group has not early applied new and revised RZE—RFE—A—HRAKZ
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet MREE ASEETEREFRE
effective for the financial year beginning on 1 FREMEMEMRER 2T R
January 2016. These new and revised HKFRSs KIERTEBM G RE LR 3%
included the following which may be relevant to A REEFTB BB WS
the Group. R BIETY e AEERE

B o

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

R BHIS
LBt 2

S HEER

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative

BERENETRBESRER  THUREZETA

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

FAGERFI2RABER  ARERBERRBERAEE BN

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BN HRELERESREMTEA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

EEMBHREENZ SRR ATPLANZ K

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment:
Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

FEWBREENE2H/BN M BN R B2 DB REFTEZERT A

HKFRS 16 Leases
BERMERELEAFEI65HEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 He—_Z—XRF+-_A=1+—HItFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. AT REETEBMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING EHER (#)
STANDARDS (cont'a)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but (b) EEMERRERZIITR
not yet effective (Contad) RIS EBMBREER
(%)
The Group is in the process of making an REE FTAZSIEET RFET
assessment of what the impact of these ZERIJPA B X FE A BRI 7B BRAS 2R
amendments and new standards is expected to be MBS ANEB D HAIH
in the period of initial application. So far the Group FIERINE T E AR ERE
has identified some aspects of the new standards MBBRREXNEATE-EH
which may have a significant impact on the TBHIREME—TFBRTX
consolidated financial statements. Further details it o AR AR B i R T H
of the expected impacts are discussed below. G AR E R R EE R (R
As the Group has not completed its assessment, BRE—FTE

further impacts may be identified in due course.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BB &R E 95 %
TA

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial ZERMARE B2 ERIFE39
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. RemMIHE - BRKFE-

The standard introduces a new approach to the LERIGE SR E E 2 S| AT
classification of financial assets which is based on F%E ERREREFBLF
cash flow characteristics and the business model BEEMFEBEXET SN
in which the asset is held. A debt instrument WBREHNRERERBNZE
that is held within a business model whose BEAFBEZEBIA kiE
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows BB BINAE RHARER
and that has contractual cash flows that are solely KEeMEZEHNREREZE
payments of principal and interest on the principal BILAE SREHEKAGE
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt B 8RR KERE IR e
instrument that is held within a business model ERHETAZEBREXF#H
whose objective is achieved by both collecting the BZEBIERE ARERMRE
contractual cash flows and selling the instruments RINAEREREEREZ
and that has contractual cash flows that are solely FMEZEAREREZEBTL
payments of principal and interest on the principal BB ATEGFAREMEER
outstanding is measured at fair value through other WastE-MEEMEB LA
comprehensive income. All other debt instruments BREBHERFEFE RN
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. TA—RBBBRE A FER
Equity instruments are generally measured at E-AM BRAUZERTAR
fair value through profit or loss. However, an ERERTAHEAERE £
entity may make an irrevocable election on an WIFEEE ZRATAENUR
instrument-by-instrument basis to measure equity FEFARMEEKRE

instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
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3.

102

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

The requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities are carried
forward largely unchanged from HKAS 39 except
that when the fair value option is applied changes
in fair value attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognised in other comprehensive income
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss
impairment model to replace the incurred-loss
impairment model in HKAS 39. It is no longer
necessary for a credit event or impairment trigger
to have occurred before impairment losses
are recognised. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, an entity will generally
recognise 12-month expected credit losses. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, an entity will recognise
lifetime expected credit losses. The standard
includes a simplified approach for trade receivables
to always recognise the lifetime expected credit
losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are
carried forward largely unchanged.

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge
accounting requirements in HKAS 39 to align
hedge accounting more closely with risk
management and establish a more principle based
approach.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

The new expected credit loss impairment model
in HKFRS 9 may result in the earlier recognition
of impairment losses on the Group's trade
receivables and other financial assets. The Group is
unable to quantity the impact until a more detailed
assessment is completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards
and interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity
recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
goods and services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to become entitled in exchange for those
goods and services.

BE-F-RET-A=+ALEE

3. ERMEETREEITERMBR

wE

(b)

Al &)

C AR 1B 8 AR AE U2 HTRT I
RIERT B RN B R EER

(#4)

BB IR R %
TA(#&)
BB WE LR FW 2
BHEEEEREER ATRA
RAEEEHERBERRE
theMEEZ REBE A&
BT E A2 FE%'S
AEtEEyE-

BB IR BRI F 155K A
EFP &R W

BRY RS ERF 165N
FIERBE W ERI MR-

AR 2 R B B HER
Wa A RS 2 EEE
K BR#% - % & BRI BB IR X
BB BRZEFEY R
5 AR E 2 ALME
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

104

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont'd)

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with
the core principle by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive
disclosure requirements relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 15 on the consolidated financial
statements but unable to estimate the impact of
the new standard on the consolidated financial
statements until a more detailed analysis is
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
(with optional exemptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors
in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating
or financing leases.

The Group's office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16
the Group may need to recognise and measure a
liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding
right-of-use asset for these leases. The interest
expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or
loss. The Group's assets and liabilities will increase
and the timing of expense recognition will also be
impacted as a result.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

106 |

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

As disclosed in note 42, the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for its office properties amounted
to HK$30,175,000 as at 31 December 2016.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed
assessment in order to determine the new
assets and liabilities arising from these operating
leases commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. contingent consideration payables).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company's share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE I ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-T—AF+-ASH+—ALFRE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFHBEE)
(Cont’d)
(a) Consolidation (Conta) (a) #ZGREKRE (&)

108/

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Conta)

Changes in the Company’'s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

110/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont'd)

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont'd)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups
of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(c)

Associates (Cont'a)

Investments in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’'s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Cont'd)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that associate
and (ii) the Group's entire carrying amount of that
associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated exchange reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Conta)

(ii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(i11)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve.
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116/

(d)

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Conta)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'a)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
and estimated useful
lives, being no more than
20 years after the date of
completion

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office  10% — 33%

equipment
Motor vehicles 20% — 25%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation

method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI RE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(g) Other intangible assets

(1) Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group's
e-business development is recognised only if
all of the following conditions are met:

- The technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

- Management intends to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

- There is ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

- [t can be demonstrated how the
intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- Adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

- The expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(g) Other intangible assets (Contd)

(1)

(i)

(iif)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software (Cont'd)

Internally generated intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.
Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — technology
know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — customer
relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.
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4.

120/

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(j)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of
a financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the financial assets within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
and available-forsale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are either financial assets classified as
held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these
financial assets are recognised in profit or
loss.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREIBEK (&)
(Cont'd)
(j) Financial assets (Contd) ) MBEEEGE)

(i) Loans and receivables (i)  BAREWNE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERREWHKIBEES
financial assets with fixed or determinable EEHXABEFTNRZ
payments that are not quoted in an ENTETEMBEE
active market. These assets are carried at HIwEERmIGHRE-
amortised cost using the effective interest ZEBEREHEK A
method (except for short-term receivables BEBRFEE (FEBM
where interest is immaterial) minus any T BB AG B FE R IE
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. B ) Rk A 17D Rk 18 B R
Typically trade and other receivables, bank AT EIRIBRTE
balances and cash are classified in this —RE 5 R EHME WK
category. HRITESR KBRS

DEAILER -

(i) Held-to-maturity investments (i) FHEERIBZKE

122

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
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e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BEE-Z—R"Et+-_A=1+—HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFHBEE)
(Cont’d)
(j) Financial assets (Contd) ) MBEEEGE)
(iv)  Available-for-sale financial assets (iv) AERHESFEEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are not
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve, until
the investments are disposed of or there is
objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(k)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group (i.e. the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group) that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREBEK (&)
(Cont'd)
(m) Discontinued operations (Cont'd) (m) BRIEKEER &)

(n)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the component meets
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS b5, if earlier. It also occurs
when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the statement of
profit or loss, which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued
operation.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out in notes (o) to (s) below.
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4.

126/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair value and are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the guarantee contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Contingent consideration payable
Contingent consideration payable is classified
as a financial liability or equity according to the
definitions in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The amount is initially measured
at fair value. Contingent consideration payable
classified as equity is not remeasured and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration payable classified
as a liability is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenues from the sales of finished goods
are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_ZT-—RE+T_A=T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREBEK (&)
(Cont’d)
(t) Revenue recognition (Cont'd) ) WEER#E)

(i) Card transaction levies represent service (i) FTRIHEBEAEEIR
fee charged by the Group to contracted BRERARBEFIEHE
merchants at specific rates on the monetary AREREEZHEE
value of consumptions made by cardholder B RETLEERELD
settled using the stored value cards in the EPWEZ RFEE -+
merchants’ stores. Card transaction levies ROBWERZERHE
are recognised as these transactions occur. HRFRER

(i) Card handling and service charges consist (i) FFEERREEBIE
of monthly maintenance fees on expired HUmAR RS o #
unused balances, new card handling R& -FRFEE (A0
charges, net of discount or waivers, and BRITIIS AR ) R E AL
other customer services charges. The EFPRBEE -®EAE
monthly maintenance fees are recognised R AR R &R
when the fees are deducted from the RHNBRER I ~F
unused balances at each month end. The BENBRABBEHNR
new card handling charges are recognised iR o H M % = AR 7%
when a card buyer purchases a new card. BRIR ARG R o
Other customer services are recognised
when the services are rendered.

(iv)  Consultancy income is recognised when the (iv) BRI ARIEE R
service is rendered and on the basis of stage R 15 = E R 518 B ST
of completion of each individual project, FEER MR WP R 2
provided that the costs involved can be FXANZERER] SERT & o R
measured reliably. The stage of completion S TERBER2RICS
of a transaction is established by reference RIEEEE 2 AR L
to the costs incurred to date as compared BR G ZIEETRRARZ
to the estimated total costs under the LE & M HETE o
transaction.

(v)  Commission income is recognised when the v) AEBRARERREE
service is rendered. MR

(vi)  Interest income is recognised on a time- i) FEWALAEBRF =X
proportion basis using the effective interest 12055 [ L ) HE AR o
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(u) Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

(i11)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

130/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE-Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 EREFBE#Z)
(Cont'd)
(y) Taxation (Contd) (y) BiE#E)
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between BB E M BERERAE

132 |

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(y)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(z) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating
unit. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating
unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit
and then pro rata amongst the other assets of
the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes
in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBREIHBE®)
(Cont'd)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (aa) BB EERE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are
impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost is considered also to
be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses
them collectively for impairment, based on the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4.

136/

(aa)

(bb)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Conta)
For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
in a subsequent period and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account
for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost
of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(cc) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$12,882,000 (2015: HK$15,308,000).

HE_Z—

RETZA=t—HLEFE

BEARESTEE #)

(cc)

BEHEERSER
REBREAKENRE RN
MZBINER B RFELE
RERILNE R 2 fs HERE
HYBRABREER INEA
BT 3R R A AR il 32 IF 58 B
FRZREHHERERBEE
R BIRER & B 15 ¥R 3R MY 2
B

HEF T RERR 2 EEZRIR

TXRwmABARZEBZRENRK
SHRRGF I EERARZEMER
KR Mz FERZRMRREBEKE
B RABHAHT —ERFEE
ENBBEZRAEFLEAFER:

(a)

M BERREARTE

AEBEBEETEME BFE AR
w2 st Al B RIERE
BREBITERX - &b
HERINEREZME BE
Ko 5t B R T R A B S Rk
BEZBEERAEE fHA
1 A B R FIREE ST AT A
AR REERETINER
S SRR D RE 2%
M@ RS S IERRE B

R-_E—XRNF+—_A=+—
H-YWE BELEXEBEZERER
B %) /512,882,000 7T (—F
— 4 115,308,000/ 7T ) °

FEAFXARERRAE | 137

T NFFER \

\

\



o o o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. MM THERZZEERR

UNCERTAINTY (conta) (&)

(b) Intangible assets and amortisation (b) EBFEEERBESHE
The Group determines the estimated useful rEBEEASERLEEZ
lives and related amortisation for the Group's fhat Al A EF HA SR AE R 4 8 -
intangible assets. The useful lives of intangible B EE Pl AFERRE
assets are assessed to be finite, based on the HAZEIEEBEEMSH KK
expected usage and technical obsolescence from R IRM < BB AT B B 2 B ilT
the changes in the market demands or services wE - AHARERFH-AR
output from the assets. Intangible assets with RAIEAFH B EENRTE
finite useful lives are amortised over the expected HAfE AR 48 B F B A 8 - 0
useful economic lives and assessed for impairment TRERE AEMEEEE
whenever there is an indication that the intangible fa] R 2 & EE Pl B B BUE 2 D
assets may be impaired. The amortisation period R BRESLREREREH
and the amortisation method for the intangible S BR EBRAFEAS
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the HA 2 & B 2 BB HR S R
management at least at the end of each reporting bz
period.
The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 RZE—RF+=ZRA=+—
December 2016 was approximately HK$7154,000 H &8FEE2REBENR
(2015: HK$9,758,000). 7154,0008 T (ZE —HF:

9,758,000/ 7T.)

(c) Income taxes (c) FREM
Significant estimates are required in determining EEMETHEBERAZEXR
the provision for income taxes. There are many et -RAEEKBERFLE
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate AR EEEEREME IR
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary REtB -BEZFFHIRKER
course of business. Where the final tax outcome HEREY SRR 2R A R
of these matters is different from the amounts B ZERBErERELER
that were initially recorded, such differences will RTE B 2 PS8 MR ER I8
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions BE-FAN REELEED
in the period in which such determination is made. ZIEETRAFTEZMETREE
During the year, HK$242,000 (2015: HK$2,556,000 242,000 L (ZE—HF:
expense) of income tax credit was recognised in 2,556,000/ 7T ) B A 1B 2 A g
profit or loss based on the estimated profit from R
continuing operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Conta)

(d)

(e)

Recoverability of internally-generated
intangible asset

During the vyear, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its internally-generated intangible
asset arising from the Group’'s e-business
development, which is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December
2016 with carrying value of HK$2,999,000 (2015:
HK$3,724,000). The project continues to progress
in a very satisfactory manner, and customer
reaction has reconfirmed the Group’s previous
estimates of anticipated revenues from the project.
However, increased competitor activity has caused
the Group to reconsider its assumptions regarding
future market shares and anticipated margins
on these products. This situation will be closely
monitored, and adjustments would be made in
future periods, if future market activity indicates
that such adjustments are appropriate.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

HE_Z—

RETZA=t—HLEFE

5. A THRERRZEERR

(%)

(d)

(e)

ABELERLEE ZTWE
%

RER RNEBEFZEERER
EFREBERMSI A E
AR EEZATREN &R
HEESEEE AT E LT
AXREBRR—_ZE—R"F+=
A=+—R2ZHEEHBARR
% BRMEE A2,999,000%
7T (ZZF — R F 3,724,000/
TT) cIEE CEREES NIE
ERE BPIREITB X
BEASBBTFZIEER EH
WaRFTE2 BB A B F
HFXEBETBEBIER L8
REAEFBEFHFEEHLLEIEN
EmzBEMShERLTAH
FEzBRE - NEB R
S REIF N - e R KT 505 B
BREEGEAR AEEK
RBRERIELEEAE-

RIBEMRAEEE

7R E% (B AR 92 T S P R K EL A B
Wk 2 AT B A S 2 B A

BREZEHK I ZABEER
MoBE AR 8  SRIBRRIE
BB B8 © i F 1 eI
SRR R AU E - R
BE AR (B © 3Bl R B (1 A
R E) AR HE R
e HERGERERE HF
EEZR HEZESTERR
fhEr LR BB FE 2 BUER
Ko EL A MUK Bl T8 B K% R AR B
Fo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. MM THERZZEERR

UNCERTAINTY (conta) (&)

(e) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful (e) FREIERBEEE 2
debts (Cont'd)
As at 31 December 2016, accumulated impairment RZE-—RF+ZA=+—
loss for bad and doubtful debts amounted to H RERRFBEEER
HK$25,017000 from continuing operations (2015: 25,017000%8 7T (ZZ— R %F
HK$28,577,000). 28,577,000/ 7T ) °

(f)  Allowance for slow-moving inventories () FHEEFEERE
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made HIHFERBREFEREKE R
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable st FER SRR EEL o 5T
value of inventories. The assessment of the LB E R KA R hEte
allowance amount involves judgement and finl B 12 B A R BRI ET R
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is FIRR-BIBEAEZEETE L
different from the original estimate, such difference MEET IR EHHEATE 2R
will impact the carrying value of inventories and EERBHRS HE -
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 December 2016, accumulated allowance RZE—RF+A=+—
for slow-moving inventories amounted to A RAFEFEFREER
HK$1,223,000 (2015: HK$1,448,000). 1,223,000 L (ZE—HF:

1,448,000%7T) °

(g) Impairment of goodwill () BERE
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires ErTHEAOREAMGTED
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to EEmEzReELEN A
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in BE- EAEEABER X
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the SEAGTZECELEMNTE
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU HEECRRRESRE W
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate EE 2R XA EHBRE
the present value.
The total carrying amount of goodwill at the end RFEPRR BEZRREE
of the reporting period was HK$653,432,000 /653,432,000 (= —H
(2015: HK$707,508,000) and an impairment % :707508,000/%8 7T ) KA F
loss of HK$12,301,000 (2015: HK$4,641,000) A T 2R B /5 18112,301,0007%8
was recognised during the year. Details of the JL(ZZ — A : 4,641,000
impairment loss calculation are set out in note 20 TL) o BIEEEFE AR
to the consolidated financial statements. R E B SR MIEE20 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B BHRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group entities
had no significant assets or liabilities denominated
in currency other than respective functional
currencies.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables. In order to minimise
credit risk, the directors have delegated
senior management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

—RETZA=T—RLEFE

MEEREE
ﬁ%l%%%@%%%ﬁ%%ﬂm:

HNEE LB - 2 B R
&ﬂ?ﬂ[‘/* $§%@Z%’§f
THEE

mﬁ%ﬁirl
% E g

AN M5 T RFRRME K&

SHKEEHRRERHRBEN B
HEARMEE -

(a)

(b)

SRR
HRARB ALY EBR S

BENBEE IKLAKEI,\EE
D EEATRARE (AR
B EHE BAKEMEAZ 2
SNERBRAT R - AEEBREY
BEREMINER S BERA
18 1 7E SN SR ER - N E
=) e R HMNE BB - 3 R
BERERZEEIFERINEE

Gn o
A

R_E-—RAFR-_FT—RF
t=A=t—8 AgEER
A A 1 B MDA 2
BEHEZ EAAENEE

FEEE
AEEZEERREZRE
HEWES REEREEER
R EFZCZESAEEA
E-REEEEERE FE
B R EAMERERF MM
EETHERRENESE
1% 2 AU Bl R IR - HEAR BE AN AT
Yol 2 (B IR FERR TE 4 2 IRL(E S
B-tms EFR/AE
Bz EEE A E R
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The largest two (2015: four) trade receivables
represent approximately 46% (2015: 92%) of total
trade receivables.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. To control the credit risk of receivables
from factoring business, they were arranged as
factoring with recourse.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Except for the financial guarantee given by a
subsidiary as set out in note 33, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 33.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
/‘ Annual Report 2016
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta)

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

6. BKRERMERE &)

(¢) Liquidity risk (Cont'a) (c) REBBESEMR(Z)
The maturity analysis based on contractual AEEBZHBAERES AR
undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial KRB 2R B ST A
liabilities is as follows: I
Less than Between
1 year 2 to 5 years Total
PR—F MEZRE Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET
At 31 December 2016 R=B—RF
+=A=+-—H
Trade payables FERTER X 2,418 - 2,418
Accruals and other payables BRERA LM
FE R 115,531 - 115,531
Amount due to a director N —RESHIE 3 - 3
Financial guarantee B ER 59,105 - 59,105
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—hF
+-A=+—8©
Trade payables FERTER X 3,744 - 3,744
Accruals and other payables BREARAEM
FE K 37457 - 37457
Amounts due to non-controlling  J& < i B 2 7]
shareholders of subsidiaries FEPERR AR R 5K 776 - 776
Amount due to a director BN —RESHE 1,003 - 1,003
Financial guarantee TR 62,489 - 62,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'a) 6. HEEKRERE#)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Cont'a) () RBESRRZ)

144

Note:

Financial guarantee liabilities and borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of the
financial guarantee amounted to RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to HK$55,818,000 (2015: HK$59,698,000))
for the year ended 31 December 2016. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the lenders will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such borrowings
will be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
of financial guarantee will amount to approximately
RMB52,945,000 (equivalent to HK$59,105,000 (2015:
HK$62,489,000)) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits. These deposits bear
interests at variable rate varied with the then
prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates at that date
had been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been HK$435,000 lower
(2015: HK$381,000 lower), arising mainly as a
result of higher interest income on bank deposits.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower,
with all other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$435,000 higher (2015: HK$381,000 higher),
arising mainly as a result of lower interest income
on bank deposits.

HE_Z—

RETZA=t—HLEFE

MBEEREE (2
(d) REEE

AEEmE 2 XEBRREE
RITHER - ZFFHANZER
MREE T EEKRAE -

RZE—RFE+ZRA=+—
B - & B 2 FZE _EFH1001EE
- mATAEMEERET
g AFERERMEBIEE
295 1435,00087C (—T—H
FF 381,000 ) T B
EHRZERITHERZRS T
B FT B8 - il F1| 3 pE# (K100
EERE - ™ Fr A A EEIIR
BAE BIFEGREBREEE
EREE 1 HN435,000/87C (—=F
— A 3% 401381,000/ 7T )
FTERHNZERITERAZER
K F S U A FTER ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—Z—AF+-B=+—HLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'a) 6. HBERERE#)

146

(e) Categories of financial instruments at (el M=T—RE+=A=+-—
31 December 2016 Az&r T A¥ER
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Financial assets: MBEE:
Loans and receivables (including cash ER &YW ZIE (B1ER 4
and cash equivalents) NEeEEY) 259,277 326,650
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHENBEE 100,620 110,002
Financial liabilities: MBEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  1&Z# 4k A5t & 2
MBAE 141,708 84,345
Financial liabilities at fair value BAVERFAEBRZ
through profit or loss: MBaE:
Held for trading FEE S 73,860 19,667
(f) Fair values (l 2DFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial REEREGE TN R R

assets and financial liabilities as reflected in

ZHBEENYEREREE

the consolidated statement of financial position HEXRAZAFEMRE-

approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The following disclosures of fair value measurements use
a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

DNEERES
RNHERMH2EERNERRE—
REFR ST HEEEMBIEEZ
BEMXNZEBR - TXEARFE
AP E RN FENEE MAFER
RIARBRE R FEF B EERN 2 &
ABUE D B =1E4& R :

BABARE: KEETENERHH
BrIERAELAMNN
AR 2 BE (R
8%) -

ReEARE: BRINREZHARE
A ERAREBE
REZEERARHA
2

RABBARE: BEXABZIIUEE
AR

AEBZHRBNBREFHEHE
BENEBH A ERBEARERE
o] @R A2 — -
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value

o o

oooo
a EE

HE-_ZT—

7

ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RNETZA=+—HIEFE

NP EREE &)

(a) R=T—XRF+=-A=1+-

hierarchy at 31 December 2016: B AERB Z &5 E
Fair value measurements using: Total
UAFEREE: &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
&5 & Hl2 MAE3 —B-—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER TER FET
Recurring fair value BRATEUNEE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities I 3= R
Contingent consideration e SARE
payables - - 73,860 73,860
Fair value measurements using: Total
ARTFEREE: a5
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
A1 A2 K3 —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAT
Recurring fair value BRAFEUNEE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities I 3= R
Contingent consideration e ARE
payables - - 19,667 19,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 He—_Z—XRE+-_A=1t—HItFE
7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (conta) 7 DR EREE &)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at (b) RARBIBUMEBATEZAE
fair value based on level 3: HER:
Contingent consideration payables JETECARIE
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January m—HA—H (19,667) (10,110)
Fair value recognised from W B AR TER 2
acquisition of subsidiaries ~FE - (22,861)
Release upon issue of REEITRAB R B EBR
consideration shares 16,204 -
(Loss)/gain on fair value change E’\TE¥WEE*’ pd
recognised in profit or loss N EEE (EE)
JWas (70,984) 13,155
Exchange difference ME N = 5E 587 149
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (73,860) (19,667)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process () FEER=Z—X<F+=A
used by the Group and valuation =t+—HEAZHERRR
techniques and inputs used in fair value AHEREPEAZHER
measurements at 31 December 2016: iy 2 gy A\ RHI8 2 4 BE
The Group's directors are responsible for the AEBEEFBERETVBRS
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities iRz EERBEZATEA
required for financial reporting purposes, including % BERNBATFENE
level 3 fair value measurements. The directors FoBEEHEERNESSmMSU
report directly to the Board of Directors for these ERNFEUNEL-BEERES
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation g2H&d tiﬂmﬁx/\ﬁ@
processes and results are held between the ZREFRER
directors and the Board of Directors at least twice
a year.
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7

150/

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont )

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process

used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2016:
(Cont'd)

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited
(2015: UniStand Appraisal Limited) with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

ZE-RETZRA=t—HILFE

A EREE (2

() AEEBR=-Z—XRF+=H
=t+—HERAZEERF
RAFEREFFERAZME
BERTRBAREZIRE

(#48) :

AR BIBA

FEAEETE

REBSNEEERAIERER
RIMEmELR2EENE

BEERERA

Al(ZZ—R4%F:

Unistand Appraisal Limited)
ETEREE

R FIBLF BRI E %

Valuation Unobservable Possible Effect on fair value for Positive/(negative)
Description technique inputs change increase of inputs change on fair value
BABEE MY AVEED
i3 RERM TABERAYE THREH AVEZEE EE/ (&@)
2016 2015
—E-XE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER
Contingent Discount cash Profit after tax N/A The higher the profit after tax, N/A 18,297/~
consideration flows (2015: +/~700%) the higher of fair value
payables
- Onecomm
FER SR ARE BERREERE REREN TiEm RE®ENES R TPESR TER 18,297/
—— M (ZZ—n%:
+-700% )
- Moderntimes Discount cash The number of +/-50% The higher the cumulative -/(33,866) 30,815/~
flows cumulative virtual (2015: +/~50%) number of virtual prepaid
prepaid cards sold cards sold, the higher of
fair value
-Modemtimes ~ BHRRLHE DEERENRRIHE +-50% BEERBENRRTHAN  -/(33,866) 30,815/~
(ZE—n%: = ATEYS
+-50% )
The amount of +/-50% The higher the cumulative -/- 16,5639/~
cumulative virtual (2015:4/-100%) amount of virtual prepaid
prepaid cards cards reloaded, the higher
reloaded of fair value
ZHERENRRESE +-50% FEERERNRRF2EY -/- 16,539/~

(Z2—H%:

+-100% )

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used.

China Innovationpay Group Limited

/‘ Annual Report 2016

/

N

5 LTEES

Rt MEEFER - FTAEER

fi 0 4 5 o



oo o O o oooo ooa o o

ooo o o o o G;-
O o oo o o o o

oo o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z—RFt+ZA=+—HIFE
8. REVENUE 8 EEH
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from REERFARBBLEXB  EXEE
continuing operations is as follows: DHTE
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Sale of goods HEEm 28,525 85,112
Rendering of services RAERS 51,657 11,956
80,182 97068
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HkA
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Continuing operations FHEREER
Amortisation of financial guarantee contract Bt f§#E1R & 49 # 44 15,592 6,762
Exchange gain, net P e JF 5 1,907 599
Interest income FLEMWA 2,907 7157
Government grant B8 4 B - 259
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net HEMRBAR W F58 2,465 -
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables & U BR X5 & # [l - 226
Reversal of allowance for prepayment, TENFIE Re REAMm
deposits and other receivables JE W SR s Hak ) 1,167 -
Reversal of impairment of inventories FERERD 137 -
Others HAh 771 18
24,946 15,021
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

10.

152/

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2015: four) operating segments as
follows:

General trading - trading of watches and other
goods

Third party -
payment
services
(Former
name as
"Prepaid card
and related
operations”)

provision of third party payment
services and related consultancy
services in the People’s Republic
of China (“the PRC")

Onecomm — provision of third party payment
management services and sales
of integrated smart point of sales

("POS") devices

Travellers related services segment was discontinued
in the current year. The segment information reported
does not include any amounts for these discontinued
operations, which is described in more detail in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group's other reportable segment includes certain
inactive operations. None of the segments meets any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segment. The information of the other operating
segments is included in the ‘others’ column.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
e

B RS AR et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include equity-settled share-based
payment, amortisation of financial guarantee contract,
fair value change of contingent consideration payables
and impairment of goodwill. Segment assets do not
include interests in associates, goodwill, available-for

BE-Z2—AF+-A=+-BLFE
10. DEERE (B

REDBEZ R BREZERFE M
TSR REAPT AL E B[R] o 2 KR
BRT BB A E R IR
TRERGOEHE BNIARKEZ
NFEZBHLEHERME 2 BREET
BRERRBERRZED BE AH
HEMBEE REREREMEE
BE-DRIRDEETEERERT

sale financial assets, depesits for investments and other A mEERERSE-
corporate assets. Segment non-current assets do not
include financial instruments, goodwill and deposits for

investments.

AEBRNERTISERRE=TT#H
EHER IR BOBEHEERE
BABREZIE -

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers
as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at
current market prices.

Information about operating segment profit or loss, BRAKE > BHENHIEE FELE

assets and liabilities from continuing operations: XGEERBBRCZERDT:
Third party
General payment
trading services Onecomm Others Total
F=H
-RES XAFERE  —BEM Hitr &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-Z—XE
+-A=+—-HLEE
Revenue from external customers REMNDEP 2 W 33,712 42,665 3,357 448 80,182
Interest income FBMA 2,383 520 2 2 2,907
Segment loss DEEE (10,033) (63,314) (8,202) (3,213) (84,762)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 1,666 3,932 1,823 72 7493
Income tax (expensel/credit AR (X)) /K% - (30) 272 - 242
Other material items of HihIEREEANER -
non-cash items:
— Reversal of allowance for prepayment, - BB FIE & & &
deposits and other receivables H e W SR B B [ 1,167 - - - 1,167
Additions to segment non-current assets B D AR EE 2,197 12,118 86 315 14,716
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF
+=A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 46,303 188,373 11,108 601 246,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE-Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'a) 10. 7EER (&)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, BRAKEDERFNEE HELE
assets and liabilities: (Cont'd) XBEERBBZERNT: (£)
Third party
General payment
trading services  Onecomm Others Total
F=h
—%EBS ZARB BN Hih BEf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiHET FiHET FiET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-ZT—RE+=A
=t+—HIEEE
Revenue from external customers REMNRE P 2z 77127 14,277 5,646 18 97068
Segment loss DEEE (28,547) (37,958) (10,770) (767) (78,042)
Interest income FEBA 6,427 703 21 6 7157
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (434) (2,506) (1,818) (6) (4,764)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frism (X)), #& - (2,843) 287 - (2,556)
Other material items of Hi3FReEANEER -
non-cash items:
— Intangible assets written off - R EM (308) - - - (308)
— Allowance for trade receivables - FEMRR R (2,192) (683) - - (2,875)
— Reversal of allowance for trade - R R R R
receivables 226 - - - 226
— Allowance for prepayment, -BNRIE e REM
deposits and other receivables JE MR B (24,752) (315) - - (25,067)
— Impairment for inventories -FERE - - (1,494) - (1,494)
Additions to segment non-current NEDBEIERDEE
assets 54 10,189 557 84 10,884
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—A%F
+=A=+-R
Segment assets DEBEE 72,968 173,821 11,641 3,080 261,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z—RFt+ZA=+—HIFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'a) 10. 2EER ®
Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: DEWE RN SEEZ HER:
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Revenue Wz
Total revenue from continuing operations  #F B & E ¥ 2 s 4258 80,182 97,068
Loss B8
Total profit or loss of reportable segments  A] 2% %8 2 )& Fl=k
BEes (84,762) (78,042)
Elimination of intersegment profits 1 35 5 2B K& ) - (32)
(Loss)/gain on fair value change of contingent & < g A X8 A - (& &
consideration payables (BB = (70,984) 13,155
Equity-settled share-based payment IR A 48 B I 10 2 [ 5RIE (48,415) (57,548)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE
Corporate income and expenses, net TERARRAS  F58 (23,886) (16,081)
Amortisation of financial guarantee MBERE Q8 H
contract 15,592 6,762
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE (12,301) (4,641)
Consolidated loss before income tax from  REFEKLLERE 2
continuing operations BRATIS T AIAR G B8 (224,756) (136,427)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments from  KEFEKLESEBK AL
continuing operations WMo EEBRE 246,385 261,510
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE:
Investments in associates REENRZ”E - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENBEE 100,620 110,002
Deposits for investments wkERS 35,723 -
Goodwill Bk 653,432 707,508
Other corporate assets HmprEEE 45,133 92,984
Consolidated total assets IREBEERR 1,081,293 1,172,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—_ZT—RF+-A=+—HILFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 10. 2EER (&)
Geographical information: Hh [ & Y -
No separate analysis of segment information by ARAEB WS MERBEETE
geographical information is presented as the Group's HERNE—IREE (ARE) - Bt
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable 253t E E R B D 2 B 5
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. BRI DT
Revenue from major customers: REBEERP 2 Mz :
2016 2015
ZEB-ARE —ZT—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
General trading segment —RESHHE
Largest customer mRAEF 28,038 44,701
Second largest customer FZREP - 14,616
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERAK
2016 2015
—E-XRE ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Continuing operations FEREER
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE - 15

156 / China Innovationpay Group Limited
/“ Annual Report 2016

/



oo [m] O o

oood [m} o o o
O o oo a]
oo o

o o o ]

ooo
E o o o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
e

B RS AR et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

12.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

12. FreB (ER) BiX
EMHEE SR S HE RN

recognised in profit or loss as following: AIETRIAT -
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Current tax — the PRC BVHARETE —

Provision for the year F N - 702
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENR 30 293
30 995
Deferred tax (Note 34) RAET IR (P 5E34) (272) 1,561
(242) 2,556

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax and Hong
Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has no
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate
of 256% for the year ended 31 December 2015. However,
one of the Group's subsidiaries has been recognised as
a “New and High Technology Enterprise” in the PRC and
was therefore subject to a preferential tax of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

HRAEERBE T —RFt+_-A
=t+—RIEFEAYEELERTE
M A EIEHFECEAENRE
BHE B

HE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HL
FE-HPEPEAEHRER25% A
il ANEBEEAR —EHB AR ER
RPE S EMEeE] Bt &
—E-hF+-_A=t+—RHILFEE
FEEMNEIL% °

H o 3th [ R B8 M) 2 FRIA S 3R
SEXGAEBRR ZBITHE LR
BERMABLE REREHFHE-
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ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (cont'a) 12. Fr8% (ER) BX @)
The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/ Frigmt (%) /B s SRR 15 Bl & 18
expense and the product of loss before tax multiplied by FLAREI R EFRESHMERGHERZ
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is as follows: HERWOT
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before tax (from continuing operations) K& AIETIE (K BFEL &
%715) (224,756) (136,427)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income EHBEEMGHRE
Tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) 25% (ZE—FF:
25% )5t H 2 HIE (56,189) (34,107)
Tax effect of expenses that are not NIRRT 2 MG &
deductible 55,218 22,122
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BAFRBHBRA BB E (11,887) (3,313)
Tax effect of temporary differences not REREREBE BB E
recognised 2 (278) (357)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not REAARERNIBERZ
recognised M T E 11,722 17,612
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B AN RERTIEEE
previously recognised e (1,155) (208)
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBTR 30 293
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TREF R 2 £ 2,297 514
Income tax (credit)/expense (relating to Frigfi (%) HxZ (B
continuing operations) FRELEFET) (242) 2,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

13. LOSS FORTHE YEAR FROM

HE_Z—

RETZA=t—HLEFE

13. HEKERBZ2FABER

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group's loss for the year from continuing operations
is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

AEERFBREET 2 FAERTH
B/ (Gt A) BIRRSIE -

2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Auditor’s remuneration % B i B 1,450 1,400
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHH 1,955 2,12
Cost of inventories sold BEERFERA 33,407 71,432
(Reversal of impairment of)/ Fe (CRE#Re), #E
imapriment of inventories (137) 1,494
Depreciation of property, plant and YIS R EREITE
equipment 5,538 2,777
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEWE BEIREZ
plant and equipment (W) /18 (1) 15
Operating lease charges KEMES 2,146 9,122
Exchange gain, net PE W s JFRR (1,907) (599)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for TE A FRI8 I H th fE W kI8
prepayment and other receivables (BERE) BH (1,167) 25,067
Allowance for trade receivables JE WL BR SR A - 2,875
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables i Yz BR 7% 55 & % [B] - (226)
Intangible assets written off | A EME - 308
Property, plant and equipment written off ¥ % 5 M 3% 15 i 85 7 -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - 1,635
Impairment of goodwill EERE 12,301 4,641
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWB ARz e - F58
(note 39(b)) (I 7E39(b) ) (2,465) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE-Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEEFFEX
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —EZ—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Continuing operations FEREER
Employee benefits expense: EERAMAX
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T& - JEAL 2 )ERL 69,605 49,848
Equity-settled share-based payments IR i 45 B I S T RUE 48,415 57548
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R4 K5t 247X 3,746 2,604
121,766 110,000
Five highest paid individuals hEEEFHFMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included five (2015: five) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note 15(a).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

HE_Z—

RETZA=t—HLEFE

15. ESEAIRA=

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEEM<
The remuneration of every director is set out BEEFZHMeHINMT
below:
Equity-  Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and Discretionary  share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments contributions Total
REER RUER
we IERER BETL ROXARE TR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TR TR TR
Executive directors WiTES
Guan Guisen &R - 2,000 150 - 18 2,168
Cao Chunmeng =B - 1,740 120 9,021 18 10,899
Yan Xiaotian EEEM - 1513 90 6,265 - 7868
- 5,253 360 15,286 36 20,935
Independent non-executive B3 FEHITE R
directors
Wang Zhongmin THEAR 220 - - 752 - 972
Gu Jiawang ARE 220 - - 752 - 972
Fong ChiWah HEE 220 - - 752 - 972
660 - - 2,256 - 2,916
Total for 2016 - RFEG 660 5,253 360 17542 36 23,851
HEAIS LN EEARAT | 167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—_ZT—RF+-A=+—HILFE
15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EEEMRF= &)
DIRECTORS (cont'a)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (@ ES=M<#®)
Equity-  Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and  Discretionary  share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments  contributions Total
REEER R RIKGER
we IEBEREE Wi XA BE LG EEH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Executive directors HITES

Guan Guisen BER - 1,800 150 - 18 1,968

Lei Chunxiong (Note) B (FEE) - 563 100 - 9 672

Cao Chunmeng BEH - 1,380 100 10,679 18 12,077

Yan Xiaotian B H - 1,080 68 7242 - 8,390

- 4,823 418 17821 45 23,107
Independent non-executive Y87 JEEATTEH
directors

Wang Zhongmin FAR 120 - - 877 - 997

Gu Jiawang AEE 120 - - 877 - 997

Fong Chi Wah F 120 - - 877 - 997
360 - - 2,631 - 2,991

Total for 2015 T REMEE 360 4,823 418 20,452 45 26,098

Note: resigned on 19 June 2015. Mizk: R—FE—REATNB

L
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors FRITRBHE M ENEEHRE
waived any emoluments during the year (2015: nil). WENE (ZF—RHF: &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Cont'a)

(b) Directors’ material interests in

transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 11 April 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the Group's entire
equity interest in Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “Kopu Group”).
On 14 April 2016, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the Group's equity
interest in Kanghui Financial (Beijing) E-Commerce Co.,
Ltd. (“Kanghui”). Kopu Group and Kanghui represented
the travellers related services segment and were
principally engaged in the provision of airticketing
services and related customer services. Details of the
assets and liabilities disposed of and the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal are disclosed in note 39(a).

HE_Z—

16.

RETZA=t—HLEFE

15. EEENRAZ (&)

(b) EFERXE ZHEIEHF
ZERER
AEEBERERBITLAR
BAIREFRINATRARRES
AN EE 2 Bl B A
BRAEERERMNFRRFAR
ERRHEADAFEZERAR
7 BB

CRIEEERK
RZF-R"FMOA+—B KEHEFT
Y-t BB AL ERELERR
()M ERERRAF RHENE LA
(A [ SEEREE]) 228K
B-R-_T—R"FHUA+HME A&
BRI A — I EEW&H  NHEFRE
AR (L) ETRBERET AR
([ER¥E]) 2 BiHE - SeRb A SR B L PR
BHEREEBREOE TBRER
HHEREMEREPIRE - HEE
ERBENANGTEHESHZBRZ
FHIBREERMIFE39(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-T—AE+-A=T-ALFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (contd) 16. BAILKEXER &)

The disposal of Kanghui and Kopu Group were completed
on 29 April 2016 and 29 September 2016 respectively.

H 5 BB I S5 B A2 I E 5 BIR =
T-AEMA-HNAR-B—AK

NAZ+hBREK-
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Loss for the year from REERIEREEBZ
discontinued operations: FAEE:
Revenue g 3,852 6,793
Cost of sales =A== DN - (296)
Gross profit EH 3,852 6,497
Other income H A 8 6
Selling expenses 8 B Bl 2 (4,535) (13,815)
Administrative expenses TBF (4,876) (14,276)
Loss before tax PR A ES 18 (5,551) (21,588)
Income tax expense PS5 < - -
Loss after tax BrEIEEE (5,551) (21,588)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEERIEKREEBH 2
operations (note 39(a)) Weas (F13E39(a)) 1,168 -
Loss for the year from discontinued REERIEREEE 2F
operations &8 (4,383) (21,588)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

16.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont'd)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations includes

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

16. DRI EK #)

KRECRIEREXH 2FABRERE

the following: LA &I :
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI 3 B - ~
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHH 16 2,083
Reversal of allowance for JFE UK BR R
trade receivables (612) -
Operating leases charges of EEREZHEEHE
premises and facilities X 2,146 9,122
Depreciation of property, ME BEMEZETE
plant and equipment m 404
Staff costs 8 ITRA
Salaries and allowances T& KRR 2,662 1,950
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RORAEFET B3R 236 988
Cash flows from discontinued operations: B IFEEEKESRE
Net cash outflows from KL EBR S M FRE
operating activities (5,584) (15,452)
Net cash inflows from financing activites Bt & /ZEIR & R AFEE 2,806 15,341
(2,778) (111)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREHTE 727 631
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be Onb) MAFE (2,051) 520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

17. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

(1) From continuing and discontinued

operations

The calculation of basic loss per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$214,422,000 (2015: HK$153,818,000)
and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 6,070,965,000 (2015:
5,684,829,000) in issue during the year.

(i) From continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$210,128,000 (2015: HK$132,536,000)
and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 6,070,965,000 (2015:
5,684,829,000) in issue during the year.

(i) From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from the discontinued
operations is HK0.07 cent per share (2015:
HKO0.38 cent per share) based on the loss
for the year from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$4,294,000 (2015:
HK$21,282,000) and the denominator used
is the same as those detailed above for basic
loss per share.

(b) Diluted loss per share
As exercise of the Group’'s outstanding share
options, warrants and contingent consideration
payables for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2016 would be anti-dilutive, no diluted loss
per share was presented for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z—RFt+ZA=+—HIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% -BERZE
Furniture
Leasehold and office
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
HARK
HEMEEE MAZRE AE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEL AT TET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—-HE—HF—H 3,080 12,047 1,163 16,290
Additions RNE 2,850 8,023 - 10,873
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — B LR 5 116 - 121
Disposals/written off HE /i - (64) - (64)
Exchange differences BEHEE (228) (777) (53) (1,058)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+ZA=T—HRK
1 January 2016 i 5,707 19,345 1,110 26,162
Additions RNE 1,985 2,695 - 4,680
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT - (1,720) - (1,720)
Disposals/written off HE /s - (143) - (143)
Exchange differences BEHEE (456) (1,262) (72) (1,790)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—RE+-A=1+—H 7236 18,915 1,038 27189
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—HE—HF—H 1,602 6,111 455 8,168
Charge for the year AEERZT 576 2,441 164 3,181
Disposals/written off HE /8 - (41) - (41)
Exchange differences BHER 91 (337) (26) (454)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+ZA=+—HRK
1 January 2016 —“E—-R"¥—-A—H 2,087 8,174 593 10,854
Charge for the year REERX 2,256 3,319 74 5,649
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRA - (1,202) - (1,202)
Disposals/written off HE /s - (130) - (130)
Exchange differences P (233) (589) (42) (864)
At 31 December 2016 RZFB-AF+ZA=+—H 4,110 9,572 625 14,307
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 WZZ-RE+-A=+—H 3,126 9,343 413 12,882
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-hF+-A=1—H 3,620 11,171 517 15,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-_T—XRE+-A=1+—HItFE
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BREE
Computer
software
Customer Technology (internally
relationship know-how generated) Total
BTG
EFBE RHEL AR (APEE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET THET THT
Cost RA&
At 1 January 2015 R-E-—H%—A—H 256 7757 13,607 21,620
Written off i - - (1,625) (1,625)
Exchange differences EHER (12) (351) (565) (928)
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z-AF+-F=+-8K
1 January 2016 —“E—-R"¥—-A—H 244 7406 1,417 19,067
Additions NE - - 147 147
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (245) - (6,048) (6,293)
Exchange differences EHER 1 (481) (504) (984)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—A"FTZA=1+—H - 6,925 5,012 11,937
Accumulated amortisation and ERBERAESR
impairment loss
At 1 January 2015 R-—Z-h%—HA—H 20 - 5,080 5,170
Charge for the year AERRX 50 1,529 2,616 4,195
Written off i - - (1,317) (1,317
Impairment loss REEE - - 1,635 1,635
Exchange differences BHER (6) (47) (321) (374)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-AF+-A=+-HK
1 January 2016 —T-~F—H—H 134 1,482 7693 9,309
Charge for the year KEERY 16 1,447 508 1,971
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBRT (151) - (5,905) (6,056)
Exchange differences R 1 (159) (283) (441)
At 31 December 2016 RZBE-RE+-A=+—H - 2,770 2,013 4,783
Carrying amount RHEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—A"FTZA=1+—H - 4,155 2,999 7154
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RF+T-A=1+—H 110 5,924 3724 9,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont )

The average remaining amortisation period of customer
relationship, technology know-how and computer
software are 2 years, 5 years and 6 years respectively
(2015: 3 years, 4 years and 7 years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets in 2016, having regard to the
market conditions of the Group’s business. These assets
are used in the CGUs of Onecomm and Third Party
Payment Services.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the review led to
the recognition of an impairment loss of HK$1,635,000
for computer software used in the segment of travellers
related services that have been recognised in profit
or loss. The recoverable amount of HK$117000 of the
impaired assets has been determined on the basis of
its value in use using discounted cash flow method.
The discount rate used which assessed together with
impairment testing of this CGU was 32.48%.

Details of the impairment testing of other intangible
assets in other CGUs are set out in note 20.

BE-TAF+- A=t ALFE
19. BEE (&)

EPBEFE RHEAE R EME G2 F
BRI B FH D R A25F - 5F K64
(ZE—RE3F AFERTE)

AEBEREEAKEEXBE ZHRE
HERZZE-RFZEFEE 2R
ClefFETEN ZRFEERN B
EMZREEEEMRFE = MME
o

HE—_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLF
B &R BRIKERBRSE DI
(BEREBmAER)FH 2 EME®E
781,635,000 7T 2 B EEBE  BEE
E 1170007 70,2 AT El & B8 2 5 A AL
BREREFNTEFEREBEREE -
FrA R R AL HIReEESE
i 2 BRI - 7832.48% °

REMBSELBEN HMETLEE
ZRERH 2 FBEN K EE20 ©
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20.

170

HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

GOODWILL 20. B8
General  Third party Travellers
trading payment related
operations services services Onecomm
(“CGU 1) (“CGU 2") (“CGU 3") (“CGU 4") Total
-REZEH EZAXAR REGERE —BHMN (R
([REEEE B ([REEE ([REEEE LELEQ
fir1l) Ef2]) fu3l) 4]) &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TEL FET FET
Cost BA
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—A—H 214,458 894,302 4,710 13,186 1,126,656
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—HEHE AR - 56,597 - - 56,597
Exchange differences EXESR (9,698) (40,442) (213) (597) (50,950)
At 31 December 2015 and WZE-a%+ZA=+—-8
1 January 2016 ZE-"5-R—H 204,760 910,457 4,497 12,589 1,132,303
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLTF - - (4,491) - (4,491)
Exchange differences ERES (13,308) (55,496) (6) (818) (69,628)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+-A=t-H 191,452 854,961 - 1,771 1,058,184
Accumulated impairment losses 2EREFE
At 1 January 2015 R-E-hE—A—H 214,458 225,747 - - 440,205
Impairment loss recognised TERRAZRESE
in the current year - - 4,641 - 4,641
Exchange differences EREE (9,698) (10,209) (144) - (20,051)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-R&+=ZRA=+—H
1 January 2016 kZE-"E—-R—H 204,760 215,538 4,497 - 424,795
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBELA - - (4,491) - (4,491)
Impairment loss recognised TEERRAZREBE
in the current year - - - 12,301 12,301
Exchange differences EXESR (13,308) (14,009) (6) (530) (27853)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=+-H 191,452 201,529 - 1,771 404,752
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+-A=t-H - 653,432 - - 653,432
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-_A=+-H - 694,919 - 12,589 707508
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

20.

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit
from that business combination.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method include those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and revenue during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors
for the next five years with the residual period using the
terminal growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%) for CGU 2 and 4
(2015: CGU 2, 3 and 4). This terminal growth rate does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant markets.

At 31 December 2016, the pre-tax rates used to discount
the forecast cash flows in each CGU of the Group are as
follows:

HE_Z—

20.

RETZA=t—HLEFE

BHE %)

RERA GRS Y mE DRIk
SEREEEENZER AP S EY
38 47 4 B AT o

ReEEE M 2 el SR EER
MRREREBELTEEREERE
E-RBRRSREZMEAZEER
REERAANER R E FRE.
BEENER LW - REBNAA K
BRE RIS ERRE AR
EAE BN 2 K E B 2 BR AT L R Ah
FHRRIR K B REAGR G EL BN
RERGAT R 2 & BT 15858
RESEE -FAEEMNKRWZE TR
BEBPIRERTIZERSEE-

AREFEZRLREEN RS
BEFIEAR TS RHBIE LR
SEERMIRASEETLA(—F
—AE RSEERN REELE
(I3 & B A BAT4) KR E A
3% (ZF—T%F :3%) BB R
Y - R R BB 5
2P RIBERE

W_ZE—RNE+_A=1+—8 AKX
MIRTBAAEERREELEURS
MEZBRBATLL R -

2016 2015

“E-RE ~—ZT—hF
CGU 2 BeELEN2 20.75% 24.20%
CGU 3 HEeEHS BN N/ATE A 32.25%
CGU 4 WeEEEMNL 24.94% 29.07%
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20.

172

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has revised its
expectation about the future profitability of CGU 3
because the Group foresees difficulties in securing
business with major customers and suppliers. The
Group has revised its cash flow forecast for CGU 3. The
directors have consequently determined to impair the
goodwill allocated to CGU 3 amounting to HK$4,641,000.
No other impairment of the assets of the CGU 3 is
considered necessary. As CGU 3 has been reduced to
the recoverable amounts, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amounts would result in further impairment losses.

At 31 December 2016, the Group changed its business
strategy for CGU 4 to focus on third party payment
management services and not sales of POS devices.
The directors determinated the recoverable amount of
CGU 4 having regard to the revised business strategy
and recognised a full impairment of goodwill of
HK$12,301,000. The recoverable amount of CGU 4 of
HK$12,384,000 was based on value in use. A discount
rate of 24.94% was applied to the forecast future cash
flows. No other impairment of the assets of the CGU 4 is
considered necessary.
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HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

20.

[EE3E D)
RZFE—RFE+ZA=+—8 @R
AEBEEREFERP RHERZE
BHFERE AEBCEITEEHER
BELEBNIZAEENEE 2B
AEECEITARSELESMIRS
/MLET’E E'J %%B ?&/%*/\@E;%EEEE
B4 B3 2 BB E £4,641,0007%8
TLo RS EEBMNIBE L HMRMER
REBWTEKX - RESEAEMIE AR
Zr B2 E  WEt B U E 2
FRZEBR 2 ERATNEEEEH
RE—FREEIE-

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—HB 'K
SEMREEEEATE NEEEE
B EIFRE = AN ERRBE I
IHEPOSKE - EELF REBERTE
BEEETRSELEMI2TYE
SR NER 2 R ERE12,301,000
Br-ReEESEMI2 AT KE S
¥8/512,384,0008 T hERFEAE
B-FBARKRREREFEAURE
24.94% - MEEXENIEE 2 HAth
BEFERBILTERK-
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

21.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HE_Z—

Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016

are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and

21.

RETZA=t—HLEFE

RBARZRE
TEMBARINR=F—X"F+=H
=t —HZHFBWT:

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
a8 TR E KR ERTREARE EEREEREONL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
H# %
Country Praise Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 769,231 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
("Country Praise") ("BVI") no par value
RBRLHES 769,231 R E 2 ERK 100% - REER
(IRBRLHE])
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Bk 10,0007 7T - 100% 1R EER
Bright Voyage Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
KERLES 50,000 T - 100% 1R EER
Moderntimes Payment Limited BVI US$102,041 - 51%  Investment holding
EERAES 102,041% 7T - 51% REER
Essence Management Service Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Bk 100,000 7T - 100% HREZR
AREA (LR RELZAERAF The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100%  Trading of watches and
Beijing Shangyin Investment F AR %123,330,0007T computer equipments
Consultancy Co., Ltd. BEFHRLENEE
TRXAEREEREBRAF The PRC RMB101,000,000 - 100%  Information system
Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information F AR #101,000,0007T maintenance and
Technology Co., Ltd. (“TTSB") development services
EEEREERFRERS
TR ERREERERAR The PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial F AR #150,000,0007T payment services

Management Co., Ltd.

FEAHXNEERRATF

REFE=HXNRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contc)  21. RBARZIRE (4)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmAL/ paid up capital ownership interest  Principal activities
8 M REE bR ERIREHRE REREZEIH TEEHR
Direct Indirect
H# Gk

MMERBEER AT The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card and
Hangzhou Saibo Information F AR #4,000,0007T related customer services

Technology Co., Ltd. REBHRREBEP RS
TREDENHERRAH The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu F AR #10,000,0007T payment services

Commercial Co., Ltd. REE=AZNRE
LERERERR AT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of third party
Shanghai Jinghui Commercial F AR #1,000,0007C payment services

Co., Ltd. REE=FXZMA RS
AT EREREEEEERAA The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid phone card
Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong Commercial AR 3,000,000 distribution

Management Co., Ltd. BNEERYH
IR —EMN B RERAF The PRC RMB23,000,000 - 51% Provision of third party
Beijing Onecomm Technology Company AR #23,000,0007T management services and

Limited ("Onecomm”) sales of integrated smart

point of sales (“POS")

device
REE=-FEERBRHEE

SEBRHEER (TPOS))

KE
RIEREZA(LB)ERAA The PRC US$7:340,000 - 100%  Provision of consultancy
Yu Shun Investment Consultancy F 7340,000% 1T services, development,
(Shanghai) Company Limited operation and promotion

of innovative products
and customer value
management

REERRS RE g2
REEAFERREFEE
BB
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

21.

22.

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'a) 21. RAMBRARIZERE (&)
The above list contains the particulars of major RV EEFEAEERE EE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets FEBEZFEWBARIFE-
or liabilities of the Group.
As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances RZE-—RF+ZA=+—HB 'K
of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated SEFBEMBARNAARE (A
in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to HK$136,836,000 RE]FECRTERRSEHE
(2015: HK$87,645,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign 136,836,000 7T (=& — A & -
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange 87,645,000/&7T) - ARME K R INE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, AERE (PEINEE R R &
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. - EERNEBTERTE) °
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, REEQRIZRE
2016 2015
“E-RE Z—ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted investment in the PRC: Rz IEEMIRE -
Share of net assets E(REEFE - -

The amount due from an associate was unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

FEd — 1B & R B IR S IR
R 2ERAREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-T-AF+-A=+—ALFE
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'a) 22, RBERRZRE (&)

Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2016
were as follows:

AEEBERRN_F—RF+=A
=T —RZHBHT:

Percentage of
equity interest

Place of incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration and operation  Registered capital the Group Principal activities
AEBEEG
a8 AMRY AMRELLE SMER REFAL FEER
HERBERESRBERAR  The PRC RMB5,000,000 37%  Micro business lending
([8%1) HE AR5,000,0007T HEREER
Shanghai Yu Chang Financial
Information Services Co., Limited
("Yu Chang”)
HEEEEEMBEARRA The PRC RMB1,000,000 20%  Information technology
([E%]) FE AE#1,000,0007T development and

Shanghai Xueying Information &
Technology Co., Ltd (“Xueying”)

The Group has not recognised loss for the year
amounting to approximately HK$45,000 (2015:
approximately HK$2,000) and HK$114,000 (2015: Nil) for
Yu Chang and Xueying respectively. The accumulated
losses not recognised were approximately HK$46,000
(2015: HK$2,000) and HK$114,000 (2015: Nil) for Yu Chang
and Xueying respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances
of the Group's associates in the PRC denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$53,000 (2015:
HK$119,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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FEERMAZEREAR
%

AEBHABRBEREE 2FA
EE D B4 45,0008 T (—ZE— A
% £92,0007% 7T ) 5 114,0007%8 7T (=
T—RF E) REREEZKRE
REFEBED 54 46,0008 7T (=
T—HF :2,000/87T) & 114,000 7T
(ZE—RF |

RZE—RE+_A=+—H K&
EhEBEARIAARBKEZR
1R © AR EHB3,0008 L (= F
—AHF 19,0008 7T) - AR K #
RHNEREE (B HNE B R IEG1D)
K (HEIE - SERMNEEEHRE) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

23.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

23. AHHENKEE

2016 2015
—B-RF —ZT—I0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Unlisted equity securities FE L THIRAFE FH
At cost RN 100,620 110,002

Unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of
approximately HK$100,620,000 (2015: HK$110,002,000)
were carried at cost as they do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

The carrying amounts of the Group's available-for-
sale financial assets are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2015 and 2016.

None of these financial assets is either past due or
impaired.

As at 31 December 2016, available-for-sale financial
assets were pledged as security in respect of loan of
RMB250,000,000 granted to the underlying investee
company.

FE_E AR AN FE A BREIE.49100,620,000
7t (ZZ—A% :110,002,000/8 7T )
R ABIE REBEHFTERMES
WEMISHRER T EFTEHEAF
R

RZE—RAFER-_ZFE—XRF+-H
=t+—H AEEAHREEHKEE
ZIEEmEBENUARBE-

% EM A EM BRSO E -

RZE—RNE+_A=+—8 7l
HEMBEEREIRIEAR THE®
#®E Qa2 BERARK250,000,000
TCZPER
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—_ZT—RF+-A=+—HILFE
24. INVENTORIES 24, FE
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —EZ—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finished goods LK an 4,376 3,389
Impairment losses VEREY R (1,223) (1,448)
3,153 1,941
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. FEURBRFX
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —EZ—8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables JE YRR R 23,863 47398
Allowance for doubtful debts REREEE (3,356) (4,216)
20,507 43,182
The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly AEBEREFZ2ESBRAEERE
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 B EEH M) FI0E0H - H R
days. For new customers, payment in advance is normally FEPME  —MEENRIE A&
required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control B ¥ R U (B 2 P R A 15 BR AR 4 1) o
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are EETHEROBEH
reviewed regularly by the directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BEE-Z—R"Et+-_A=1+—HIFE
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conta) 25. FEWERF (&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the JEUWER R (RBEEHBFE W2
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: RSB ZBRBR DTN T
2016 2015
—E-RFE —FT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
0 to 90 days 0%90H 10,688 31,889
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 4,662 2,807
181 to 365 days 1812365H 5,157 8,486
20,507 43,182
As at 31 December 2016, an allowance was made RZE—RE+_A=+—H'®
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables for st~ A U B 2 & UK BR 2R 1B O B
approximately HK$3,356,000 (2015: HK$4,216,000). & #93,356,0008 70 (—E — R 4F:

4,216,000/ 7T) °

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: JE LS BR SR s 2 S BR
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZET—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
At 1 January n—A—H 4,216 1,070
Allowance for the year FARE - 3,622
Reversal of allowance for the year FNEFERD (612) (226)
Exchange difference X ZERE (248) (150)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 3,356 4,216
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE-Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conta) 25. FEWERF (&)
As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H EK
approximately HK$9,862,000 (2015: HK$11,421,000) BRFX499,862,000/87C (& — R F :
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number 11,421,000/ 7T ) 2 81 BB KRR (E © 3%
of independent customers for whom there is no recent LML FT B R Rk 2 B
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade BEPEM  ZEFRYRR Z BRI DT
receivables is as follows: NN
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —EZ—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Up to 3 months =@AZA 4,704 2,931
3 to 6 months =RAZENEHA 1 771
Over 6 months NEA M E 5,157 7719
9,862 11,421
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables RZE—RAFER_ZE—XRF+=-A
are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2015 and =+—H ASERERYERZEREE
2016. IAARBEEHE -
26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FENFIE- -REREMERE
RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
—EB-RF —ZT—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Prepayments AT IR 9,052 9,880
Deposits e 12,357 29,747
Loans to independent third parties (Note) — RIJ&EZ 5 = H{EH 2 B
(M$3E) 3,349 13,730
Other receivables H b B UK 33,438 3,168
58,196 56,525
Long term deposits classified DERIENBEE 2 KH
as non-current assets e (3,978) (24,531)
54,218 31,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B RS AR et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

26.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Note:

The carrying amounts of loans to independent third parties were
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2015 and 2016. The
loans were arranged at fixed interest rates between 12% to
15% per annum (2015: 12% to 15% per annum).

At 31 December 2016, the loans are secured by the following:

(a) Personal guarantee with unlimited amount given by the
largest shareholder of the borrowing company;

(b) Land located in the PRC owned by the borrowing

company.

As at 31 December 2016, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable prepayment, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$21,661,000 (2015: HK$24,361,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for prepayments, deposits
and other receivables:

BE-F-A<ET-A=+—ALEE
26. BENFE -REREMEKR

()
GES

R—ZE—HRER_ZE—XNFE+HA
=t+—H RBIYE=AEHZERZ
EEAEAAREBFE - ERANTEF
12%ZE15% (ZE—RHF :FF12% =
15% ) 2 [E & M =L HE o

RZEB-—RE+A=+—B B
AT HIE B R

(@) ERRABZEABRRIEHZER
il &8 EAFER

HERAREE ZRFEZ £
Mo

(b)

RZE—XRE+ZA=+—8" st
T E z FENRIE RS R E b
Uk 1 HH B 4 4921,661,00008 7T ( =&
— 4 : 24,361,000/ 7T ) ©

TR IR - & R H At JE WO 2 8
BE :

2016 2015

—EB-RE ZZET—IOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

At 1 January n—HA—H 24,361 75
Allowance for the year FNEE - 25,067
Reversal of allowance for the year FABEERED (1,167) -

Exchange difference PE N ZE%R (1,533) (781)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 21,661 24,361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BHE-Z—FRFt+-_A=t+—HItFE
27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON- 27 FEWKEA T ZFZRRERERK
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF B |
SUBSIDIARIES
Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of JE W I /88 7 &) 2 FE 45 AR IR BR K IE 1A
subsidiaries are as follows: ™
Maximum
Balance at amount
31 December Balance at outstanding
2016 1 January 2016  during the year
R=ZB-—RE RZIZT—RF
+=-A=+-—H —H—H FRxE=
Name "E Z &R R REESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET
Mr. JOONG Chi-Wei TR ST E 290 215 290
Mr. Sun Jiangning BlIEkaE 565 - 933
855 215
The amounts were unsecured, interest free and ZHBAEER RERERERE
repayable on demand. o
28. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 28. SRITRBE R
As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances RZE—R"F+ZA=+—0 &%
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to BUARBHEZRITER S &%
HK$136,836,000 (2015: HK$87645,000). Conversion #£136,836,0008 L (ZE—HF:
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's 87645,000/ 7T ) ° AR H IR INE
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration HBE (PEIMNEERGH) Kk (&
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange - EERNEEEBRE) °
Regulations.
As at 31 December 2016, bank balances of RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H" RTT
HK$98,295,000 (2015: HK$11,639,000) were restricted 4 #298,295,0008 T (ZFE— A F:
for the purpose of settlement obligation as set out in note 11,639,0007% 7T ) 40 Bt 5E30F it 5 BR
30. SIARNGEER T
182 / China Innovationpay Group Limited

/“ Annual Report 2016

/



O

O [m] O o
oood [m} o o o
O o oo a]
oo o

o o o

ooo
E o o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

29.

30.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

29. FENER
FE B 2R (IR B

mEAFE)Z

of receipt of goods, is as follows: BRE AT
2016 2015
ZEB-ARE —ZT—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
0 to 90 days 0290H 17 2,699
91 to 180 days 91H £180H - 60
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 15 37
Over 365 days 3656H A = 2,386 948
2,418 3,744

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2015 and 2016.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

R_E—RAFEN_ZT—XRF+_A
=t+t—H AEEEMNERZERE

AARBEHE

30. RIRBAKEMEMARK

2016 2015
—E-RE —FT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Settlement obligation (Note) HEEEE (W) 98,295 11,639
Receipt in advance eI FRIA 4,502 1,330
Accruals AR E A 5,985 5,793
Other payables H b FE 3K 11,251 20,025
120,033 38,787

Note: MY -

The settlement obligations are recognised upon receipt of fund
from end users and prepaid card holders of Third Party Payment
Services. The amount represents the Group's obligations to
remit the same to designated recipients or the contracted
merchants. The settlement basis is normally the next business
day of the transaction date, except for certain designated
recipients and merchants.

REEERWERmAPRE=T7
R < BNRREZFRBER - ZE
BEASEAEEREEXHZAREH
BPERRAZCE GEEH-—R/RXS
BT —EZEXE HEEEXHEARA

FRRSN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z-—RE+T_A=1T—HILFE

31. AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR/NON- 3. ER—2EE MEBLARZE

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF R R 2R IE
SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts were unsecured, interest free and ZREREERR R EREREXE
repayable on demand. Eo
32. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 32. ERHARE
PAYABLES
2016 2015
—E-XE Z—ZT—hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 19,667 10,110
Fair value of contingent consideration UM B A R 2 BT = A
payables arising from acquisition of REQFE
subsidiaries - 22,861
Release upon issue of consideration shares 52 1T (E I {7 5 % bR (16,204) -
Loss/(gain) on fair value change recognised F R MR A FEESH
for the year EE () 70,984 (13,155)
Exchange differences PE N ERR (587) (149)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 73,860 19,667
Analysed as: DT
Current liabilities REBEE 40,278 19,667
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE 33,582 -
73,860 19,667
The contingent consideration payables as at year end REL  BRSARBREBENNS
date represented the present value of the contingent NElZAAREBRE BEREE=
considerations for the acquisitions of subsidiaries, which B EGHE - U EFBHIIRNEG SR
were estimated based on level 3 measurement. Details TR MIFE39(c) °

of the above are set out in note 39(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE-_T—RE+-A=T—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE MEER

2016 2015
—E-XRFE —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 41,365 -

Fair value of financial guarantee MBERRELEBSZ
at grant date ~NYE - 48,686
Amortisation for the year (note 9) FAEHE (M) (15,592) (6,762)
Exchange difference ME N = 5E (2,017) (559)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 23,756 41,365

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
has issued a guarantee of RMB150,000,000 in respect
of loans granted to an investee company. Under the
guarantee, the Group is liable for the maximum liability
of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$179,093,000)) of
the investee company’s borrowings from the investee
company's major equity holder upon failure of the
investee company making payments when due.

The maximum liability of the Group at the end of the
reporting period under this guarantee is the aggregate
of borrowings drawn at that date of RMB50,000,000
(2015: RMB50,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$55,818,000 (2015: HK$59,698,000)) and interest
accrued up to that date of approximately RMB2,945,000
(2015: RMB607,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,288,000 (2015: HK$725,000)).

RBEZT—RAF+-A=+—H1t
FEAN AEERE T -BEEEKER
7] B 7 E#17 AR ¥150,000,0007T 2
BR-BEER WHEERARRE
REEAREEEER  RIAEBE L RA
WIRERRZETERZHBEAZE
RERRERZEABEAARK
150,000,0007T (48 E $179,093,000
BIL)BE

RREAR NEBRZEREAT
ZEANBEBERNZBRIZERE
% A R #50,000,000c (—ZE— A
% : AR #50,000,0007T) (HER
455,818,000 L (ZZE — R F:
59,698,000 T) ) R EE#Z A L2
JE 5T 7 B 49 A R #2,945,0007T (=
T—HF: AR¥607000T) (HEE
A #93,288,0008 L (—ZE — A F:
725,000/ 7T) ) °
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

34. DEFERRED TAX

The followings are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

186/

recognised by the Group.

HE_Z-—RE+T_A=1T—HILFE

34, EZERIE

AT RAREER ZRELERAEE,

(BfE)-

Deferred tax
liabilities of fair
value gain on
intangible assets
by acquisition of

Tax losses a subsidiary Total
W s —
MEBARZ
BREERNYE
Uy 25 2 B FE
BEEE BESE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—AF—H—H 1,876 (1,076) 800
Charge to profit or loss for the year ~ RAFE B
(Note 12) (MtEE12) (1,848) 287 (1,561)
Exchange differences PE N =% (28) 40 12
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—HF
1 January 2016 ‘l‘_ﬂ_‘l'*E&
Z—-R"F—H—H - (749) (749)
Credit to profit or loss for the year u‘H\$¢Ei§\fﬁ
(Note 12) (HiEE12) - 272 272
Exchange differences bE N E%E - 36 36
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R
—A= - (4471) (447)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$112,417000 (2015: HK$137513,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
unused tax losses will expire on or before 2021.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-—T—AFT-A=+—ALEE
34. DEFERRED TAX (Contd) 34, EEBIE (&)

At the end of the reporting period, no temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities was
recognised (2015: HK$26,666,000). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RREBRR WEMERRELERES
EZHBRARADREAFBEZY
BF=% (— T — A4 26,666,000/
TC) o B ANER B AT 4R ) B B R =
BWoRHE BEAEBEEEARETERA
BARREE W ERZEEZHER
FRIBE-

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. BAE
2016 2015
“E-KF —T-hE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BROEE &8 BRHEE x|
Note ‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
k3 TR TER Tk BT
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of BREEOETL
HK$0.01 each T E 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Ordinary, issued and fully & B#1TR
paid: MR
At 1 January m—HA—H 6,015,766 60,158 5,605,506 56,055
Share issued under placing  F&1) R B & 347 (a) - - 300,000 3,000
Share issued under share B 17 1R 15 B8 A i
option scheme BEIE) 38 37,248 372 30,260 303
Share issued under BOBEIA
contingent consideration X {E#1T 32 46,296 463 - -
Share issued under exercise B 17 1R B 17 (E
of warrants RREEET  37(0)vi) - - 80,000 800
At 31 December R+—-_A=1+—H 6,099,310 60,993 6,015,766 60,158
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'a)

188/

Note:

(a) On 20 November 2015, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with Oriental Patron Asia Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent,
up to 300,000,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.406
per placing share. The placing was completed on 9
December 2015 and the net proceeds from placing were
approximately HK$121,191,000.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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(E-E - RNF+A=1+—HLFE

35. KA (#)

GEE

(a) R-ZE—RF+—HA=+8"
KA &) BdQriental Patron Asia
Limited (B2 &R ]) 5T 32 B2
EHaE Bl AR EE K
HREBARENRBZRERE
EMD0.406B T2 ERES
£ %300,000,000% it & i 15 o
ffER-—_ZEZ—hE+=-AAR
TERMEEMSEREFENL
121,191,000 7T °

AEBERNEEZBEREENEKE
ZRERERN WEBBERKE
e T AR RS REE DR -

AEELZERLLPIREERTE A
SERBELEREZBENEREE
ZRBRE B EARRB I HNIA
B - BERINHEEARE A&H
AR B R A B B AT HTR - B A
- BEMER BLROEFEEHL
EEENRBEETR-
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e R

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 He—_Z—XRF+-_A=1+—HItFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL (conta) 3. RAE#)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to- REBREBHLCHEER L R
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt BB BN o 2L IR FETEBR AL
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total BENGE - FEBREEBREAR
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital RS EEMFAE -KCRABERBRE
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, FrBE#EzmEnD (a0 IR Brinis(E -
share premium, retained loss and other reserves). REBEREMERS) -
2016 2015
ZB-RE —ZT—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Debts (a) &1 (a) 141,705 82,566
Less: cash and cash equivalents BRekBEeFEY (185,422) (236,608)
Net debts B % (43,717) (154,042)
Equity (b) - Z (o) 842,804 1,044,620
Net debts to equity ratio FEEE R N/A iEH N/A 38 A
(@)  Debt is defined as trade payables, accruals and (a) EBRWERA/EMNER B
other payables excluding receipt in advance, and ERREMEMNR(TRIETRE
financial guarantee as detailed in notes 29, 30 and WRIB) LA RIS ER - 5518
33 to the consolidated financial statements. RARE R FMFE29 - 30 %
33-°
(b)  Equity included all capital and reserves before non- (b) IS BEANEEIEERERA
controlling interests of the Group. ZHBEARKFEE-
The externally imposed capital requirements for the REE R E B AR Lt -
Group is to have a public float of at least 25% of the BN BARERRBBARFED
Company's shares in order to maintain its listing on the 25% AR RARMDABRBIFRE - RIE
Stock Exchange. Based on information that is publicly RRARFBARERRRESA
available to the Company and within the knowledge of NBFEARARREBITRABERD
the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued 25% °

share capital was held by the public.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I ERR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. ARBZHBRRARKFHES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 3]
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AEATZHBMRRE
Company
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZZ=T—0F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MIEE FHET FETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 473 - B M R 2 32
Investments in subsidiaries ~ RHTEB AR ZRE 375,291 564,088
Amounts due from A NEIE
subsidiaries 261,701 261,701
Deposits for potential BEKRERS
investment 45 33,490 -
670,484 825,821
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEMFIE & &
other receivables H b fE W IR 834 832
Amounts due from JrE Uk BT BB R R 3R IE
subsidiaries 195,448 146,088
Bank and cash balances RITNIR 28 14,202 75,649
210,484 222,569
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables — FE#E & F & E b JiE (< 2008 2,388 1,783
Amounts due to subsidiaries &K B A & 1B 36,679 1,068
Amount due to a director Bt —REEHIEA 31 - 1,000
39,067 3,851

190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)

(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company (Cont'd)

HE-_T—RE+-A=T—HILFE

36. RXABZHBERARRFEEE
B (#)

(a) ZADBZHBRREK (&)

As at 31 December

W+t=-—A=+—H

2016 2015

—E-RE ~—ZT—HF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 3T FET FETT

Net current assets REBEEFE 171,417 218,718

NET ASSETS EERE 841,901 1,044,539
Capital and reserves BEXR#E

Share capital & AR 35 60,993 60,158

Reserves 1 36(b) 780,908 984,381

TOTAL EQUITY AR 841,901 1,044,539

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Guan Guisen

BEREL

NoZE—+EF=A-+ N \HEESS
B WAHTIHEEREES:

Mr. Cao Chunmeng
BEEBEE
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HEZ

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36.
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

Z-RF+ZA=+—HILFE

Rz B AR R R Aot e 22

B (&)

(b) AXAFZHELEB

Share Share
premium Contributed option Warrant Retained
account surplus reserve reserve loss Total
RAOEEE HARS BRERE wE REER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET FET AL AL AL
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HE—F—H 991,322 70,121 8,402 139 (104,284) 965,700
Total comprehensive FRZENALE
income for the year - - - - (196,519) (196,519)
Issued from placing [ 118,191 - - - - 118,191
Issued of warrants BITRREE - - - 1,000 - 1,000
Exercise of warrants e R R 31,339 - - (139) - 31,200
Exercise of share options T{E MR 10,623 - (3,362) - - 7261
Share-based payments Wt 14 508 - - 57548 - - 57548
Release upon lapse of R R XS R
share options - - (982) - 982 -
Changes in equity FRERE
for the year 160,153 - 53,204 861 (195,537) 18,681
At 31 December 2015 RZT—1F
+ZRA=+- 1,151,475 70,121 61,606 1,000 (299,821) 984,381
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"F—H—H 1,151,475 70,121 61,606 1,000 (299,821) 984,381
Total comprehensive FRZEHNAEE
income for the year - - - - (276,569) (276,569)
Issued for contingent BIRRARERR
consideration shares 15,741 - - - - 15,741
Exercise of share options TEERE 13,081 - (4,141) - - 8,940
Share-based payments RiAZ50R - - 48415 - - 48415
Release upon lapse of N e TR
share options - - (2,442) - 2,442 -
Changes in equity for the year ~ FRERE 28,822 - 41832 - (274,127)  (203,473)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF
+=ZA=+-H 1,180,297 70,121 103,438 1,000 (573,948) 780,908
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HEe—_Z—XRF+-_A=1+—HItFE
37. RESERVES 37 f#E
(a) Group (a) ZF£E
The amounts of the Group's reserves and AEEREBREEHNE
movements therein are presented in the s kEMEELARIAR
consolidated statement of profit or loss and RERREEFRESN -

(b)

other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REMERBN

(i) Share premium account (i) R 17 i 1B Bk
Share premium represents premium arising B mBIEAKERLRS
from the issue of shares at a price in excess BREBEZEBBEITRG
of their par value per share and is not FMEA 2B ZnE
distributable but may be utilised in paying AR5k - AR B A]
up unissued shares of the Company to be B AN AR QR RE
issued to the shareholders of the Company TR #EAERBZ
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing ARBETTARARAR
for the premiums payable on repurchase of RS ERSLER KRG
shares. JE - 1B 2 4 -

(i) Contributed surplus (i)  HAEER
The contributed surplus of the Group arose REEBZHBARBBRZ
as a result of the Group reorganisation TETEFREHELRRT
implemented in preparation for the R EmmETZEE
listing of the Company’s shares in 2000 EHEMES EBTWE
and represented the excess of the then MBARIER ZEEE
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries EFEBEAARGRR
acquired, over the nominal value of the share MRS EEEFEME
capital of the Company issued in exchange TRAEBECEZ8E -
therefore.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

37. RESERVES (conta)

194

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Contd)

(i) Share option reserve
The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(v) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(iv)  Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group's share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement
of financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

(v)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

(vi)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policies set
out in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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(b)

37 f#E#E

NETZA=+—HIEFE

REEEREN ()

(1)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BIREH R

BRERBERERS
B 75 S R I 524 (V) B BX
PR IR SN R
RMETHR BRE
RS R T ASER
Bz R1TREBRESA
ZRF{Ee

B
CRNCHEEERN SRl
BEFEZ A FEBL
BEEzEZE oER
HEMBARERRE
BEEMBRARALER
1Ee

A TE W 1

AERBERTADIK
THEER B ARG B A B
JBRRRIEFBEERA
BIROE R B 2 R B &

-

V& 5 1 1
EXFREEREEER
HEIRBHBERERZ
FrEINEZR - AR
RIBEHZA BB HRERHM
AT E & A R
He
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HEZZT—"F+A=+—HLFE
37. RESERVES (Cont'd) 37 f®E)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont'd) (b) RBEMHERBWN(E)
(vii)  Warrant reserve i) IR

Warrant reserve represents the net RREFEBEITEAR
proceeds received from the issue of AR A E WER 2 AT 15
warrants of the Company. The reserve will KIBFRE - ZREEHR
be transferred to share capital and share TERREITEBERE
premium accounts upon the exercise of the IR R AR 5 i (B B o
warrants.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, REBEE—_ZE—AF+=
the remaining 80,000,000 unlisted warrants A=+— EIJJ:EE 5]
at HK$0.001743 per warrant brought forward BEFEEHE 2% T
from previous year were converted. 80,000,00017 & 17 7R i

HE #50.0017435 7T 7 3E
TR EE S

On 6 February 2015, the Company issued RZE—RAFZAR
530,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue A RARIRIER E%Tz?z’;
price of HK$0.002 per warrant pursuant to mORBETEEMNRA

a subscription agreement. Each warrant #FE0.0025 L %‘ﬂ
entitles the holder to subscribe for one 530,000,000 3F £
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial AR °tTﬁ?&Hﬂ%
subscription price of HK$0.72 per share at ‘Eﬁﬁjﬁ%%ﬁ)\%ﬂ

any time within 5 years commencing from R RBARAE FE 2 Eiﬁﬂﬁ_
the date of issue of the warrants. AARFANIE fﬁﬂ*ﬁm\,ﬁ

BHMR0.728 TRE —
PR EEO0.01/E T 2 & 3@

A% o
During the year ended 31 December 2016, HE-_ZT-RF+=
530,000,000 (2015: 530,000,000) unlisted A=+—BLt&FE"
warrants at HK$0.002 per warrant are 530,000,000 (=&
outstanding. — A % : 530,000, OOO

)3 E MR ERE
RITEE Tﬁa@ﬂx%ag
0.002/& 7T ©
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e IR AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—_ZT—RF+-A=+—HILFE
37. RESERVES (Cont'd) 37 f®E)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont'd) (b) REMEREN(E)
(vii)  Warrant reserve (Cont'd) i)  RREZFE (B)
Movements in number of underlying shares R AERE MR B RR (0 BB
of the warrants: pd
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —ZET—AF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
At 1 January m—HA—H 530,000 80,000
Issued during the year FNEIT - 530,000
Converted during the year F R - (80,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 530,000 530,000
Terms of unexpired and unexercised R EHEEE R KRB R RITE
warrants at the end of the reporting periods: RHRRERE 2 FHANT -

Number of underlying
shares of the warrants

AREREEROEE
Date of issue Exercisable period 2016 2015
EITHE 170 5 —E-RE —T-RF
6 February 2015 6 February 2015 to 530,000,000 530,000,000

5 February 2020
—“T—HF_ARH —ZE—AHF_HAAXBZE
—EFTF-AAH
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a New Share Option Scheme.

Concerning New Share Option Scheme, the Company
operates it for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents,
legal and financial advisers of the Company and the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 3 May 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 5 years from that date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to the participants to
subscribe for ordinary share of HK$0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

o o o ]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—

38.

RETZA=+—HLEFE

B 4 FRIE
R-T——FHA=ABRFTZAAR
BEBFAE L AR AREIER
AT B

ARRRIRFBRE B2 B BA
BAKBEBRINBERNLERZE
B2 RERHEDHNEE -AER
S2EREBBARTRARAME R
AlZEZREFRBER TTRAR B
REBE BEF EHAAERE RE
EREMBER-HEER T
FRAA=ZBAER BRIFERTEUERE
o BRAIEZARAEFRAER-

RIBFBRERTE AR A2 H
FER L BRE  ARBEREE.0
BT BB M F AR LR
RARGT 8] M AR RUE (R E A A A R
ZARBEZEMBNRER TNEEBE
IR 2 1T 4 BL30%  MMEf + =
EAREAN RIEFERAERAER
SEER D BERAES M2 TEITRD
BEe#A  AARRAMEMERED #
TR 21% B - E— TR LR
PREE BRI R K S AR AL
fE°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a connected person, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company's shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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38.

IRAD A FRE ()

MARTEE BRITKAEBRTE
RSS2 e AL RS
RRHE - BE RSB IEMTEEN
Yo AN - MBI+ = (8 A BRI 9 - A
BEIE A L% 2 (T A B AR A0 A
AR E BT 20.1% -
SBEA (RBARATNEL A S
2 B 17 /8 #5 5+ &) ¥ #15,000,000/%
TT - S S IR TR A & AR S L

AFRNARER TR RE R R T
28 HIE A URBARESE H
BT RMAER L 2 BREEE
PR LR 2 ITE R EFRE -
NETHEBHLHRE EEEZ&ERH
TR 2 AT BT 8l Em 2 B
(MNRBERE) B DAFRTLE-

BRBETEEHESRTE  TEER
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AR L BREZ AR A2 YT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont )

The fair value of share options granted is recognised
in profit or loss taking into account the probability that
the options will vest over the vesting period. Upon the
exercise of the options the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
in the share premium account. At the time when the
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to share
premium. \When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
retained profits. Lapsed options, prior to their exercise
date, are deleted from the outstanding options. All equity-
settled share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in
part by giving exercise notice to the grantor at any time
during the option period provided that the grantees shall
exercise the options to acquire the option shares in
accordance with the following vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%

HE_Z—

38.

RETZA=+—HLEFE

IRAD A FRE ()

% B AR A > D A 5t I B AR
BB A% 1218
HHE NIRRT 516 B e B
17 2 B AR A5 T (B 51 VE 58 S AR 7 -
TG IR AT (B PR 19 B 2 = ST
ABRAD 3% B BE o BB IR A M 1T 1 B -
PHRBREREAER, S EeE
1B 2 AR 5 1 o o P IR R U 3
BIHA B 5T (E - B AT R B A A
BENERY S EEESRBREF -
FATT 1 B HR A 5k 38 BE A 1 i K47
{65 B AR TR 5% o FIT 75 HE 25 45 LA B
BN BERESEE - RE@Y
RS O 5 LA IR & A R AR 2 SR T B
HEEME-

ESEINGINN - 2l RS O R
BEBAREABLBAN ITE2ERX
BP0 BB - B IR R AR AZARIE LA
TREBREXRTERBEARERK
R -

BERER

B B ERT—F % 30%
B HERARER 30%
BRE R = F% 40%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hz2—Z

—RNF+ZA=+—HIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 38. RO XAARIE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company's TREBFERESSIETARREE
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the RiEZFHE REREBE_T—h1F
. — — Ly .
movements during the year ended 31 December 2015: TZA=T—HLEFEZEH:
Number of share options
BREHA
At Granted Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the year the year 2015
R-2-1%
R=Z-1fF nEE/ t=A
BEBH g T&E -A-H ERRM %% ERiTR =t+-A
New Share Option Scheme
FBRETE
Directors and Chief Executives
BERARITBAG
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
“Z-—F+ARH “E-=f+tA/RE-T—tFtATA 0.25%7C
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-MELAREEZZ-tELAER 0.25%7
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - (800,000) 8,320,000
ZE-RFCARREZZ-LELAER 0.25%7
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
—Z-R§~AT—H 2 RF-R-AEZZC-FFE ATA 12587
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“E—+5-fA-RE-T-F5,A+H 1265871
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 28,000,000 - - 28,000,000
—Z-\fZR-AEZZ=FF/ ATAH 12587
21,600,000 70,000,000 - (800,000) 90,800,000
Other employees
EfbfER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 236,000 - (21,000 (215,000) -
ZE-ZEtARHE ZE-ZFtR HEZE-tEtARA 02537
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 298,000 - (37000) (261,000) -
“T-NE+AXBE_E—+EtARA 0.25%7C
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 67556,000 - (524,000 (28,984,000) 38,048,000
“ET-RftANBE_E—+EtARA 02537
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400 - 38,791,800
—“Z2-1F At+-A ZZ-RFZR-HEZZTTERATH 12587
February 2017 t0 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400) - 38,791,800
F—+F-A-HE-Z-ZFXATAH 126587
February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 53,085,600 (1,363,200) - 51,722,400
ZZ-\f-A-RE-T-TEXA1A 12587
68,090,000 132,714,000 (3,990,000) (29,460,000) 167354,000
Total share options 89,690,000 202,714,000 (3,990,000 (30,260,000) 258,154,000

gy
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HEZZT—"F+A=+—HLFE
38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont ) 38. RO XAARIE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TREBFERESSIETARREE
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the RiEZFHE RERBE_T—XRF
movements during the year ended 31 December 2016: +ZA=+—BILFEZ2EH:
Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2016 the year the year the year 2016
R-B-R%E
RIB-XE EnEE/ tZh
BHAH fid i -A-B ERRM b4 ERTE =t+-A
New Share Option Scheme
FBRETE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESZRARTHAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZZ-Z%tARH ZE-Z5tANAEZS-tEtARA 0.2587T
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-MELAREEZZ-tELAER 0.25%7
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 8,320,000 - - - 8,320,000
ZE-RFCARREZZ-LELAER 0.25%7
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“Z-hERAT-H “E-R"¥-A-BE-T-FF/ A+H 1265871
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 21,000,000 - - - 21,000,000
“E—+5-fA-RE-T-F5,A+H 1265871
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
—Z-\fZR-AEZZ=FF/ ATAH 12587
90,800,000 - - - 90,800,000
Other employees
HitES
6 July 2012 6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 38,048,000 - - (37248,000) 800,000
ZE-ZEtARHE —E-AFtA HEZStELARA 02537
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400 - 37349,400
“Z-1F~At+-H “ET-X%-A-BE-Z-Z%/:AtH 126587
February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 38,791,800 - (1,442,400 - 37,349,400
F—+F-A-HE-Z-ZFXATAH 126587
February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 51,722,400 - (1,923,200) - 49,799,200
—3-/\fZR-BZ-T-ZE/A+H 12587
167354,000 - (48080000 (372480001 125,298,000
Total share options 258,154,000 - (4,808,000) (37248,000) 216,098,000
ERERY
If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years WA R R B AT A F HAR &
from the date of grant, the options will expire. Options MIARTTE - BERRAE S 2 B - fini (E B B
are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. PN S [E - i IR S R UL o
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RE I ERRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

HE—

Z-RF+ZA=+—HILFE

38. BREAR

Details of the share options outstanding during the year

are as follows:

FARMRITEBEEFBEET

2016 2015
—E-KF —T-1fF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price
mE¥Y T
BREZAE TEE BREHE TEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning of ~ F ¥ KT

the year 258,154,000 1.022 89,690,000 0.250
Granted during the year FRE N - - 202,714,000 1.250
Exercised during the year FRIE (37,248,000) 0.250  (30,260,000) 0.250
Lapsed during the year FREM (4,808,000) 1.250 (3,990,000) 1.104
Outstanding at the end of the year K [ K /71 216,098,000 1150 258,154,000 1022

Exercisable at the end of the year FARA] F171F 79,949,400 58,848,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share option exercised during the year ended 31
December 2016 was HK$0.620 (2015: HK$0.732).
37248,000 (2015: 30,260,000) share options have been
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.18 years
(2015: 3.80 years) and average exercise price of HK$1.150

(2015: HK$1.022).
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HEe—_Z—XRFE+-_A=1+—HItFE
38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (contd) 38. ERELAEH (2
Options under New Option Scheme were granted on g e s BRER_ZE—AF
11 June 2015. The estimated fair value of the options NAT—BERE Rz B ERE
granted on that date is HK$129,751,000. The fair value 2 fhEHAF(E A129,751,000/8 7T ° A
was calculated using the Binomial Option pricing model. FEEZ_BEAPETCERAFE R
The inputs into the model are as follows: AR ZEBAT :
2015
—_T-hF
Applicable share price HARMDER HK$1.237 7T
Exercise price per share BRITEE HK$1.2578 7T
Expected volatility TEHRR I8 72.26%
Expected life T8 T B 54
Risk free rate 422 [3 e S B 1.348%
Expected dividend vield TEHEPR B & 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the FEERBRIEA R RIROERRBER
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the FrRFIRBFE - BN AFTAE
previous 5 years. The expected life used in the model was FHRBEREZEHFR-
the contractual life of the options.
39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REHREREHRKRMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Disposal of travellers related services (a) HERETHEBEESE
segment
As mentioned in note 16 to the consolidated L0 48 K0 B S R 5% MY RE 16T
financial statements, the Group discontinued the i 7 ER B AR E AR TR 5 AR
travellers related services segment including Kopu R (BREEEEESENE
Group and Kanghui during the year. 1) o

FEAFXARERRAE | 203

T NFFR \

\



oo

[m] O a
oood [m} o o o
O a]
oo o

o

o

o o o ]

oooo
u] EE o o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE_ZT-—RE+T_A=T—HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REREREFRRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)
(a) Disposal of travellers related services (a) HEREHEBRESE
segment (Cont'd) (%)
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REEBBHzBEFENAT:
follows:
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment M- ME KRR E 308
Intangible assets mVEE 94
Trade receivables JE WL BR 51 1,843
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables  F&1 ZIE « # 4 & H 4th FE UL 3¢ 1,356
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 2,164
Trade payables JERTBR K (1,859)
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R HMEN K (1,631)
Amount due to the Group JER AN BRI (32,050)
Due to a director ER—RESFIAE (465)
Net liabilities disposed of FTb &z BEFHE (30,240)
Release of foreign currency bR INE IR E
translation reserve (2,920)
Amount due to the Group written off S R AN B RIR 32,050
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries HEMB ARz W (MFE16)
(Note 16) 1,168
Total consideration REBHE 58
Satisfied by: A5 ER:
Cash consideration RERE 58
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRSMTFE:
Cash consideration ReNRE 58
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FIHECHRSRRESEEYD (2,164)
(2,106)
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BE-F-ARET-A=+—ALEE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REREREFRRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMBLAR
(i) On 2 September 2016, the Group entered (i) RZE-—XRNEFLAZ
into a sale and purchase agreement with A - AEEH-—FFHT
an independent third party to dispose of F=AFIMNEE W=
51% equity interests of Beijing Meichuang LA ERIEREEIL
Commercial Management Co., Limited HMEEERBRAR (%
(“"Meichuang Commercial”) at a cash BlZpmEE]) ) Z51%
consideration of RMB1,545,000 (equivalent KiE - HeRERAR
to HK$1,797000). Meichuang Commercial #1,545,0007T (#8 & 1
was principally engaged in provision of 1,797,000 7T ) ° % &l
software development. The consideration NEBEEEERERM
was satisfied by cash and the completion PR -ZRETH
date was 30 September 2016. ReEN TKREBA
ZE-RNFALA=T
H o
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REERBZBEFSE
follows: LU
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment M= ME KRR E 139
Intangible assets mEEE 143
Prepayments, deposit and other TERTRIE - R e N H A E K
receivables 509
Bank and cash balances RIT R AR 1,028
Accruals and other payables TEIREB A K HMERK (2,067)
Non-controlling interest e AR = 121
Net liabilities disposed of FIHEzBEFE (127)
Release of foreign currency BRI INB IR E B
translation reserve (656)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEHBRR 2 KaE 2,580
Total consideration RERE 1,797
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REREREFRRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd) (b) HEMBLR (&)
(i) (Cont'd) (i) (#%&)
HK$'000
FAET
Satisfied by: LA 75 BT
Cash consideration ReERE 1,797
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEL 2SR EFE:
Cash consideration received 2R ERE 424
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHEZIRE MBS EEY (1,028)
(604)
(i) On 16 December 2016, the Group entered (ii) RZE—XRF+=A
into a sale and purchase agreement with +RE - AEEHE—F
an independent third party to dispose of BYE=AFIMVEER
100% equity interests of Shengyang Tonghui FEOUANEREGBIE
Technology Development Co., Limited MEZERBRAR ([F
(“Shengyang Tonghui”) at nil consideration. (SimE]) Z2100% R
Shengyang Tonghui was inactive during the BE-RERZT-EGB
year. The completion date was 31 December ERAFEEEEE-
2016. ERBEHAE-T—NFE
+=-—A=+—H8H-
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE K& 71
Inventories rE 7
Prepayments, deposit and other AR FRIE - 2 R E b FE R
receivables 295
Trade receivables JE YLBR 5K 12
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 283
Accruals and other payables TEREB A K HMERK (1,131)
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEBHEREBRME &)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conta)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd) (b) HEMBLR (&)
(ii) (Cont'd) (i) (#4)
HK$'000
FHETT
Net liabilities disposed of & BEFHE (463)
Release of foreign currency translation 2R 9N 32 & 4 1
reserve 578
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB AR ZEE (115)
Total consideration REBE -
Satisfied by: AT HHER:
Cash He _
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEL 7S K HIF5
Cash consideration received BEYIRSKE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed FTHEZIRERIREFEY (283)
(283)
(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (c) UWiEModemtimes}: E ff}

subsidiaries

On 30 September 2015 (“Completion Date”),
the Group obtained 51% of equity interest of
Moderntimes Payment Limited (“Moderntimes”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Moderntimes Group”). Moderntimes Group is
principally engaged in (i) provision of consultancy
services in strategy and implementation in the
traditional finance industry and the internet finance
industry; (i) development, operation and promotion
of innovative products in the internet and finance
fields; and (iii) customer value management.

BT
R-—ZZE—RFNALA=1H
(e BEI]) - A& E
S Moderntimes Payment
Limited ([Moderntimes ] )
MEKEBAR(HBE A
[Moderntimes® & |) 251%
B #E - Moderntimes(2 @ = &
HENNBHERITERE R
AERITENERRRIERER
ZERRE: (INEBELRE
BRI R EERERERIF
Em: RilEFEEER-
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

208

/

(c)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

According to the subscription agreement,
assignment of shareholder’s loan and incentive
agreement dated 18 June 2015 entered into
between the Group and the shareholders of
Moderntimes, the consideration of the acquisition
of 51% equity interest of Moderntimes will be
settled by way of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

injection of HK$49,510,000 to Moderntimes
by way of cash on Completion Date as
registered capital,

settlement of outstanding amount of
HK$13,090,000 due to a former shareholder
of Moderntimes Group;

allotting and issuing up to 231,481,481
ordinary shares of the Company to the
vendor, ModernTimes Information Co.,
Limited, depending on the number of
cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for the
period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2017 and the amount of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded for the period from
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017
("Guaranteed Period”). The number of
ordinary shares to be issued (“Contingent
Shares”) is subject to the adjustments
below:
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39.

GEBEEREHRKRMT &)
(c) UWEEModemtimesz E Fft
BATE (&)

R 1% K £ E B Moderntimesfi%
RAEIHBA-ZT—RHEN
A+ N\BRIM 2R =N E

o2 P R E R N AR e

i

ModerntimesZ 51 % I A& #5 35
BUATHRER:

(ii)

(iii)

B 5 R B OH AT @
Moderntimes &
49,510,000/ JT{E &= 7t
&

& 1< & it Moderntimes
EEARRZEKER
4 %813,090,000/8 7T ;

RIR—_ZF—HFtA
—RE_ZT—+F+=
A=+—BHHEES®
ZitEHBEN R&A
ERZFE—RF—HA—
HE-_Z—t&H+=
A=+—B8H (R
HHIME]) RETERTE
NRTEEE B
B 17 8 %231,481,481
BARARAEBRKRT
% 7 ModernTimes
Information Co.,
Limited ° #§ 397 & i@
(SRR | ) 8RB 1= A
TR EE
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the six months ended 31 December 2015

HE—ZT—REF+-A=T—HILFE

39. FEBEEREB/RME &)
(c) UWEEModemtimesz E Fft
BT (&)

BEZF—nF1T-A=4—
HEAN1EA

Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for
the period is less than 3,500,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued

for the period shall be zero;

B —: BN E & REHER AN RE B 4 503,500,000 - REAA T & #1750
AR
Scenario 2: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for

the period is 3,500,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the period shall be 46,296,296.

BR=: M HA A B & 25T E#ITE T <88 /3,500,0008% A £ - REAN 81T 2
AR 1# #346,296,296

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(1) Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold

B —F—NF+-_H=+4+—
HiFF/&

() EERERBENFK

Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is
less than 30,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be zero;

B WREE2-_E—AFtA—BE_T—XRFE+-_A=+—H1t
HiM B & 25T EHTEN <& E 4 530,000,000 ' REEZ =T —<
FH+_A=Z+—BIEFEHTGEITRARG
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REREREFRRMTE &)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )

(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its () UiEModemtimesk: H
subsidiaries (Cont'a) B2re (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Cont’d) AE—FT—NF+-H=74—

HiFFE (&)
(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold (Cont'd) () EERFELENTF
(%)

Scenario 2:

‘=

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is
30,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be 115,740,740 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the six months
ended 31 December 2016.
WREBE-E—AFtA—HE-_T—X"F+-A=+—H1t
HIME & Rt EHITEIT R 2B /30,000,000 LA £ REIZ =T
—RNFTZRA=1T—HIEFEKETT115,740, 7400 A A - 4
RBE_Z-—R"FT+_A=+t—BLEXREADZETZEMHA
R BB -

(i)  REtEHEEN F7E

(1) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded

Scenario 1:

i

Scenario 2:

BER—:

210 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
is less than RMB30,000,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be zero;
WREBE T -—hFtA-—BAE-_T—R"EF+-_A=1+—AH1t
Eﬁﬁaﬂ;’iﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%z—fﬁ > A R #30,000,000, 00075 5%&&
:%f—/\iﬂ—_ﬂ_ﬂ— EIJEEFE?I%T\ BEITH AR

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid

card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2016 is RMB30,000,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares

to be issued for the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be
23,148, 148

HMREE2 - E—AF+A—H2-_Z—R"E+-_A=+—HIt
Hﬂﬁaﬁ;%ﬁfﬁf”ﬁﬁ%z{ﬁi%)&ﬁ%so 000,000,0007T 3% JA £ » 7
HE-_ZT—"F+-_A=+—RHILFEHE1723,148,1488k sk &

Bt o
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. ZKEREREBHMKRMET @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'a)
(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (c) UWEBModemtimes HFff
subsidiaries (Cont'a) BATR (&)
For the year ending 31 December 2017 AE—F—+F+-H=4—
HiFF&
() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold () EEREHETF
Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
less than 43,750,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be zero;
E—: WREBZ-_E—AFtA—HEZ=_F—tF+=-A=+—HLit
HIF 2 & 25t EHAN REA 2 7043,750,000 - REEE T —+
FH+_A=Z+—BIEFEHTSEITRARG
Scenario 2: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
43,750,000 or more but less than 70,000,000, the Contingent
Shares to be issued for the year ending 31 December 2017
shall be 86,805,555 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
mentioned above;
P WREBE_ET—HTFtA-—RE-T—+tF+A=1T— E

tﬁﬂﬁﬁaﬁ%ﬂﬂ“’ﬁﬁ%@a7%4375oooodwkﬂﬁ
70,000,000  REE-_FT—+F+_-_A=1+— Etiﬁﬂﬁé
86,805,656 S AR D - PR EX AT R E EEBEN RGN
THE - E—ARAFt+tAR—RE-_ZE—FRFt+-_A=+—HItH
M7 AW ARMDER
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEREREBMKRME (2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (c) UWEBModemtimesk HFff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

BLw (&)

For the year ending 31 December 2017 AE—F—+F+-H=4—

(Cont'd)

A FE

() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold (Cont'd) () EERFELENTF

Scenario 3:

S =

Scenario 4:

LK
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in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
70,000,000 or more but less than 87500,000, the Contingent
Shares to be issued for the year ending 31 December 2017
shall be 104,166,666 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
mentioned above;
WRBE_E—AFtA—RAE=T—+tF+A=1+— E
IEEAEIE & 25T EHITRE N KRB /&70,000,0008k A 1>
87,500,000 REE—_T—tF+ -_A=+— Etifﬂv%&‘?ﬂ
104,166,666/ Sk A7 - D X Pt 2512 EEB AN RE
/RT@ —F— ﬂi‘tﬂ HE-F— /\ﬂz"f— A= "f' Bk
BB 17 2 E RS AR EA

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
87500,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 173,611,111 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the period
from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card sold mentioned above.
WREBE_T—hF+tA—BHE=-_T—tF+-_A=+—H1t
HIR B2 & REHEHIEN REE /87500,0008 A £ REBE_ZE
—tF+ - A=+t—RIEFERETI73,611, 1M KREARS - D
REXPRFEEEREANRBEATHRE_E—HFLA—
AE-ZT-—RET-A=1+—RILHE2 #T2EMHARN
A -
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEREREBMKRME (2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (c) UWEBModemtimesk HFff
subsidiaries (Contd)

For the year ending 31 December 2017

(Cont'd)

(i)

BLw (&)

B —F—+F+—-H=+4+—
HiFF/Z (&)

Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i) R IEHEET~71E

Scenario 1:

R

Scenario 2:

‘=

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017
is less than RMB43,750,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be zero;

WREE2-_T—hAF+tA—BE-_ZT—tF+_A=+—H1t
HAf 25t E R TEN R R ERE DR A R E43,750,000,0007T * A&
ZET+F+A=T—HIEFEZTGEITHARD

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2017 is RMB43,750,000,000 or more but less than
RMB70,000,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 28,935,185 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the year ended
31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;
WREE—_T—AF+tA—HE-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—H1t
HiM REHERTE N R EE R AR ¥43,750,000,0007T 3 A F1HE
D AKR®70,000,000,000 REBE_E—tF+_A=+—
H IEFE % 3£9728,935,185AR Sk R AR 0+ A H 3Pt 2 5t ##
BRNRREBA TEHE_ZE—R"F+_A=T—HILFEDE
T2 ERSARNDEE
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEREREMKRME (2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (c) UWEBModemtimes HFff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

BT (&)

For the year ending 31 December 2017 AE—F—+F+-H=4—

(Cont'd)

HIFFE (&)

(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REIEKEET~71E

(Cont'd)

Scenario 3:

o=

Scenario 4:

(EPLE
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in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid
card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2017 is RMB70,000,000,000 or more but less than
RMB87500,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 34,722,222 less
the number of any Contingent Shares issued for the year ended
31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;
WREBE_FT—hAF+tA—BHET—tF+-_A=+—H1t
Eﬂﬁaﬂ%mﬁ? Faff R E5E A A KKE70,000,000,0007T 3% A £ HE
L AR #87500,000,000T  REE=ZT—tF+-A=+—
B IEFE A5 881734,722,222 R S AR (7 » DR & Pt Rt E #E
ENRAEBEATEE-_E—R"FT_A=T—RHILFEE%
T2 ERSARNOEE

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid

card reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December
2017 is RMB87500,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares

to be issued for the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be
57,870,370 less the number of any Contingent Shares issued
for the year ended 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded mentioned above.
WREE—_T—AF+tA—HE=-_ZE—tF+-_A=+—AH1
HIM 2 EREN RRERE R AKRES7500,000,00080 A - 7
BHE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFEKE757870,3700k LA
B PR EXFRRAEREN RREBATEHEZZT—X
FTZA=ZT—HBLEFEEBETZEMIAROEE -
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39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Details of the Group's acquisition of Moderntimes
Group were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 18 June 2015 and 8
July 2015. The acquisition is for the purpose of
strengthening the Group's third party payment
services in the PRC.

For the six months ended 31 December 2015, the
number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for
the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2015
is more than 3,500,000, therefore the Contingent
Shares was 46,296,296.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for
the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016
is more than 30,000,000, therefore the Contingent
Shares was 69,444,444, The amount of cumulative
virtual prepaid card reloaded for the period from
1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is less than
RMB30,000,000, therefore the Contingent Shares
was zero.

As at 31 December 2016, 115,740,741 (2015:
185,185,185) Contingent Shares were yet issued
and the issuance will depend on the outcome of
future fulfillment of performance targets as set out
above.

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

39.

RERTREBRKRME 2

(c)

Uz B Modemtimes 5 £L fft
BAT (&)

A& B U BEModerntimess
ZHBENRARR ZE—RF
NAtTN\BHEZZE—RFtHA
NBZRAE - WHEZ BB AN
BAEBRNPEE=F N
AR 7% o

HE_Z—RAFt+=-A=1+—
HIENEA B & ZETE#
BENREEREZZT— A
FtA—BEBE-_ZT—HF
+T-_A=+—BILHEBE
3,500,000 * E It sk AARR 19 &
46,296,296 °

BHE-_ZT—R"F+-A=1+—
HIEFE BERTERTE
NEHEREBEE=_ZT— &
F+A—HZE2E_Z— X%
+-A=+—HILHHEBB
30,000,000 © & 1t » 3% 28 B% 15
569,444, 44405 - B 51 /& %t T8
NHREREERE T —AFt
A—HRZE-_Z—XF+_A
S+ —HLEHELIRARE
30,000,0007T * A bt T & %
TR ©

R_E—XRNF+_A=+—
B 115,740,741 (= ZE—Hh
4 :185,185,1850% ) sk A B& 15
MAREITREBITEUAR £
N ARERRRBZ 4
%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

HE_ZT-—RE+T_A=T—HILFE

39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. FEBEEREB/RME &)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'a)
(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its () WiEBModemtimesk Hff
subsidiaries (Contd) BT (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and AREEFERWEARDSBKRE
liabilities of Moderntimes Group acquired as at its Moderntimes£s B a] % Bl & &
date of acquisition is as follows: REEY ATENT:
HK$'000
Net assets acquired: Frik s & = 1A FET
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB K 121
Investment in an associate N RN o -
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables  F81F FIE « & & & H 4th & Y 3¢ 1,087
Amount due from a non-controlling JE Y — 4 FE 1 AR IR 3R FIE
shareholder 215
Bank and cash balances IRITMIRE MR 56,394
Accruals and other payables TR E A R H MR (1,221)
56,596
Non-controlling interests RS (27732)
28,864
Goodwill allocated to third party payment SEEFE=FZNREESEE
services CGU (Note 20) Bz g (M3E20) 56,597
85,461
Satisfied by: A5 ER:
Cash consideration paid: ENBREeRE:
— Capital injection - I8 49,510
— Settlement of loan -ERNER 13,090
62,600
Contingent consideration payable (Note 32) B A K (E (Hf5E32) 22,861
85,461
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEE RS RE FE
Cash consideration RERE (62,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE e kIReEEY 56,394
(6,206)
216 / China Innovationpay Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests are measured at their
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Moderntimes Group is attributable to strengthen
the third party payment services of the Group.
Moderntimes Group contributed HK$25,000 and
HK$3,402,000 to the Group's revenue and loss
respectively for the period between the date of
acquisition and 31 December 2015.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable
at the Completion Date represents the present
values of the Contingent Shares expected to be
issued during the Guaranteed Period, which was
estimated based on the expected cumulative
virtual prepaid card sold and virtual prepaid card
reload during the Guaranteed Period. The valuation
was prepared by an independent valuer, UniStand
Appraisal Limited.

HE—ZT—REF+-A=T—HILFE

39.

RERTREBHRKRME 2

(c)

Iz BEModemtimes &z H fft
BT (&)

e R IE N B E ]
HAEEFECEERETE
JEAELLBIET £ -

I B Moderntimest B & 4
ZEEBEARIEEAEE
ZE=ZFXARE TR
Moderntimes$s & 7 Uz iE B 5
EE-RF+ZA=1+—
HiEEE S 5 A X% B I
= & 5 18 B 25,0000 T &
3,402,000/ 7t ©

REK BEERSAREZ A
FEEEBERRE AR Z
TRZHEARNDBE THREE
REEREN IR R ER
ENRZERAREHEAZ
TEH{E AT - HE AR B (G ER
UniStand Appraisal Limited{E
Hj o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'a)
(c) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Contd)

Key inputs used in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration payable are as
follows:

Unobservable inputs

HE_Z-—RET_A=T—HILEFE

RERTREBRKRME 2

(c)

I BEModemtimes &z E fft
BT (&)

ENHARERTEAERRD

BWABELT

As at Completion Date

R ES PN ¢ R A
Expected number of cumulated virtual prepaid card sold

as at 31 December 2017 (Note i) 30,633,248
RZZE—tF+ZA=+—HEHESE R EREN R&E

(HHaEi) 30,533,248

Expected amount of cumulated virtual prepaid card reloaded

as at 31 December 2017 (Note ii)

R_E—+tF+T_A=+—BEHEAEREANRER

(B &Eii)

Discount rate applied (Note iii)

PITFE PR 2 BRER = (P 3 )

Average simulated share price under Monte Carlo Method
(Note iv)
SERBEERETIORE (MaEiv)

Note i: Expected number of cumulated virtual prepaid
card sold for Contingent Shares is based on
the Directors’ best estimate and weighted

probability analysis.

Note ii:  Expected amount of cumulated virtual prepaid
card reloaded for Contingent Shares is based
on the Directors’ best estimate and weighted

probability analysis.

Note iii:  Discount rate is derived by applying a risk-free

interest rate plus the credit spread.

Note iv:  Average simulated share price are estimated
based on the historical volatility of the share
price of the Company's ordinary shares listed

on the Stock Exchange.
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0.50/% 7T

SR 2 FRHIE &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

39. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2015, total Group revenue for the year would
have been HK$104,134,000 and loss for the year
would have been HK$173,505,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2015, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary
without change of control

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group acquired 5% equity interests in a 95%
subsidiary at nil consideration. The effect of the
acquisition on the equity attribution to the owners
of the Company is as follows:

HE-_T—R"EF+-A=T—HILFE

39.

RERTREBRKRME 2

(c)

(d)

I B Modemtimes & E ff}
BAT (&)

HEEER —_E—RF—A—
HRER ANEEBFRRSHBE
#5 £104,134,0007% 7T M F K
fE518 81| A2173,505,00078 7T ° #5
ZERMEIEHRPAR S WIEH
PAEEEREER = —1
F—A—HERZBRATAE
BBz RS R EBEE T
TRERARRELZ 2 TEA -

WiE — M B A F 2 s
(A= FIEL B
RBEE_ZT—-—XFT_A
=+—BUEFE XEEANUT
REWE —EHEFB%ARE 2
bt 8 A Rl 2 5% AR #E - R A A
BB ANREREER 2 ZEN
T

HK$'000
FET
Carrying amount of non-controlling PR iE 2 JEfE IR i s 2 BREL B
interests acquired (544)
Consideration paid for non-controlling FIEIERRE ST 2 B
interests -
Loss on acquisition recognised BEENEDARR WEER
directly in equity (544)
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RN

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE—_ZT—RF+-A=+—HILFE
39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REREREFRRMTE &)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(d) Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary d WE—BREBARZER
without change of control (Conta) (W FIEEE) (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the REBEZE_ZFT—AF+=A
Group acquired 20% equity interests in a 80% =+t—HIEFE FREBNUR
subsidiary at a cash consideration of HK$12,000. © R E12,000%8 T Uk g — I
The effect of the acquisition on the equity B80% 2 M B A7 220%
attributable to the owners of the Company is as RiE - RAEIHEE AEIGIKE
follows: R BT
HK$'000
TET
Carrying amount of non-controlling P 2 3EE iR 2 BRE B
interests acquired (216)
Consideration paid for non-controlling IR RTINS 2 R E
interests (12)
Loss on acquisition recognised BEENERAER 2 WEEEE
directly in equity (228)
40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HAEE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any RZE—RF+ZA=+— EI &
significant contingent liabilities (2015: nil). B EEMEASIABE(ZE—H
Fom) o
41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 4. EREIE
On 12 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale RZE-—R"F+ZA+ZH K&
and purchase agreement to obtain 20% equity interest B VEEMZEBTEARK
of an investee company by way of capital injection of 5,000,000 TSR — MK E R
RMB5,000,000. As at 31 December 2016, the Group paid AlZ20% B E-R_E—RFE+ =
RMB2,000,000. The remaining balance of RMB3,000,000 A=+—HB AKEEXFTARK
is a capital commitment. 2,000,0007T ° #4 58 A £ #3,000,000
TURE RS-
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any RZZE-—RAF+A=+—H K%
significant capital commitments. & I 8 (] 82 KB A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e HRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE_Z—RFt+ZA=+—HIFE
HEAE
R-ZEBE—RE+-_A=+—0 B
TR BEE S B E N 2 R IR &K

42. LEASE COMMITMENTS 42

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

43.

44.

payable as follows: EFIRBTEIT
2016 2015
—E-XRFE —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Within one year —FR 11,970 12,381

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF

(BHEEEMF) 16,766 28,949
Over five years BARF 1,439 2,277
30,175 43,607

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated
for terms of one to four years (2015: one to nine years)
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not
include contingent rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43.
The key management personnel are the directors. The
details of the remuneration paid to them are set out in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 44.

Certain comparative figures have been restated or
reclassified as a result of presentation of discontinued
operations in the current year.

REHEFTREASEREETHA
ERN 2 -HER-—ZENF (=
T-hF: —ENF)HEH - HER
MEAEE BTt A A S -

BEALXRS
TEERABRES -EREEER
ABZ S E R A B R R
15

HBHF
EFUBRBTHR2TIAFER I
EEBMEIREFSE -
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ARE BTSRRI RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

45. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 July 2016, the Company entered into a
memorandum in respect of a possible acquisition of
the 100% equity interest and shareholders’ loan of
a Company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands (the
“Target Group”) which is principally engaged in the
e-commerce business providing a variety of online and
offline solutions proposals and services in relation to
mobile retailing. Pursuant to the memorandum, the
Group paid the Target Group RMB30,000,000 as earnest
money.

According to the Company’s announcement dated 21
February 2017 the Company changed to acquire 51%
equity interest of the Target Group.

On 17 March 2017 the Company and the sellers entered
into the Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to which
the sellers have conditionally agreed to sell and the
Company has conditionally agreed to purchase the 51%
equity interest of the Target Group for a consideration
of HK$2,096,100,000, subject to the approval of
independent shareholders of the Company and fulfillment
of other conditions precedent. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement on 28
March 2017
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45,

wREHEBEN
RZFE—ARELA+NB A2QRH
ARl E-—RNFAEESEMR Lz
ANAE ([BEREE]) Z2100% M1 & IR
REFUETS BEEEEEHR
EETHBEER RESEEEHT
EEMNERIBRIERAAREEZER
R -BEH=E AEEDMBIZ
£ B+ AR ¥30,000,0007C1E A
=&

BERARABRAR-T—tF_A
T+ —BHZRE RARARERR/KE
AIREE 251 %M -

RZZ—tF=A+tH ARF
HEHETRITEERE B L&
TEBEHRELERARE B RN
FE U HE B R R E 251 %A - 1B
“TREEATAAE-TEETE- K
BAESANRBBMR 2 3E MR
H iSRG ERR R T AIEE - B RS
IR 527 FAERENARE AHG
—T—tF=A=F+NBzZR%-
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FHEHRE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“Z-R"F —T-1F —T-mE —F-=ZFf —ET-_f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT TEL AL
(Represented)
(BE5)
RESULT E
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RECEEY
Revenue g 80,182 97068 81,222 142,896 212,805
Cost of sales HEKAK (56,227) (71,468) (46,173) (93,173)  (131,374)
Gross profit EM 23,955 25,600 35,049 49,723 81,431
Other income Hi A 24,946 15,021 4,461 3,943 7031
Selling expenses HEER (16,917) (27378) (31,181) (19,911) (5,353)
Administrative expenses TS (125,040) (100,621) (60,675) (52,025) (45,681)
Other operating expenses Hig g% - - - - (6,000)
Impairment of amount due from an [ — R E R R IERE
associate - - - (4,733) -
Impairment of investment in an associate 7 — R & N B MR ERE - - - - (822)
Impairment of goodwill HERE (12,301) (4,641) (53,323)  (228,787) (160,499)
Impairment of intangible assets EWEERE - - - (933) -
Equity-settled share-based payment REEE RN X 0B (48,415) (57548) (4,463) (9,173) (6,022)
Gain on fair value change of R—HBERRENTE
investment in an associate el e - - - 1,273 -
(Loss)/gain on fair value change of EREARERTLE
contingent consideration payables 28 (58) s (70,984) 13,165 - - 252,640
¢ﬁ%ﬁ§ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ? 223
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=t—-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE —ZT-1F —E-QmEFE —T-—=F —T-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET TET
(Represented)
€27
Finance costs BERA - (15) (9,714) (13,187) (12,371)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBAT (E18) 57 (224,756) (136,427) (119,846) (273,810) 104,354
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEe,/ (BX) 242 (2,556) (3,740) (4,927) (12,757)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FORTHEYEAR FROM ~ KREBEKLEBKIEN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (B#8),/ &7 (224514)  (138,983) (123,586)  (278,737) 91,597
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS DRIEEEER
Loss for the year from ERIMEEER
a discontinued operation FNER (4,383) (21,588) - - -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(ER) /& (228,897 (160,571) (123,536) (278,737 91,597
Attributable to: ATALEESD:
Owners of the Company ARAEAA (214422)  (153818)  (122,724)  (279,352) 91,362
Non-controlling interests R (14,475) (6,753) (862) 615 235
(228,897)  (160,571) (123,586)  (278,737) 91,597
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE SERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 1,081,293 1,181,047 1,105,536 987578 1,251,850
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (222,964)  (108,730) (77212) (163,593) (190,100)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS E oy (15,525) (27697) (6,502) (707) (88)
842,804 1,044,620 1,021,822 823,278 1,061,662
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